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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EERWRE(E)

AR

INTRODUCTION

In 2018, the global economic growth rate was approximately
3.7%. In U.S., the economic growth power is still strong with the
expansion of fiscal stimulation policy. But due to newly announced
trade policy, including the USD200 billion import commodity tariff,
the growth rate forecast has been revised downward. Due to
accidental condition arising in the start of 2018, the growth rate of
Euro zone, Japan and Britain has been reduced. In new emerge
and developing economic entities, the prospect of future growth
has been improved as increase in oil price. With the trade dispute,
the economic growth of China and other Asian countries were
weakened. The decrease in working population and productivity
rate were the main reasons for the decline.

In developed countries, the economic activities in the first half of
2018 were slow. Euro zone and Britain were growing behind the
expectation. World trade and industrial growth declined and some
high level standard not met. Core inflation still differs among the
developed countries. In new emerge and developing countries,
energy producing countries improved but import depending
countries weakened. The inflation rate in the newly emerge
and developing countries were rising, mainly resulted from the
depreciation of local currencies.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EERWRE(E)

In China, there was a good start in 2018. With the loss of influence
from spending, the drop in capital assets investment, and the
poor operating condition of resident owned enterprises, there
was pressure on economic growth. The US-China trade dispute
hampered the market. The Macro-economic policies including the
fiscal and monetary policies have lessened the operating condition,
and the put forward of construction project have improved the
economic condition in the next half of the year.

In 2018, China domestic retail enterprise adapted to spending
enhancement trend by providing quality and effective products.
There are mainly four main aspects: 1) provision of quality goods;
2) build up cross industry shopping experience; 3) put forward
smart retailing; and 4) introduce green retailing. In future, there
will be changes in retail enterprises by transformation of business,
spending upgrade with more satisfaction. Retailers will develop new
business model and mode, and speed up innovative shopping idea
by reducing cost, increase efficiency, better service and new market
demand.

Besides, there were 16 newly erected shopping malls in Shenzhen
with gross floor area of approximately 1.1 million square metres. On
one hand, living style and spending habit have been changed. One-
stop shopping experience in a single building was getting popular.
These malls are equipped with theatre, entertaining spot, cinema,
and puppy garden etc. On the other hand, fast expansion in local
economy makes land cost higher, especially the city centre. This
gives rise to giant shopping malls in the rural area with high cultural
and leisure value.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, traditional department stores still faced
unprecedented pressure, with the gradual reduction of closure of
stores by retail giants in the non-core city area. The retail business
has been recovering. The impact upon the operation in the retail
industry posed by the surge of e-business gradually surfaced, not to
mention the effect brought by high rents, high wage and other rising
costs. Apart from the tough business environment, the Group still
attained reasonable operating results.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EERWRE(E)

In 2018, retail industry was generally operating under difficulties.
Despite the negative factors, the Group has made changes to
its operation and recorded a stable operating result. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group has recorded revenue
from continuing operations of approximately RMB710.3 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 2.9%. Gross
profit from direct sales except online sales was approximately
RMB84.0 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 7.6%, and consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately RMB25.2 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 24.1%. The increase was
principally attributable to the increase in rental income from sub-
leasing of a shopping mall, interest income from financing services,
and rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises. However, the
drop in sales of goods and commissions from concessionaire sales
have partly offset the overall increase of income.

During the year, the Group has commenced its first outlet store in
Shajing to respond to market trend. Besides, the Group has opened
another cinema in Songgang store to explore new business. In the
training and education aspect, the Group has set up a Baijiahua
Institute to strengthen learning and talent development to spread
the Group’s operating idea. Besides, the second shopping mall of
the Group has been underway at end of the year which is located at
Guanlan of Longhua district in Shenzhen to capture market share.
In addition, internal structure of major stores has been reformed to
account for responsibility management and streamline operation
work flow. On the outflow side, the Group has disposed of the
subsidiary operating theme restaurant and goose pot to alleviate the
fund pressure.

On the administration aspect, the Group has implemented various
measures to maintain its operational efficiency and minimize
operating costs in relation to the human resources system.
Recruitments through various channels such as recruitment fair,
head hunting, campus recruitment were held during the year,
which enhanced the quality and technical knowledge of new staff
members for preparing new business in future. With regard to risk
management, the Group has expanded the overall risk management
framework by enhancing the internal system, internal control,
education and introduction, and special investigation.

On the investment horizon, the preparation work of the second
shopping mall has been commenced. It will bring new shopping
experience to the residents and visitors in Guanlan Longhua
district of Shenzhen. Looking forward, our business will be more
diversified as the Group will continuously explore viable investment
opportunities by making good use of the resources raised from the
Listing to increase the return to shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
EERWRE(E)

PROSPECTS

It is anticipated that the slowdown in economic growth rate of China
will exist as the high operating cost will extort the profit margin
which led to more business merger in the industry in 2019. The
traditional retail store will be highly conglomerated with online store
by sharing customer data, product information and sales tactics
such that to provide a more enjoyable and convenient shopping
experience. Apart from this, multi-industries development will
be a main stream in retail sector. The China retail market will be
highly consolidated into various large operators to make use of its
corporate marketing power and ability, and to increase the market
competitive strength.

The Directors believe that both opportunities and challenges await
ahead, and the retail industry will compete and develop in a better
market environment.

In business development aspect, the Group will uphold the principle
of “consolidating resources and developing retail chain business”,
to strengthen the management, reiterate the competitive strength,
upgrade the brand image and expand in a stable manner. The
Group will focus on the development in areas such as Guangdong
and Guangxi by making use of different expansion models including
“acquisition, merging, investment holdings and joint venture”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group, and would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders,
business partners, and valuable customers for their utmost support
to the Group.

Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
28 March 2019
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT ~
EENEEEEAESHE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (¥EfE3#), aged 58, is the founder, executive
Director and the chairman of the Group. He is responsible for
the overall management, strategic planning and major decision
making of the Group. Mr. Zhuang is the father of Mr. Zhuang
Xiao Xiong. Mr. Zhuang has over 20 years of experience in the
retail industry. He had served as a honorary deputy chairman
of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce (#YIT4E€), a
committee member of Guangdong Province Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (RIHEREZE®), a
member of the China General Chamber of Commerce (1 Bl %
%&9), a deputy chairman of Shenzhen Private Entrepreneur’s
Chamber of Commerce (ZYITTR & HEKEE), a deputy chairman
of Shenzhen Franchise Association (RIITEEEETEH D),
and a honorary chairman of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber
of Commerce (RYIBLRMEEE). Mr. Zhuang graduated from
Guangdong Administrative and Management College (&R 1TH £
Bt) majoring in modern management in July 1999, and obtained
the Master of Business Administration of senior management
from the Sun Yat-sen University (F1LAXZ2). He also received the
award of “Paragon of Work” of Guangdong province (&R & 4 &)
REFESE) in May 2003 and the award of Outstanding Staff Care
Private Ownership Entrepreneur (EBATETIEFTRELER)
in September 2006. He was elected as the Top Ten Person of
the Year in Commerce of Guangdong in 2007 and the Top Ten
Creditable Entrepreneur in the Integrated Retail Industry in China
in the year 2007 and 2009 respectively, and the deputy chairman
of the Hong Kong Volunteers Federation in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 24 years.

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong (§7158), aged 57, is an executive Director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. He is responsible for
the financial accounting of the Group. Mr. Zhuang obtained an
undergraduate diploma in financial accounting from Guangdong
Radio and Television University (BREEETEAEZ) in 1990
and pursued advanced studies in management in Sun Yat-Sen
University. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in August 1995 and has
over 20 years of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Zhuang was
accredited senior membership of the International Profession
Certification Association (BIBRZE #H2) and membership of the
China Association for Employment Promotion (fFBIFt ¥ (2# &) in
2008 and has obtained a master degree in business administration
from the University of Wales in England in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has
served the Group for over 21 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEASHEE(E)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong (¥t /) #), aged 36. Mr. Zhuang obtained
from the University of Luton, United Kingdom a bachelor of arts
degree in business administration in 2005 and a master of science
degree in finance and business management in 2006. Mr. Zhuang is
the deputy chairman of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce
(Association of the Industrialists and Businessman) (3% 3l i1 42 7%
@ (LB )) and a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen (B 17 # 3l T & 8
&). Mr. Zhuang is the son of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang
Su Lan. He joined the Group as full time member in 2006 and is
responsible for the overall operation management of the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has served the Group for over 13 years.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung (#§8%f), CPA (practising), FCMA, aged
61, is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chin is a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Chin was appointed independent
non-executive director of Excalibur Global Financial Holdings
Limited (SEHK: 08350) on 12 January 2018. Mr. Chin has served
the Group for over 11 years.

Mr. Sun Ju Yi (R® =), aged 66, graduated from the Finance and
Economic Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978 and underwent
a master research study program at the Finance and Economics
Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978. He is a senior accountant
and a registered accountant in the PRC. He had been a lecturer
of the Finance and Economic Institute of Tianjin and the assistant
to the principal of Shenzhen Zhong Hua Accounting Firm. Mr. Sun
has over 30 years of experience in financial lecturing, accounting,
auditing and corporate financial management. Mr. Sun was an
independent non-executive director of Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd (formerly known as Macau Investment Holdings
Limited) (SEHK: 02362). He is a director of Gemdale Corporation
(&% B) (600383.SH), a listed PRC Shanghai property developer.
Mr. Sun has served the Group for over 6 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEASEE(E)

Mr. Ai Ji (X&), aged 65, graduated from Hunan Radio and
Television University (415 E#EE 15 AZ) with a bachelor’s degree
in law and obtained the qualification of a practising lawyer in
1988. Mr. Ai is a practising lawyer in the PRC, has worked for
Hunan Chuhua Law Firm (8% Z£EN %75 AT) and Guangdong
ShenTianCheng Law Firm (&R &KX ERIETSAT), and is a senior
partner of the Yingke Law Firm (B #HEEM S #5F7). He is a member of
the standing committee of the fifth session of National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (Shenzhen)
(FREARBAHEEHZAYTZEZEE), a member of various
committees (including member of the sixth and seventh sessions
of standing committee of Guangdong, deputy chairman of legal
system committee, and deputy chairman of the fourth and fifth
sessions of Shenzhen committee) of the China Democratic National
Construction Association (A B R FEZBIE). Mr. Ai practised as a
legal counsel and has accumulated over 37 years experience in
various commercial and law firms in the PRC. Mr. Ai has served the
Group for over 11 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Li Chong (FR¥£), aged 43, is the manager for
the engineering department of the Group, responsible for the
establishment of engineering and facilities management system,
purchase of bulk equipment, and project based renovation program
etc. Mr. Chen obtained the certificate of Housing Architecture
from the Fujian Agriculture And Forestry University and is a PRC
registered civil engineer. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2003. He has
extensive engineering facilities management experience. Mr. Chen
has served the Group for over 16 years.

Mr. Li Dong (Z#), aged 44, is the manager responsible for
security and safety management of the Group. Mr. Li obtained a
certificate of Business Administration from the Open University of
China in 2011. Mr. Li has served as store manager, deputy manager
of the human resources department, the chief operation officer,
the general manager of the Guangxi subsidiary and the deputy
manager of the procurement department. Mr. Li has over 17 years
of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Li has served the Group for
over 15 years.

Mr. Lu Hua Gui (E#¥5), CIA, CMA, aged 35. Mr. Lu is the
manager of human resources centre and risk management centre,
responsible for the management of human resource, Baijiahua
Institute, internal control, and legal affairs etc. Mr. Lu obtained
from the Shenzhen University, China a bachelor of science degree
in biotechnology in 2006, obtained from the Sichuan University a
master of business administration degree in 2011 and completed
the finance and law postgraduate programs in Xiamen University
and China University of Political Science and Law respectively
afterwards. He possesses the qualifications of Certified Internal
Auditor and Certified Management Accountant. Mr. Lu had worked
as risk control manager of the Shenzhen Rapoo Technology Co.,Ltd
(SZSE: 002577) and risk management and internal control manager
of Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. Mr. Lu has served the Group for
over 1 year.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEASHEE(E)

Mr. Li Fei (), aged 41. Mr. Li is the manager of commercial
management department, responsible for the strategic
development planning, business positioning and invitation, and
operation management etc. Mr. Li obtained the bachelor of public
relation from the Jiangxi Normal University in 1997. He possessed
ample experience and had worked as managers of Seazen Holdings
Co., Ltd, Commercial management and Department stores of
Wanda Group, Guoda Real Estate Development Ltd of Guangzhou,
and Tianrong Trading Ltd of Dongguan. Mr. Li has served the Group
for over 1 year.

Mr. Wen Meng Chen (BR&=E), aged 41. Mr. Wen is the deputy
manager of supermarket procurement department, responsible for
the commodity sourcing and resource allocation. Mr. Wen obtained
the bachelor of business administration degree of Xi’an Jiaotong
University. Mr. Wen joined the Group in 1997 and had been working
as store-in-charge of Shajing store, Longhua store, Shiyan store,
and Gongming store etc. He possessed rich experience in retail
commercial complex management. Mr. Wen has served the Group
for over 20 years.

Mr. Wang Wan (£#), aged 36. Mr. Wang is the manager of
business invitation in commercial management sector, responsible
for the shopping mall business invitation and resource allocation.
Mr. Wang obtained the bachelor of law degree from the Zhongyuan
University of Technology. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2016 and
had been working as managers of Better Life Group of Guangxi,
Jimei Wanda Group in Xiamen, Fuging Wanda Group in Xiamen,
Putian Wanda Group in Xiamen, and Shenzhen Haiya Mega Mall
Commecial Ltd. He possessed rich experience in shopping mall
business invitation and commercial management. Mr. Wang has
served the Group for over 1 year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo (i #l), FCCA, CPA, ACIS, ACS, aged
45, is the finance manager and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Ho obtained bachelor degree of Business Administration
(Honours) in Accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in 1995 and a master degree in Corporate Governance from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (“ICSA”). He was
awarded the Chartered Governance Professional qualification of the
ICSA and HKICS on September 2018. Mr. Ho has experience in
accounting, auditing and corporate finance. Mr. Ho has served the
Group for over 11 years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

The year 2018 was the tenth anniversary of the global
financial crisis. The global economy was still weak and the
high level risk unresolved. Trade protectionism reappears
and brings pressure to the world economy. On one side,
the growing trend of world economy did not prolong to
current year. The recovery pace of economic zones in Euro-
American diverged with major economic entities, reached
their climax, but the new economies experienced financial
unrest. On the other side, the USA has launched trade
dispute which was against the trade globalization, arousing
civil rights, and promoting political conflicts, which posted
threats to the economic development.

During the year, the global economic expansion slowed
down with multiple factors including world trade tension,
USA tight monetary policy, appreciation of and strict
control on US dollars etc. From the economic viewpoint,
USA performed well, the Euro zone was dragging, the
emerging entities kept high growth rate, and the remaining
grew slowly. From the financial viewpoint, the developed
countries was growing stably but still lagged behind, the
emerging entities experienced currency depression, capital
outflow, stock market declined and loan repayment pressure
increased.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

China was putting forward the “Belt and Road initiative” to
boost domestic employment and economy in 2018. The
social consumable retail goods was kept stable, with high-
tech and service spending grew fast. The portion of resident
service spending increased steadily, especially in cosmetic,
electric appliance and tele-communication products.
This was accelerated by the integration of supply chain,
e-commerce and digital spending advancement.

Online retail turnover has breakthrough during the year.
China retail industry has reformed to adapt the new world,
such as closure of stores, operating transition, withdrawal of
overseas brand name, online to offline integration, closure
of famous star stores, luxury products online offering, de-
popularize of foreign brand name, acquisition of international
brand, and water-testing of local beverage operator abroad
etc.

According to the statistics released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, GDP for the year amounted to
RMB90,000 billion, representing a 6.6% increase over
last year. Total retail sales of social consumer goods for
the year was RMB38,100 billion, representing an year-on-
year (“YOY”) growth of 9.0%. Among them, retail sales of
“over-the-threshold” consumer goods grew by 5.7% on
an YOY basis to RMB14,500 billion. Retail sales of urban
consumer goods rose by 8.8% to RMB32,600 billion YOY,
while retail sales of rural consumer goods rose by 10.1% to
RMB5,500 billion YOY. By consumption pattern, retail sales
of commodities went up 8.9% to RMB33,800 billion YOY.
During the year, total domestic online retail sales amounted
to RMB9,000 billion, representing an YOY growth of 23.9%.
Among them, commodity goods online retail sales grew by
25.4% on an YQY basis to RMB7,000 billion, accounting for
18.4% of the total retail sales of social consumer goods. The
growth in the food and drink, apparel and daily consumption
categories were 33.8%, 22.0% and 25.9% respectively.
The annual per capita income amounted to RMB28,000. On
further breakdown, per capita disposable income of urban
residents amounted to RMB39,000, increased by 7.8% as
compared with last year; Per capita disposable income of
rural residents amounted to RMB15,000, increased by 8.8%
as compared with last year.
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Overall, online sales grew significantly attributable to
expansion of internet users and logistic channel. With the
new techniques derived from Big Data, artificial intelligence
and mobile internet, supermarkets and professional stores
explored new sales channel. This resulted in the fast growing
of some traditional retail, and integration of newly emerge
and traditional industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

At year end date, the Group has directly operated 11
retail stores and 1 shopping mall with a total gross floor
area of approximately 183,000 square meters, principally
located in Guangdong (including Shenzhen and Foshan)
and Guangxi provinces. Among them, ten retail stores
(total gross floor area of approximately 146,000 square
meters) are operating as retail outlets and one (total gross
floor area of approximately 2,000 square meters) is used
for leasing purpose. For the ten retail outlets, eight of them
are in Guangdong (seven in Shenzhen and one in Foshan)
and the remaining two are in Nanning Guangxi. In the first
half year, the Group has been operating 5 restaurants (four
main theme restaurants located in Nanshan, Longgang
(Bantian and Longcheng) and Baoan Central District of
Shenzhen) and one Chinese restaurant (located in Longgang
Shenzhen). The subsidiary which operated these restaurants
has been disposed of during the year due to operating loss.

During the year, the Group has operated its first shopping
mall with approximately 35,000 square meters located at
Bantian Longgang of Shenzhen. All stores have commenced
business in the busy zone nearby. At year end, the Group
has started the preparation works of its second shopping
mall with approximately 32,000 square meters located at
Guanlan Longhua of Shenzhen. Business invitation and
interior design works has begun. The shopping mall is
located the central district of the Guanlan street which is the
intersection point of the Shenzhen metro station and tram
station with high people flow.

Besides, the Group also owns a four-floor commercial
property located in Baoan Central District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong. Except for part of one floor being used as the
Group’s own headquarters, all other commercial floors have
been fully leased out for rental purpose.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

Reform the content of main stores to introduce the
new spending mode

During the year, the Group has transformed its first store
to outlet store in Shajing to adapt to the new retail trend.
Shajing Baijiahua Outlet is located near to the Shenzhen
Baoan International Airport, the connection point to the
major cities around the country. It targeted to be a best
quality products selling point in western Shenzhen and
provided the largest brand name discount store in the 20
km spending circle. With the commencement of business on
September 2018, the consumer group is gradually formed
and expanding. The Group will launch more promotion
activities to stimulate customer flow, renew and update more
brand name, and provide better service to customers. The
Shajing Outlet will become the attractive shopping arcade in
the western Shenzhen.

Besides, the Group has established a cinema in Songgang
store. This aimed to explore more shopping and leisure
experience for customers. After the cinema in Longhua
store, the Songgang cinema was another trial run. The
cinema brought new shopping experience to customers
and stimulated the flow of the store in both headcount and
revenue. The Group will continue to try new shopping mode
to boost customer flow and enhance customer loyalty.
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Establish the in-house training department to
assist operating procedure enhancement

Baijiahua Institute was set up in 2018 to promote learning
spirit and talent development. Managers will act as speakers
on various topics covering basic knowledge and technique
in retail industry, personal behavior and life planning. This
aimed to provide on-the-job training, career development
and leadership ability.

On the training area, irregular seminar equipped with
electronic software platform will be held. Discussion topics
included management skill, technical knowledge and
general operation technique will be covered. On the career
development, practical knowledge including learning path,
mentorship program, ability matching model, career path
orientation, and rotation training etc will be introduced. On
the leadership aspect, ability development, team building
skills, and manpower reserve will be the highlights of the
seminar. The Institute, as a corporate university, focused on
learning and talent development, and provided support to
the Group for long term development.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Prepare another shopping mall to compete for
market share

At year end, the Group has prepared for the second
shopping mall in Guanlan Shenzhen, after the Bantian
shopping mall. It is located at the old centre of Guanlan,
and will be the intersection point of the Shenzhen Metro line
(construction in progress) and the Shenzhen Tram, which
has a definite competitive advantage in future. The Guanlan
shopping mall has been interiorised by renowned design
house in China focusing on scenario, experience and trendy
style. The mall will provide a one-stop shopping arcade
advocating family gathering, social networking and leisure
enjoying platform for the residents and visitors nearby. On
the brand name selection, we have invited online best sellers
to station in our store with strategic planning on sales floor
mix. The portion of sales floor for entertaining, catering, and
product selling will be strictly control and stick to overall
planning of the mall. We have signed lease agreements
with supermarket and cinema operators, and the liaison
with other well-known catering and leisure brand name is
underway. The Guanlan shopping mall will attract many
potential customers in the surrounding area which are mainly
the luxury residential district. The consumption community
is young and life enjoying. This will have a positive impact to
the result of the Group after its commencement of business
targeted at the third season in 2019.

Implement operational accountability system to
streamline working procedure

At the end of 2018, the Group has reformed its
organizational structure of five major stores. This
encompassed from business to management area. Each
store was divided into two main operating divisions -
supermarket and commercial affair. Each division has
its own manager-in-charge with independent authority
and responsibilities. The human resources of the stores
have been fully utilized to avoid duplication of duties and
communication problems. Under the leadership of a division
manager, a working group has been formed to implement
its own policies and pursue its own goal. The main aim of
the separation of operating sections and defining duties
and responsibilities of division managers was to promote
entrepreneurship in the operating divisions. Together with
the establishment of Baijiahua Institute and the reformed
staff incentive scheme, we hope to increase the market
competitiveness of the two core business divisions.
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Dispose of a subsidiary operating the main theme
restaurants and goose pot restaurant to alleviate
investment fund pressure

The Group has disposed of its subsidiary operating four Hello
Kitty restaurants (located at Nanshan district, Longgang
district (Longcheng Center and Bantian) and Baoan Central
district of Shenzhen) and one Chinese style goose pot
restaurant (located at Longgang district of Shenzhen).
As the restaurants are still in its infant stage, there is
longer investment horizon and will create pressure on the
investment fund of the Group. After careful consideration
and market survey, the Group has found a buyer for package
buyout. The western restaurant targeted on youth and family
for their quality spending. The Chinese restaurant produced
village style tasting and cooking recipe targeting on the
matured and old fashioned customers. As the disposal price
was reasonable and has positive effect to the Group, it was
decided to proceed the disposal to obtain fund for other
alternative investments.

Obtain multiple awards to recognize the corporate
contributions

During the year, the Group has obtained various awards
from the public sector. In August 2018, the major operating
subsidiary of the Group — Shenzhen Baijiahua Department
Stores Co Limited (“Baijiahua Department Stores”) received
honorary certification from Guangdong Chain Operations
Association as “Top 50 Guangdong Chain Store in 2017”
for recognition of its leading position in the retail industry
of the province. In December 2018, Baijiahua Department
Stores received title from Shenzhen Chain Operations
Association and Shenzhen Retail Business Association as
“40th Anniversary of Economic Reform — Famous Store
in Shenzhen” for recognition of its good reputation and
corporate responsibility towards Shenzhen. In January
2019, Baijiahua Department Stores received title from
the joint award ceremony of Shenzhen General Chamber
of Commerce, Shenzhen Media Group and Shenzhen
Newspaper Group as “The ninth session — Shenzhen
Traditional Store” for recognition of its well-established and
reputable business in the past. The Group will do our best in
future to thank for the compliment and appreciation.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

HE-RKETBEEERIBBRE
HEZKMBAR  REEEES
59

SEMFRERLT —KHBARK
BORETHFHEIEHER (D RIMLR
FYIm LR - e @R ES - RE
HEREZPLUE) R—FKPANHK
JE— B R (LR ERIRAE
B)  HNDEXBBEHEE - X8
EFRHHEL - N ELERERATH
K SEEEeE BN - &
BEAFEREMSHTR  HAYE
T—EER - (ERHEWE - AEREN
FEAMRERFRAZH  DE0F
FAOBBERER - A ERAZEN
OREBRRMET - TIRA—F
NREEHRER - AREBRERKE
AAYEERLEERE  SERTH
ERBYERLEREEMAITR
& o

EWMEAKREK RBLEER

RER EFERZHFEREARHR
AER _E—N\FNA £EETE
MEBARRIMEEEEEERAR
([AEEE)SEEREEEEH
HERT [2017FE FEREH0HEE
BEE| BRAEREANRTEEY
AIFHe c —E—N\F+=-A " B
EHELERYIMEHLCE RS R
NMEERERSEMZNTFERT
[BRERM40FF — FYNB 1 RIE T8
R EREARIE A EESELE
PZRITBERABTDEMMA
—T-NF—A BEEGELEZR
ImEEBEe  RNEBEFER
EEMFYIREER S I 2 BiEHRE
PR 2 ENE [FRIIZFH ISR
BRENFIME 2 SEEERER
RS2 HAL - EESHES S 0 B
HIHBERERNBAREZ RS LT
{g °



ManagementDScusmonandAnaWsB(Conﬁnuem

EEETwWR D (&)
(C) OUTLOOK

During the year, the Group has formulated a series
of measure to enhance sales turnover and to avoid
unnecessary costs, so as to achieve management target.
Moreover, the Group aimed to consolidate the existing
stores by reform and innovation. By this, improvement
in sales mix, upgrade brand name, enhance shopping
experience to provide new shopping experience to
customers.

In addition, the Group has explored new commercial retalil
mode, including shopping mall, trial experience, internet
plus, and tasteful consumption. With the online resource and
shopping outlets, and the synergy of online offline capacity,
the Group is able to provide a one-stop shopping experience
to customers.

The year 2019 has both opportunity and challenge existed,
the Group has prepared to cope with all difficulties, to make
use of our core competency in the industry.

Looking ahead, China is still under the fast pace of
development stage. The macro-economic condition
has significant impact to the industry. Rapid growth in
information technology has direct and critical effect to the
industry. The directors are confident towards the future.
The mission of the Group is to become one of the major
operators in the retail industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEERE D (E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations (that is, the
aggregate proceeds from sales of goods, commissions from
concessionaire sales, rental income from sub-leasing of shop
premises, rental income from investment properties, rental income
from sub-leasing of a shopping mall, and interest income from
financing services) amounted to RMB710.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of 2.9% as
compared to RMB690.1 million in the corresponding period of
2017. The increase was principally attributable to the increase in
rental income from sub-leasing of a shopping mall, interest income
from financing services, and rental income from sub-leasing of shop
premises. However, the drop in sales of goods and commissions
from concessionaire sales have partly offset the overall increase of
income.

Sales of goods decreased by 2.9% to RMB494.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 from RMB509.2 million in the
corresponding period of 2017, principally due to the external
competitive environment and effect on enhancement of store
appearance in two main stores. The new store in Bantian was still
in infant stage and yet contribute significantly to the overall sales
turnover. Sales of goods as a percentage of the Group’s total
revenue from continuing operations was 69.6% for the year ended
31 December 2018 as compared to 73.8% in the corresponding
period of 2017.

Commission from concessionaire sales decreased by 7.1% to
RMB101.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
RMB109.5 million in the corresponding period of 2017, mainly
due to addition of new store in Bantian and extensive promotional
activities of stores. Commission from concessionaire sales as a
percentage of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations
was 14.3% for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to
15.9% for the corresponding period of 2017.

Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises going up by
13.3% to RMB58.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
from RMB51.6 million for the corresponding period in 2017, mainly
due to signing of new tenancy agreements and expansion of leasing
floor area in Guangxi stores. Rental income from sub-leasing of
shop premises as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue from
continuing operations was 8.2% for the year ended 31 December
2018 as compared to 7.5% for the corresponding period of 2017.
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Rental income from investment properties decreased slightly by
0.6% to RMB10.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
from RMB10.1 million for the corresponding period in 2017,
mainly due to no change to existing tenancies. Rental income
from investment properties as a percentage of the Group’s total
revenue from continuing operations was 1.4% for the year ended 31
December 2018 as compared to 1.5% for the corresponding period
of 2017.

Rental income from sub-leasing of a shopping mall increased
significantly by 476.2% to RMB39.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 from RMB6.9 million for the corresponding period
in 2017 due to the full year operation of Bantian shopping mall.
Rental income from subleasing of a shopping mall as a percentage
of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations was 5.6%
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared to 1.0% for the
corresponding period of 2017.

Interest income from financing services increased by 2.2 times
to RMB6.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
RMB2.8 million for the corresponding period in 2017, mainly due
to the addition of a new customer which is a major supplier of a
telecommunication giant. Interest income from financing services
as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue from continuing
operations was 0.9% for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
compared to 0.4% for the corresponding period of 2017.

Other operating income

Other operating income from continuing operations, which
mainly comprised of interest income, net exchange gain,
administration and management fee income, government grants
and miscellaneous income, increased by 13.3% to RMB71.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from RMB63.1
million in the corresponding period in 2017, mainly due to increase
in administration and management fee income and government
subsidies.

Purchase of and changes in inventories

Purchase of and changes in inventories from continuing operations
amounted to RMB410.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing a decrease of 1.9% as compared with
RMB418.4 million in the corresponding period of 2017, due to
decline in sales of goods and tight cost control measure. As
a percentage of sales of goods, purchase of and changes in
inventories was 83.0% for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
compared with 82.2% in the same period of 2017.

HEMERSWARZZE—EFRHPHAR
BI01BEE TP EHE_ZE— N\F
+ZA=+—HLEFEHARBI01EE
T EEARNERSEEHIE - WEWE
HeWAEEHEZE—_T—\F+_A=+—8H
EFEAERBELEEFNRBREBANT S
tbBE1.4%  M_Z—+FREANAE1.5% -

DENEMENEHESBRAB-Z—tFRH
ARBECORAETLIENATE2%EHEZT
—N\F+-A=Z+—BIEFEHARES39.7
BEL TEARNREBEDFRLOEFERE
¥ - REMERSWALETEEZ_Z—N
F+-AZ+ AL FEAEERFELEE
BRRWRANBE DL AE5.6%  M_T—+F
EHIRIA1.0% °

RESHBREZHBERABZZE—+FR
HMARB28EEB TR 22BEHET
—NF+_A=+—"HIEFEHARKEG.1
BEL TEHARRE - ARASEACEZE
SZHERMCTEBFEBIN - RESBRE
ZHBWAEEE—_E—-N\F+-_A=+—
HIEFEAEEFELCEEBNBRANET
D AE0.9% - T —ZE—+FERHIEIA0.4% °

Hap&&E A
REFBBELEEBHEMEERA(EER
EFEBWA ERSRFE - THEAEES
WA - B REMBEA)B =T —+tF
REHOARKEI1EETLEMISINEES

—N\FF+ZA=Z+—HLEFEHARE
71588  TEARTHREAEEBRAR
AT BRI ASE DN BN o

GFERBREH

HE_Z—)\EF+-_A=+—HILFE X
BERECEEBNGEERBREHSBOA
REEAM04BET R_E—tFHRHBHA
REB84FELRED1.9% T EHREE
BEm TBREKRAESSE B2 —\F
+-A=+—HLFE FTERBREZEL

HEERWRAB D A83.0% ' M-_T—+
FREE82.2%
EETEEZERERAT —z-nsan 25



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Increase in fair value of investment properties

Increase in fair value of investment properties decreased from
approximately RMB20.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2017, to approximately RMBO0.5 million for this year, representing a
decrease of approximately 97.5% due to changing conditions in real
estate market.

Staff costs

Staff costs from continuing operations increased by 4.3% to
RMB96.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
RMB92.6 million in the corresponding period of 2017, primarily due
to full year operation of Bantian shopping mall.

Depreciation

Depreciation from continuing operations increased by 25.9%
to RMB41.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
RMB32.6 million in the corresponding period in 2017. The increase
was mainly due to full year operation of Bantian shopping mall.

Operating lease rental expenses

Operating lease rental expenses from continuing operations
increased by 66.1% to RMB108.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 from RMB65.4 million in the corresponding period
of 2017. The increase was mainly due to full year operation of
Bantian shopping mall and the large scale upward adjustment of
rental expenses upon renewal of tenancies of two main stores.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses from continuing operations, decreased
by RMB3.6 million from RMB7.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMBS3.5 million in the corresponding period of
2018. This was primarily due to impairment loss on an available-for-
sale financial asset and provision for compensation on legal claim
last year.

Discontinued operation

The Group was carrying on the food and beverage business through
a subsidiary during the year. It served both Chinese and Western
cuisine with well-known brand names. Due to competitive market
environment and the high amortisation charge in both tangible and
intangible assets, the business suffered a loss during the year. The
results of the food and beverage business and the gain on disposal
of the subsidiary have been disclosed under note 7b and 32 to the
financial statement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Profit before income tax

As a result of the reasons mentioned above, the Group’s profit
before income tax from continuing operations decreased by
RMB42.6 million to RMB33.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 as compared with the profit before income tax from
continuing operations of the Group of RMB76.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense amounted to RMB9.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of 65.9% from
RMB26.7 million in the corresponding period of 2017, mainly due
to tax deductible disposal loss on subsidiaries during the year. The
tax rate applicable to the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 were 25% for general PRC subsidiaries (15% for Guangxi
subsidiary). In addition, pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income
Tax Law, the Group is liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by subsidiaries established in China. The applicable tax
rate is 10%.

Profit attributable to equity Shareholders of the
Company

As a result of the aforementioned, profit attributable to Shareholders
amounted to RMB25.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing a drop of 24.1% as compared with the profit of
RMB33.2 million in the corresponding period of 2017.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group did not have any significant subsequent events
subsequent to 31 December 2018.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB270.9 million (2017: approximately RMB288.8 million). During
the year, the Group did not use any financial instruments for any
hedging purpose.

NET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately RMB119.3 million, an increase of 0.7% from the
balance of approximately RMB118.6 million recorded as at 31
December 2017.

Net assets slightly up to approximately RMB605.7 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB6.0 million or 1.0%
over the balance as at 31 December 2017.
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REVENUE - TURNOVER WA — &2

0.9%
14% 11% g9

[y

14.2%

5.5%

68.8%

0.4%
15% 1 .4'% 7.4%

[y

15.6%
1.0%

72.7%

2018 2017
—B-NFE —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE®TRT ARETT
Continuing Operations: REEEER

O Sales of goods HEE M 494,219 509,167
® Commissions from concessionaire sales EEHEMGRES 101,761 109,525
© Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises D T/EHENTE S WA 58,428 51,5681
® Rental income from investment properties REMENHES WA 10,081 10,146
O Rental income from sub-leasing of a shopping mall S fEWH LTFE S A 39,738 6,897
@ Interest income from financing service REBEERZFERA 6,109 2,808
710,336 690,124

Discontinued Operations: BRI EEER
O Sales of food and catering B REREA 7,902 10,059
718,238 700,183
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GROSS PROCEEDS i8R IEHARE
0.4% 0.2%
37% 25% o 3.1% 04% 0.6%
31.1% 31.0%
61.2% 64.1%

0.5% 0.6%

2018 2017
—B-NF —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETRT

O Sales of goods HES M 494,219 509,167
O Concessionaire sales EEHE 970,532 1,054,112
® Rental income from sub-leasing of shop premises #5428 S WA 58,428 51,581
© Rental income from investment properties FEYENASIWA 10,081 10,146
@ Rental income from sub-leasing of a shopping mall S FE¥H LE9FE S A 39,738 6,897
@ Interest income from factoring service KERBERS ZFBWA 6,109 2,808
@ Sales of food and catering R RZ WA 7,902 10,059

1,587,009 1,644,770

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER TEEAREMER
INFORMATION
Risk Management [2 B & 2

The activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial risks, ANEBEHKEASTIERFER @ 2IEIMNER,
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and & - EZE&ER  FXRER ETREESER -
liquidity risk.

(i) Foreign exchange risk (i) 71N EE [ B
The Group has operation in the PRC so that the majority $%)‘5’;\EP B4R LR - ANEREK
of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash flows are HAOWA - AEXEBEEREHUARE
denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities of the Group ﬁguﬂﬁ MARBEARHEPEEREE
are mostly denominated in RMB and HK$. Any significant HUARE LB TTEE - INERAR
exchange rate fluctuations of foreign currencies against RMB MERNEWENRB T EEARER
may have financial impact to the Group. ERRITTE R o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER

INFORMATION (Continued)

Risk Management (Continued)

(i) Credit risk
For the operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses, the Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. Most of the sales transactions
were settled in cash basis or by credit card payment (or
through online payment platforms). Credit risk on cash and
bank balances is mitigated as cash is deposited in banks of
high credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
loan receivables from factoring and supply chain financing
businesses. In respect of loan receivables, the Group’s
policy is that all customers who wish to obtain loans from the
Group are subject to management review. The Group holds
collaterals directly or indirectly to cover its risks associated
with loan receivables.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

(iii)  Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises on
cash and bank balances and loan receivables. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a policy to
manage the interest rate risk.

(iv)  Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and bank
balances and have available funding to meet its working
capital requirements. The Group’s liquidity is dependent
upon the cash received from its customers. The directors of
the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

Employees And Remuneration Policy

For the year ended December 2018, the Group had 1,282 full
time employees in average in the mainland China and Hong
Kong. The Group continues to recruit high calibre individuals
and provide continuing education and training for employees to
help upgrading their skills and knowledge as well as developing
team spirit on an on-going basis. During the year, total staff
costs were approximately RMB102.2 million. Competitive
remuneration packages are structured to commensurate with
reference to individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and
performance.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2018, capital expenditures
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB74.8 million (2017: approximately RMB94.2
million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, amounting to approximately
RMB7.1 million (2017: approximately RMB17.4 million).

Dividend policy

Under the Dividend Policy, the declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the discretion of the Board in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the articles of association of the Company
and will be dependent upon the Group’s current and recent financial
performance, cash flow position, working capital requirements and
expenditure plan, restriction on distribution of dividends under the
relevant laws, rules and regulations, and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.

In determining any dividend amount for a particular year or
interim period, the Board will also take into account, inter alia, the
consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
the year or period, dividend distributed during the year, and the
retained profits available.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically. There can
be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period or at all.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER
INFORMATION (Continued)

Gross  Average of daily
floor area transactions
Commence (sg.m.) (Supermarket)
operation on Storey EREE SHLHRZYUE
Retail stores B R R R (E7K) (Em)
FY18 Fyi7
20185  2017%
Xixiang dfad 1/10/1997 3 8,806 3,711 4,285
Shajing s 1/5/1999 5 20,978 1,984 2,787
Songgang N 1/1/2001 5 23,134 3535 4,280
Longhua BEE 1/11/2001 5 24549 2605 2,967
Gongming N 1/9/2002 4 21,843 5,369 6,422
Shiyan ok 1/1/2007 1 5852 4,548 4,886
Yanbu 7 1/1/2008 2 7,987 1,761 2,090
Dashatian RPH 1/1/2009 3 8500 2,661 2,590
Sanlian =B 5/12/2009 4 9,600 1,976 2,207
Taoyuan R 30/12/2009 4 14,4983 2,675 2,684
Bantian RH 1/12/2017 1 2927 3,188 62

Average of daily

transactions
(Department store)
BR¥ARZHE
(A8)
FY18 FY17
20185 20175
25 28
404 662
769 886
1069 1,146
1122 1,250
768 749
5 29
121 130
219 237

Estimated no. of
visitors per day

CHESA=LE
FY18 FY17
20185 20174
5417 6,253
3,463 5,001
6,241 7,491
5327 5,963
9,412 11,124
7,707 8,171
2,561 3,073
4,035 3,943
2,865 3,200
4197 4,235
4,622 90

Gross proceeds

per operation area

Gross proceeds per day Average value
Gross proceeds per day BHKEER per transaction
FBREAR SRMBNEAHE FrERIBAE BRRZVFHE
(RMB million) (RMB thousand) (RMB) (RMB)
Retail stores (AREBEET) (AREFT) (ARET) (ARETT)
FY18 FY17 FY18 FY17 FY18 FY17 FY18 FY17
20185 20174  2018%F 20174  2018%F 2017  2018% 20174
Xixiang 7 60.7 67.2 166.5 184.1 20.8 23.1 48.4 47.0
Shajing D3 97.6 155.7 267.6 426.6 13.4 215 107.9 135.9
Songgang e 239.9 257.0 657.3 704.1 34.4 36.9 128.7 132.8
Longhua BEE 287.9 308.8 788.9 846.0 37.7 40.5 166.6 232.2
Gongming ~H 346.1 379.5 948.3 1,039.6 48.4 53.1 130.6 139.8
Shiyan Yok 266.9 268.8 731.3 736.5 155.6 156.8 128.5 132.7
Yanbu 7 26.2 30.6 71.8 83.7 12.0 14.0 325 38.8
Dashatian RPH 62.7 59.2 171.9 162.2 36.7 34.7 60.3 61.9
Sanlian =B 24.3 25.3 66.8 69.3 10.6 111 54.4 29.6
Taoyuan HoR 65.4 64.8 179.2 177.7 18.2 18.1 57.9 65.4
Bantian R 56.4 1.4 154.8 4.0 17.2 - 38.9 73.8
Note: Bt o -

The above-mentioned are unaudited figures and based on internal records.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Group fully acknowledges its obligations to its shareholders and
investors. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
has been in strict compliance with the applicable legal and
regulatory requirements of domestic or foreign securities regulatory
authorities and has been devoted to improving the transparency of
its corporate governance and the quality of information disclosure.
The Group also attaches great importance on communication with
its shareholders and strives to ensure the timeliness, completeness
and accuracy of its information disclosure to its shareholders and
investors and to the protection the interests of investors. The Board
has strictly complied with the principles of corporate governance
and is dedicated to improving the management quality of the
Company and the standard of corporate governance continually in
order to protect and enhance value for shareholders. To this end,
the Company adopted the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
with the aim of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group. Such adoption was reflected in the Company’s Articles
of Association, internal rules and regulations and the corporate
governance implementation practices.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the
year ended 31 December 2018 as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.6.7 of the Code requires that Independent Non-
executive Directors should attend general meeting. Due to other
commitments, one Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company had not attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 May 2018.

Code provision E.1.2 of the Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun, the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2018 due to his
other business engagements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

BOARD

The Board consists of six Directors, of whom three are executive
Directors including the chairman of the Board and three of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Profiles and particulars
of the chairman of the Company and other Directors are set out
under the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior
Management”. The term of service of each Director (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) is three years (two years
for Independent Non-executive Directors). Corresponding to the
term of service, all executive Directors have entered into service
contracts, which are valid for a term of 3 years (two years for
Independent Non-executive Directors) and renewable subject
to the applicable laws. The names of Directors referred herein
are members of the twelveth session of the Board. The principal
responsibilities of the Board include:

- to formulate overall strategies, monitor operating and
financial performance and determine proper policies to
manage risks exposures arising in the course of achieving
the Group’s strategic goals;

- to oversee and review the Company’s internal control
system;

- to be ultimately responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company and to assess the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible way in respect of the interim
and annual reports of the Company, other price-sensitive
announcements and disclosure of financial information
pursuant to the Listing Rules, reports submitted to the
regulatory authorities and information disclosure pursuant to
legal requirements;

- the executive Directors/management in charge of various
aspects of the operations of the Company are responsible
for the management of daily operations of the Company.
The Board is responsible for setting and handling policies,
financial and formulating affairs affecting the overall
strategy of the Company, including financial statements,
dividends policy, material changes to accounting policies,
annual operating budget, material contracts, key finance
arrangements, major investments and risk management
policies;

- the management has received clear guidelines and
instructions in respect of their authorities, especially under
all circumstances to report to the Board and to seek Board’s
approval prior to making any decision or entering into any
commitment on behalf of the Company; and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (E)

BOARD (Continued)

- to review the responsibilities and authorities delegated to the
executive Directors/management on a regular basis and to
ensure such arrangements are appropriate.

The members of the Board fully acknowledge their own duties
and obligations in treating all shareholders on an equal basis and
protecting the interests of all investors. The Company ensures that
documents and information relating to the businesses of the Group
are provided to Board members on a timely basis. The Independent
Non-executive Directors perform their duties in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Company has
received confirmation letters from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Director in respect of their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at least one-
third of the Directors shall retire by rotation at the annual general
meeting and all newly appointed Directors will have to retire at the
next annual general meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible to
offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors and officers against
losses or liabilities sustained or incurred from execution of their
duties. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis or
any intervals as deemed appropriate by the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met periodically to review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from
2 July 2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing
its effectiveness and achieving a high standard of corporate
governance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), talents, skills, knowledge,
length of service and other qualities of Directors. The ultimate
decision of all Board appointments should be based on meritocracy
and the likely contributions that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed such board
diversity policy in the year.

Continuous Professional Development

The individual training confirmation of each director received for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is summarized below:

Directors

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun FrfEsm 4

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong Cagilie e

Mr. Gu Wei Ming (resigned on BHEBPLE(ERZZ—NEF
14 July 2018) + A+ AEHT)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong H/MERE

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BIRERL

Mr. Sun Ju Vi BEEEE

Mr. Ai Ji R
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (E)

COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are
allocated to three committees which operate under written terms of
reference. The composition of the committees up to the date of this
report is set out in the table below:

£Eg

BT EREEMNERETHTED A =
B EEEBEEENZEGHIT - HEAR
R BEAILZEZESNKENT

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
Directors EREZER FMEER REZE®
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (Chairman) HpEmkE(EER) = - -
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong HmBtE - Member X 8 =
Mr. Gu Wei Ming (resigned on BHRLE(ERZE—N\F
14 July 2018) T ATHAEE) = - Member Fk &
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong RS A - - -
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung RIBIE L E Chairman & Member % 8 Member % 8
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BREERE Member iX&  Chairman E£J& Member % 8
Mr. Ai Ji NkikHE Member f 8 Member (X8  Chairman £J&
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREE®
The Company has established an audit committee on 30 April ARRER-_ZZ+FNA=+HEBR LT

2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors who together have substantial experience in
the fields of accounting, business, legal, corporate governance and
regulatory affairs. The audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company
as well as substantial exceptional items, internal controls and
financial reporting matters, which included a review on the audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018.

In addition, the audit committee also monitors the appointment of
the Company’s external independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management. In
addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of all the Directors and senior management.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee on 30 April
2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The nomination committee comprises the three Independent
Non-executive Directors and one executive director (this director
has resigned on 14 July 2018). The nomination committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and management of Board succession.
The responsibilities of the nomination committee are to determine
the criteria for identifying candidates suitably qualified and reviewing
nominations for the appointment of Directors to the Board.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i)
review the Board composition, develop and formulate relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors; (ii)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors; and (iii) assess the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to assess
regularly the diversity profile of the Board and, where applicable,
senior management prepared for Board positions under the
succession planning of the Company and the progress on achieving
diversity objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the year under review, in response to the amendment to
the CG Code effective on 1 January 2019, the Company has also
adopted the Director Nomination Policy. Such policy sets out the
factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution
to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited
to the followings: character and integrity; qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;
diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years old or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;
requirements of independent non-executive directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and commitment in
respect of available time and relevant interest to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (E)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new directors and re-election
of directors at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will
review the Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

Attendance record of the Directors (including attendance by proxy)
is as follows:

EERABRNEITERZTERESUAR
RERAE LEERENERF - RREES
HEHEERBBR (WER) - ARERETT
ZHE -

EX(BEERRKXEFEE)NL L&D
N

Attendance/Number of meetings
HERY/ 2R

Audit Remuneration  Nomination

committee committee committee
meetings meetings meetings AGM

ENZEE HWZEEE REZEE RRAFAS

Board
meetings
EZg
Executive Directors YTES

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun SR 2/3
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong EhRrE 3/3

Mr. Gu Wei Ming BEBLE
(resigned on 13 July 2018)  (BERM=Z—\EtA+=HET) 1/3
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong SR 2/3

Independent Non-Executive ByEHTES

Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BIRELE 2/3
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEEELE 0/3
Mr. Ai Ji YRiEsE 2/3
COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo, is
a full time employee of the Company. During the year, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NARER  NARNER  NATNER 01
N/A A 00  NATER 11
NATER  NATER 0/0 01
NATER  NATER  NATER 01
3/3 0/0 0/0 11
3/3 0/0 0/0 01
2/3 0/0 0/0 11
DNAWE

RRBHRBME - [AIURANELE  RARF]
ZEREE - NFER - ®BENTAIR+R
N RUARBER RS

EERZEOME P BR/RROEL

The Directors hereby confirm their responsibilities for preparing the EZZWEREEFEAQNRTHRENE

financial statements of the Company. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company complied
with the relevant laws and accounting standards and that the

£ BEFHER  ARAPBHRERAORHTE
MEEEREFTE] - BARBERNEE K
RTIB AR R RER - SNEB LA L

Company would publish the financial statements of the Company R EEHNEC2E67H -

at the appropriate time. The responsibilities of external independent
auditor to the shareholders are set out on pages 62 to 67.

EETEEZERERAT —z-nsan 39



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS IN APPENDIX 10 OF THE LISTING RULES
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions of the
Directors of the Company. After specific enquiries to the Directors,
the Board is pleased to confirm that all the Directors have fully
complied with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules during the year under review.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of external independent auditor and reviewing their
remuneration. For the year, fee paid of approximately RMB1.1
million was incurred by the Company to the external independent
auditor as service charge for its audit service of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure,
policies and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to
facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee and the senior
management of the Group (“Senior Management”). The Board
determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the
effectiveness of such systems as least annually, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing directions in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the Senior
Management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans and risk owners are then established for those risks
considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has its risk management and internal
control department to assist the Board and the Audit Committee
in ongoing monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and in performing the internal
audit functions for the Group during the year. Deficiencies in the
design and implementation of internal controls are identified and
recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant
internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee
and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation
actions are taken.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (E)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Continued)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had performed annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the Group’s
ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s
review on risk management and internal control systems; result of
internal audit work; the extent and frequency of communication
with the Board in relation to result of risk and internal control
review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Board considers the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems were effective during the year.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through
the omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Group has established an organizational structure, which sets
out the relevant operating policies and procedures, duties and
authorizations.

AUTHORIZATIONS AND CONTROLS

Executive directors and senior management have been delegated
the relevant authorizations in respect of corporate strategies,
policies and contracting liabilities. Budget controls and financial
reporting systems are formulated by relevant departments and are
subject to review by directors in charge. The Group has formulated
relevant procedures to assess, review and approve significant
capital and recurrent expenses, while operating results will be
compared against the budgets and reported to executive directors
on a regular basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (B)

TRAINING ON INTERNAL CONTROLS

Directors and senior managements participate in internal control
training programmes provided by the Group, which are designed
to equip them with proper and full knowledge on internal controls,
and provide guidance to them to apply internal control systems on
a consistent basis.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM MANAGEMENT

The Group has put in place a comprehensive accounting
management system, so as to provide the management with
indicators to evaluate its financial and operating performance and
financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Any
deviation from expectation will be analysed and explained, and
appropriate steps will be carried out to address issues where
necessary. The Group has set up appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure full, proper and timely record of accounting
and management information, which will be reviewed and
inspected on a regular basis to ensure the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, accounting policies of the Group and applicable laws and
regulations.

CONTINUING OPERATION

During the relevant year, there are no uncertain events or conditions
that may materially affect the continuing operation of Group on a
going concern.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company reports to the shareholders regarding corporate
information of the Group on a timely and accurate basis. Printed
copies of the 2018 interim report have been sent to all shareholders.
The Company places great emphasis on communication with
shareholders and investors of the Company and improving the
Company’s transparency of information disclosure. As such,
designated officers are assigned to handle relations with investors
and analysts. The Company made disclosures in a faithful, true,
accurate, complete and timely manner in strict accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations, Articles of Association and Listing
Rules. At the same time, the Company places great importance in
collecting and analyzing various comments and recommendations
of analysts and investors on the Company’s operations, which
would be compiled into reports regularly and adopted selectively
in its operations. The Company has set up a website, allowing
investors to access updates on the Company’s particulars,
statutory announcements, management and recent operating
affairs. All published annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
announcements since the date of Listing are and will be included
in the “Investors Relations” section of the website. The Company
persistently adheres to its disclosure principle of honesty and
integrity and actively initiates communications with various parties.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (E)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must
be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
putting forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board of the
Company. Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite 715, Ocean Centre, 5 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations
Department)

Fax: 852-36203100

Email: office@szbjh.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.szbjh.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of each member of the Company are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements. The principal activities of
the operating subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018 are operation and management of retail stores and
other related businesses, sales of food and catering, and provision
of financing services in the PRC.

RESULTS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 68.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors propose the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMB1.88 cents per ordinary
share.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, it is expected that the payment of final dividend
will be made on or before Wednesday, 17 July 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company during the year are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 26 to the financial statements
respectively.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable reserves
amounted to approximately RMB253.6 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Associations of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed or cancelled any of the Company’s
listed shares.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong
Mr. Gu Wei Ming

(Chairman)
(Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned on 14 July 2018)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung

Mr. Sun Ju Yi

Mr. Ai Ji

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong and Mr. Chin Kam Cheung shall
retire from office at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting by
rotation. All retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. The re-election of Directors will be individually voted by
Shareholders.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The Company considers that
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are members
of the Company’s audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 11 to 14.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (two years
for Independent Non-executive Directors) unless terminated by
not less than three months’ (two months’ for Independent Non-
executive Directors) written notice of termination served by either
the Director or the Company. Each of the service contracts further
provides that during the term of the service contract and within two
years upon the termination of service, the Executive Director cannot
engage in any business which is competing or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Company.
The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement
and rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation)). The Company’s policies concerning
remuneration of the Executive Directors are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by
case basis depending on the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(if) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the
Board to the relevant Directors under their remuneration
package; and

(i) the Executive Directors may be granted, at the discretion

of the Board, the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in section under “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report on pages 50 to 56, no Director nor
controlling shareholders had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Company. There is no contract of significance between the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or its
controlling shareholder during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required notification to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such Director
and chief executives is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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XVER) 2 g tn - RN KESF - Tzﬁﬁ()
Wdfih%&ﬁﬁf’iﬂﬂﬁﬂ%XV*B%?)S%"*
MEARRRBRAzEEIAR (BIEE
ﬂﬁ@%%%&?%‘ﬁﬂz/\;@% A5 NEE
1B BRI EESRIEHEE 2 R A
B K(b)RIEESH KA E &I 35216785,
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Number of shares/Underlying Shares Held

sk, MHERHBHE

Percentage

of Issued

Personal Family Total Shares

Capacity Interest Interest Interest HE 1T

0 PN N EHEE ROasH

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”) Beneficial Owner 467,985,000 67,500,000 535,485,000 51.61%
SEREsR S A ([ D) BEREAA (Note 1)
(BfHEE1)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong Beneficial Owner 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%

NS E EnAA
Note: iiE=3

(1) 67,500,000 Shares are held by Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan (“Mrs. Zhuang”). Since

Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mr. Zhuang is
deemed to be interested in the said Shares held by Mrs. Zhuang.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executive and their associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so far as
was known to any Director, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
associated Corporation” above), had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Personal/ Percentage
corporate of issued
Type of interest Family share capital
interest Capacity BA interest Total {HEETRA
HmEE 52 A F) KRR At BatE
Mrs. Zhuang Personal Beneficial owner 67,500,000 467,985,000 535,485,000 51.61%
R AR Em#EEA (Note 1)
(Mi3E1)
Note: BiE
1) 467,985,000 Shares are held by Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”). Since Mr. (1) 467,985,000 f ) Bt e e A ([ HESE £ D

Zhuang is the spouse of Mrs. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mrs. Zhuang is deemed
to be interested in the said Shares held by Mr. Zhuang.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known to the
Directors, other than the Directors, who, as at 31 December 2018,
had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
which the Stock Exchange has granted waivers to, but subject to
the disclosure in the annual report under Rule 14A.49 of the Listing
Rules.

1. Lease of two store premises and rental income

received from BJH Group

AYMEEESEHFRAF (Shenzhen Baijiahua Group
Company Limited) (“BJH Group”) is owned as to 90% by
Mr. Zhuang and 10% by Mrs. Zhuang. BJH Group is thus an
associate of Mr. Zhuang and therefore a connected person
of the Company. The Group leased two store premises from
BJH Group, details of which are set out as follows:

(i) Lease of store premises for the Longhua Store
Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 5 April 2005
(“Longhua Store Lease Agreement”) between
BJH Group (as landlord) and Shenzhen Baijiahua
Department Stores Company Limited (“BJH
Department Stores”) (as tenant), BJH Department
Stores leases the store premises situated at Levels
1 to 5, Jiahua Emporium, No. 291 Renmin Bei
Road, Longhua Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a gross floor
area of approximately 24,549.25 square metres
for a term of 15 years commencing from 1 March
2004 and expiring on 28 February 2019 at a
monthly rent of RMB490,985 with triennial increase
of 5% starting from 1 March 2008. Pursuant to a
supplemental lease agreement dated 18 November
2006 between BJH Group and BJH Department
Stores, the parties agreed that if the Company
cannot meet the requirements in respect of
continuing connected transactions (including but
not limited to obtaining approval by independent
shareholders), BJH Department Stores has the right
to terminate the transactions without any payment
or compensation. Pursuant to the Longhua Store
Lease Agreement (as supplemented), the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB7,162,000 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB7,170,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB1,200,000 for the year ending 31
December 2019.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

1. Lease of two store premises and rental income
received from BJH Group (Continued)

(ii)

Lease of store premises for the Songgang Store
Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 30 April 2005
(“Songgang Store Lease Agreement”) between BJH
Group (as landlord) and BJH Department Stores (as
tenant) and as supplemented by two supplemental
agreements dated 18 November 2006 and 29 March
2007 respectively both made between BJH Group
and BJH Department Stores, BJH Department Stores
leases the store premises situated at Levels 1 to
5, Jiahua Emporium, No. 293 Songgang Section
of State Avenue 107, Baoan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a gross floor
area of approximately 23,134 square metres for a
term of 15 years commencing from 1 March 2004
and expiring on 28 February 2019 at a monthly rent
of RMB458,260 during the period from 1 March
2004 to 30 April 2005 and RMB462,680 with effect
from 1 May 2005. The monthly rent is subject to a
triennial increase of 5% starting from 1 March 2008.
Pursuant to a supplemental lease agreement dated
18 November 2006 between BJH Group and BJH
Department Stores, the parties agreed that if the
Company cannot comply with the requirements
in respect of continuing connected transactions
(including but not limited to obtaining approval by
independent shareholders), BJH Department Stores
has the right to terminate the transactions under
the Songgang Store Lease Agreement by giving
written notice to BJH Group, without any payment
or compensation. Pursuant to the Songgang Store
Lease Agreement (as supplemented), the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB6,749,000 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB6,750,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB1,130,000 for the year ending 31
December 2019.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of two store premises and rental income
received from BJH Group (Continued)

1.

52

(iii)

Lease of commercial properties to BJH Group
Certain commercial properties are leased to BJH
Group pursuant to a lease agreement entered into
between BJH Department Stores and BJH Group
for commercial purposes. The amount of rental
income received by the BJH Department Stores in
respect of the leasing of commercial properties was
RMB2,192,889.60 for the year ended 31 December
2018, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB2,192,889.60. The relevant amount which are
expected to be receivable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB2,229,437.76 for the year ending
31 December 2019.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

2.

Lease of three store premises and rental income
received from JH Real Estate
FINTEEFHERZEABER QA (Shenzhen Jiahua Real
Estate Development Company Limited) (“JH Real Estate”) is
owned as to 18% by Mrs. Zhuang and 82% by BJH Group
(a company owned as to 90% by Mr. Zhuang and 10% as
to Mrs. Zhuang). Since Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr.
Zhuang, she is an associate of Mr. Zhuang. Since Mrs.
Zhuang is interested in the equity capital of JH Real Estate so
as to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the
voting power at general meetings of JH Real Estate, JH Real
Estate is an associate of Mr. Zhuang and also a connected
person of the Company. The Group leased three stores
premises from JH Real Estate, details of which are set out as
follows:

(i) Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 6 November
2006 (“Shiyan Store Lease Agreement”) between
JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH Department
Stores (as tenant), BJH Department Stores leases
the store premises situated at Level 1 of Commercial
Podium, Jiahua Hao Yuan, Western Shiyan Avenue,
Shiyan Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC with a gross floor area of
approximately 5,851.50 square metres for a term of
15 years commencing from 16 November 2006 and
expiring on 15 November 2021 at a monthly rent of
RMB222,357 with triennial increase of 5%. Pursuant
to a supplemental agreement dated 6 November
2006 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the parties agreed that if the Company cannot
meet with the requirements in respect of continuing
connected transactions (including but not limited to
obtaining approval by independent shareholders),
BJH Department Stores has the right to terminate
the transactions under the Shiyan Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shiyan Store Lease Agreement, the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB3,108,000 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB3,110,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB3,250,000 for the year ending 31
December 2019.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Lease of three store premises and rental income
received from JH Real Estate (Continued)

2.

54

(if)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 23 February
2009 (“Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement”)
between JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH
Department Stores (as tenant), BJH Department
Stores leases the store premises situated at Level
1 of Commercial Podium, Jiahua Shuyuan Yage,
Southwestern Side of Dabao Road, Xinan Jiedao,
Baoan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately
2,693.69 square metres for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2009 and expiring on 28
February 2012 for a monthly rental of RMB80,810.7.
Pursuant to the Supplementary Lease Agreement
dated 28 January 2010 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the monthly rental has been
reduced to RMB53,873.8 effective from 1 February
2010 to the end of the original lease. Pursuant to
a Supplementary Lease Agreement dated 30 May
2011 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the lease has been renewed to another
three years from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014 with
a monthly rental of RMB53,8783.8. Pursuant to a
Lease Agreement dated 30 May 2014 between JH
Real Estate and BJH Department Stores, the lease
has been renewed to another three years from 1
June 2014 to 31 May 2017 with a monthly rental
of RMB56,567.49. Pursuant to a Lease Agreement
dated 31 May 2017 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the lease has been renewed
to another three years from 1 June 2017 to 31 May
2020 with a monthly rental of RMB56,567.49. The
parties to the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement
agreed that if the Company cannot meet with the
requirements in respect of continuing connected
transactions (including but not limited to obtaining
approval by independent shareholders), BJH
Department Stores has the right to terminate the
transactions under the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement, the total
annual consideration paid by BJH Department Stores
was approximately RMB679,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018, and has not exceeded the annual
cap of RMB700,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed approximately RMB700,000 for the
year ending 31 December 2019.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

2. Lease of three store premises and rental income
received from JH Real Estate (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 25 August 2016
(“Bantian Lease Agreement”) between JH Real Estate
(as landlord) and Shenzhen Baijiahua Commercial
Management Limited (“BJH CM”) (as tenant), BJH
CM leases the shopping mall situated at Level 1-6
of Jiahua Ling Hui Plaza located in the South-west
side of junction of Ji Hua Road and Wu He West
Street, Bantian Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a gross floor
area of approximately 34,743.62 square metres
for a term of 15 years commencing from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2031 for a monthly rental
of RMB1,806,668.24. The parties to the Bantian
Lease Agreement agreed that if the Company cannot
meet with the requirements in respect of continuing
connected transactions (including but not limited to
obtaining approval by independent shareholders),
BJH CM has the right to terminate the transactions
under the Bantian Lease Agreement by giving written
notice to JH Real Estate without any payment or
compensation. Due to delay in hand over of property,
the total annual consideration paid by BJH CM was
RMB14,453,345.92, for the year ended 31 December
2018, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB21,680,018.88. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH CM will not exceed
RMB21,680,018.88 for the year ending 31 December
2019.

Lease of commercial properties to Jiahua Real Estate
Certain commercial properties are leased to Jiahua
Real Estate pursuant to a lease agreement entered
into between BJH Department Stores and Jiahua Real
Estate for commercial purposes. The amount of rental
income received by the BJH Department Stores in
respect of the leasing of commercial properties was
RMB730,040.04 for the year ended 31 December
2018, and has not exceeded the annual cap of
RMB730,040.04. The relevant amount which are
expected to be receivable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB730,040.04 for the year ending
31 December 2019.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of the continuing connected
transactions referred to above are made in the ordinary and
usual course of our business, on an arm’s length basis and on
normal commercial terms which are no less favorable than terms
available from independent third parties. The Directors (including
the Independent Non-executive Directors) confirm that these
transactions have been conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions and are of the view that the
terms and conditions of these transactions are fair and reasonable
and are in the best interests of our Company and our shareholders
as a whole.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors,
are also of the view that the Annual Caps are fair and reasonable as
far as our shareholders taken as a whole are concerned.

The Directors confirm that they have received a confirmation from
its auditor regarding the matters as stated in Chapter 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules for the continuing connected transactions as stated in
para. (1)), (1)(i), (1)(ii), (2)(), (2)(i), (2)(ii) and (2)(iv) above.

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance
with the announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the lease agreements.

The Directors confirm that the disclosure requirement in

accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has been
complied with by the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.2% of
the total revenue for the year and the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, purchases attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 6.3%
of the total purchases for the year and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers and major customers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the Main Board
Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict
of interest with the Company during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the audit committee
before recommending to the Board for approval.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the Company’s newly issued and
listed shares on the Stock Exchange in May 2007 (after deduction
of related issuance expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$265,000,000.

As of 31 December 2018, approximately HK$207,834,000 of
the proceeds so raised was used, and the unused proceeds of
approximately HK$57,166,000 was deposited with banks, the
security of which was adequately ensured.

Details of the used proceeds raised of approximately
HK$207,834,000 are set out as follows:

° as to approximately HK$29,000,000 for acquisition of the
business of a retail chain in Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$28,300,000 for opening of new
stores in Yanbu Foshan and Ronggui Foshan, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,750,000 for opening of a new
store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$4,350,000 for opening of two new
stores in Xian Baoan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$10,400,000 for opening of a new
store in Luohu Shenzhen, the PRC;
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM LISTING

(Continued)

° as to approximately HK$15,800,000 for opening of a new
store in Buji Shenzhen, the PRC;

o as to approximately HK$14,300,000 for opening of another
new store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$3,690,000 for opening of a new
supermarket in Bantian Longgang, Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,800,000 for opening of a
restaurant and two beverage kiosk in Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$3,600,000 for opening of a theme
restaurant and a Chinese restaurant in Baoan and Longgang
Shenzhen, the PRC respectively;

o as to approximately HK$9,200,000 for setting up of a
procurement centre in Shiyan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$12,919,000 for the purchase of
transportation equipment;

° as to approximately HK$15,000,000 for the purchase of
office equipment;

° as to approximately HK$3,000,000 for the upgrade of the
MIS;

o as to approximately HK$725,000 to promote the Company’s
brand image; and

o as to approximately HK$40,000,000 for the refurbishments
of existing retail stores.

The unused proceeds will be used by the Company for the
purposes as set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 8 May 2007.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out in the sections of Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis and Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 6 to 10, pages 15 to 32 and pages 219 to 220
respectively of this annual report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality products and services to its customers
and enhancing co-operation with its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing
Rules will be published within three months after the publication of
the annual report of the Company.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgGHRE(E)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT
IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

The Group is continuously monitoring their compliance to ensure
that the Group abides by such laws and regulations from time
to time. Besides those general laws and regulations such as the
Company Law of the PRC, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Group has also complied in all material respects with
all the laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business of the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board
Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

28 March 2019
Shenzhen, the PRC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R S CTE

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EiE © +852 2218 8288
{558 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiahua
Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 218, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Valuation of investment properties
Refer to notes 2.6, 4 and 12 in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) to be
approximately RMB291,300,000 as at 31 December 2018 with a
fair value gain for the year ended 31 December 2018 recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of approximately
RMB500,000.

We focused on this area because in determining the fair value of
investment properties, significant estimation and judgement were
applied by the management in selecting appropriate valuation
methodology and key input parameters, including yields and future
lease income. To support management’s determination, the Group
engaged an independent external valuer to perform valuation on the
investment properties.

Our response:
Our key audit procedures included:

- assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and reasonableness of the key input and assumptions
adopted in the valuation;

S checking the accuracy of the input data used to supportive
evidence;

S involving an auditor’s expert to assist our assessment on
the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations and
appropriateness of the valuation methodology; and

- evaluating of the independence, competency and objectivity
of the independent external valuer engaged by management
and auditor’s expert.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIEEMRE (E)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEERE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIEEMRE (E)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

BB ES RS BRRAEN
BE(E)

66

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEERE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number P05057

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AEEERWER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

2018 2017
—E-NF —F—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARET T ARETIT
(re-presented)
(E3)
Continuing operations BEKEER
Revenue PN 6(a) 710,336 690,124
Cost of inventories sold BETFERA (410,424) (418,357)
299,912 271,767
Other operating income Hith &2 U A 6(b) 71,509 63,135
Increase in fair value of REME 2 AFEE
investment properties 12 500 20,100
Selling and distribution costs HHE R AR (284,905) (218,184)
Administrative expenses THHEX (49,997) (63,507)
Other operating expenses Hag Mz (3,465) (7,120)
Profit before income tax KR BT 1S5 BT e A 7(a) 33,554 76,191
Income tax expense FriSfif X 8 (9,085) (26,665)
Profit from continuing operations SEICE E R T
for the year 24,469 49,526
Discontinued operation BRIEEEEE
Profit/(loss) from discontinued ERIEEEEBZFA
operation for the year wm AL (ER) 7(b) 734 (16,327)
Profit for the year FR=EF 25,203 33,199
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 E W=
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEHOIEEER
profit or loss: BA :
Change in fair value of equity BAFEFAEMER
instrument at fair value through Wizt o fEm T A
other comprehensive income NEEED) 565 =
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEmKE
for the year 565 -
Total comprehensive income FE>HKEEEE
for the year 25,768 33,199

68 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
meatmkiEE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

2018 2017
—E—N\E&E —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT
(re-presented)
(&71)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable N2 RF#EE AELER

to owners of the Company: =R (ER) -
- Continuing operations —REEEES 24,469 49,526
— Discontinued operation —BRIHEEER 734 (16,327)
25,203 33,199
Total comprehensive income RAREEAEMEZE
attributable to owners of the W sksaEg .
Company:
— Continuing operations —REKEE 25,034 49,526
- Discontinued operation — BRI E 734 (16,327)
25,768 33,199
Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/ FRZAT#EE AEL
(loss) attributable to the owners of %%, (&i#E) 2
the Company during the year: BRERN,(EHE) :
Earnings/(loss) per share — basic and G &F|/(EE) — &K
diluted (RMB cents) LEE(ARESD)
— Continuing operations —FBELEER 10 2.36 4.77
— Discontinued operation —BRIEEEER 10 0.07 (1.57)
10 2.43 3.20
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2018
R=F—N\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 11 182,046 171,127
Investment properties mEYE 12 291,300 290,800
Prepaid land lease EN e 13 12,401 12,662
Intangible assets & E 14 1,305 6,369
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffEe BAFER
other receivables H b pE U Fh1B 15 23,282 19,517
Interests in an associate R—EBE AR 2R 16 - =
Available-for-sale financial asset At ESEE 17 - 3,235
510,334 503,710
Current assets REBEE
Inventories and consumables FERSFER 18 52,576 47,190
Trade and loan receivables EWE GRFINER 19 60,859 45,493
Deposits paid, prepayments and BffEe  BAFEK
other receivables Hth pE U Fh18 15 53,087 57,206
Cash and bank balances RS RIRTTER 20 270,896 288,817
437,418 438,706
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables BB SRR 21 172,003 194,499
Contract liabilities aHatE 22 23,619 =
Coupon liabilities, deposits received, Zg&E - 2igS -
other payables and accruals HitpEN B L ETER 22 110,451 111,208
Amount due to a director BN —RBEERIA 23 59 59
Provision for taxation TR IE B 11,961 14,393
318,093 320,154
Net current assets REBEEFEE 119,325 118,552
Total assets less current liabilities BEERATERS 629,659 622,262
Non-current liabilities FnBER
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 24 23,931 22,486
Net assets EEZRE 605,728 599,776

70 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
eI (E)

As at 31 December 2018

R=E—N\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E—N\E&E —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

EQUITY R
Share capital B& 72X 25 10,125 10,125
Reserves HE 26 595,603 589,651
Total equity FELHEKE 605,728 599,776
Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
HERE 3 M A
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FAARRARGRR

Statutory Investment Property
Share Share  Statutory  welfare  Merger revaluation Other revaluation Translation  Retained  Dividend

capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  proposed
EERA REEMH VEEL

ROEE EERE B¢ ofiRfE i EbRE fiff HEEE REEY BERE

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARETT ARMTT ARETT ARETR v T T T T

At1 January 2017 RZE—t%
—-A-A 10126 252478 59,223 2,286 12,313 = (182) 431 (969) 230,812 25,004 591,581
Profit and total EREfR2E
comprehensive income [ £E%8
for the year - - - - - - - - - 3199 - 3199
Dividend approved for 2016 ~E—7%2
EHERE o . . . . = = = = = - P00 5000
Proposed final dividend for ~ ~E—+F &k
017 RERE o) - - - - - - - e - (19816 19816 =
Trangfer to statutory reserve  EHZETERE - - 5492 - - - - - - bR - -

At 31 December 201785 HZE—+E
originally presented t-A=1-8
(B%25) 10125 252478 64,715 2,280 12,313 - (182) 431 (969) 238,708 19816 599,776

Iniial application of BRERBRER
HKFRS 9 SERIZR Yl : - - - - [ - - . - )

Restated as 1 January 2018 #=F—\&

—-R-REJ 10125 252,478 64,715 2,286 12,373 (7,565) (182) 431 (969) 246,268 19,816 599,776

Proft for the year ERER - - - - - - - - - 25,203 - 25,208
Changeinfairvaueof  BAFEFAER
equity instrument at ENE ER
farvale throughother ~~ TEATEES

comprehensive income - - - - - 565 - - - - - 565

Total comprehensive ERrENEEE
income for the year - - - - - 565 - - - 253 - 25768

Transfer upon disposal REERDTE
of a financia asset at HALH2E
farvalue through other Wiz 45 4%
comprefensive income &% - - - - - 7,000 - -

(7,000 - -
Disposal of a subsidary ~ HE-FEHEAR - - - - - - 182 - - (182 - -

Dividend approved for 2017 —E—+ %7
HERS 9b) - - - - - . - . R

(19816) (19,816

Proposed final dhidend ~~ —E—/\E# R

for 2018 8he %) - - - - - - - - - (19505 19505 -
Transfer to statutory reserve. - EHEEFER - - 1507 - - - - - - (1,507) - -

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE
+-B=t-8 10125 252,478 66,222 2,286 12,313 - - 43 (969) 243,217 19,505 605,728
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=N o~ —§
GERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z-\F+-_A=t+—RHIEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before income tax

RETHNRERE
BRAEBATNER, (B1R)

2018
—E-N\E
RMB’000

AR®BT R

2017
—T—+F
RMB’000
ARET T
(re-presented)

(7))

— From continuing operations —REBECLER 33,554 76,191
- From discontinued operation —REDRIEEEER 7(b) (11,607) (16,327)
21,947 59,864
Adjustments for: RATBRBELFE :
Interest income F B A 6(b) (4,309) (5,127)
Depreciation of property, plant and WE  BEMRENE
equipment 7 43,951 35,679
Obsolete inventories written-off and PREFEMENEEERE
inventories loss 7 249 188
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HEME¥ - BE K&
equipment REHEE 7 706 12
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TS L i S 5 7 261 261
Increase in fair value of investment WEME N TEIEGIN
properties 12 (500) (20,100)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESHE 7 1,663 4,856
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale —JEA#HHESREEY
financial asset WIEEE 7 - 3,484
Impairment loss on an intangible asset ~ —IBMLEE 2 FEEE 7 - 1,773
Impairment loss on other receivables HAb W IE 2 BEEBE 7 1,828 -
Provision for a legal claim —IHEERE B 7 - 3,159
Written-off of property, plant and YE - B MR B
equipment 7 - 476
Written-off of an intangible asset — TR E EM N 7 1,399 -
Operating profit before working capital & & & B &) A48 2% 7
changes 67,195 84,525
(Increase)/decrease in inventories and & M FFER(EM) wD
consumables (6,216) 5,443
Increase in trade and loan receivables — FEULE 5B 7 & & 203 hn (15,366) (25,725)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid, BEfES - ENREREAM
prepayments and other receivables FEUFE R A, (#n) 1,294 (4,240)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables  ERTE ZFERCHL) /180 (21,147) 2,030
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEEM 8,957 =
Increase in coupon liabilities, deposits ~ BZ&E - EWigS « Hit
received, other payables and accruals  JEfT3RIE & EET & A N 39,426 45,893
Cash generated from operations RIS IE 4 74,143 107,926
Interest received B CRLE 4,309 5,127
Income tax paid B ATEH (10,072) (18,839
Net cash from operating activities AERBTR R 2 %58 68,380 94,214
EETEEZERBRAT -z 558 73



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERSRERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in deposits paid and

Notes

B aE

?ﬁﬁ/ﬁg E’Jiﬁrﬁlllbs
BN RE RN FIRE M

PIGE:
—E-N\F
RMB’000
ARBT R

2017

—tF
RMB’000
ARET T
(re-presented)

(7))

prepayments (3,514) (13,376)
Purchase of property, plant and BAME - BEREE

equipment (71,948) (94,167)
Purchase of intangible assets BABFEE (490) (1,500)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BERRE

plant and equipment ARS8 115 7
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash & —fHE W%’D\ A

disposed (MBREERS) 32 9,352 -
Proceeds from disposal of HE—HAHEESR

an available-for-sale financial asset BESHAE - 33
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits n= flﬂ B 81T

maturing over three months FRRAD,/ (1hn) 20,000 (8,254)
Net cash used in investing activities REZE AR FE (46,485) (117,257)
Cash flows from financing activities REEFENRERE
Dividends paid to owners of ENARATHAEARE

the Company (19,816) (25,004)
Net cash used in financing activities BEZEEAE 2 FEE (19,816) (25,004)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BRERELZEEYE I

cash equivalents (D) 38 2,079 (48,047)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BHNEEE

1 January BHEZEY 258,817 306,864
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—HK

31 December ReRBESEEY 20 260,896 258,817
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT-\E+-_A=+—RALEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered
office and its principal place of business are located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and Level 4, Jiahua
Ming Yuan, 2146 Xinhu Road, Baoan Central District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) respectively. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 were approved for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) on 28 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements on pages 62 to 218 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) which
collectively includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
The financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company, and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

—REH
EEBEERBRRA(TARA L)
ERERSTMAIRERREERA
e HAMMERRETELEME
% Bl iz A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
RAEARAMBE([FE])ERER
NHELHROEIRE214658 FEER
A c RRABIRMNEBBER S
FRARAT([EERFT])FR LT -
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MBARZ T BEXKFBHNTBR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B AEERR MI EE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or revised
HKFRS and the impacts on the financial statements, if
any, are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
MG R R MY 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT-\E+-_A=+—RALEFE
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with those used by
other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in
issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT-\E+-_A=+—RALEFE

=
mE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of
the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying amount and recognised the
amount adjacent to share of results of investments
accounted for using equity method in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so
as to write off their cost or valuation net of expected
residual value over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold building 54 years or over the
terms of land use
rights, whichever is
shorter
Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or
over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles and tools 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%

equipment

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is higher
than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment properties
are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group
chooses not to classify and account for these
property interests as investment property.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Payments for prepaid land lease

Payments for prepaid land lease held for own use
under operating leases represent up-front payments
to acquire long-term interests in lessee-occupied
properties. These payments are stated at cost and
are amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis as an expense.

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss and included in administrative expenses.

Franchise
Computer software

3-8 years
10 years

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see note 2.9).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation
surplus.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land lease, intangible assets
with finite useful lives, prepayments and investments
in subsidiaries and associate to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash-
generating unit, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

84

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the Company/group
entities in currencies other than the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it/they
operate(s) (the “functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised in OCI, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in OCI.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Foreign currency (Continued)

2.11

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in
profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary
items forming part of the Group’s net investment in
the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
OCI and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition
(a) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services
is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue is net of value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the goods or service may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

= does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the
transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Sale of goods

The Group sells goods directly to retail
customers within retail stores. Revenue
recognised from sale of goods is
recognised at a point in time when the
product is transferred to the customers.
There is generally only one performance
obligation. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately when the
customers purchase the good.
Discounts, coupons and other cash
incentive to customers are accounted
for as reduction of the transactions
prices.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Sale of goods (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with
customers from the sale of goods
provides customers a right of return.
These rights of return allow the
returned goods to be refunded in
cash. The rights of return give rise to
variable consideration. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until the
associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the
constraint on variable consideration
increases the amount of revenue that
will be deferred. In addition, a refund
liability and a right to recover returned
goods assets are recognised. Since the
amount of return of goods is immaterial,
no adjustments have been made to
opening balances at 1 January 2018 in
regard to change in accounting policy.

Customer loyalty programme and
prepaid gift cards

The Group operates a customer loyalty
programme where retail customers
accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to redeem
award points for discounts in future
purchases. The Group sells prepaid gift
cards to customers for future purchase.
The transaction price of award points
is allocated to the product and the
award points on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Revenue from the
award points and prepaid gift cards
is recognised when the award points
and prepaid gift cards are redeemed.
Contract liabilities are recognised until
the award points and prepaid gift cards
are redeemed. Contract liabilities in
relation to customer loyalty programme
and prepaid gift cards were included in
contract liabilities.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

v)

Commissions from concessionaire
sales

The Group recognised commission
income over time which it is entitled
and is based on certain percentage of
sales made by the concessionaires in
accordance with the terms of contracts.
When they fail to meet the minimum
guarantee income in accordance
with the terms of certain contracts,
the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income as it is the
amount that the Group has the right to
receive. Invoices are usually receivable
from 30 to 90 days.

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases
is recognised in accordance with note
2.12.

Sales of food and catering

The Group sells food and catering
directly to customers within restaurants.
Revenue recognised from sales of food
and catering is recognised at a point
in time when the food and catering is
transferred to the customers upon sale.
There is generally only one performance
obligation. Payment of the transaction
price is due immediately when the
food and catering is transferred to the
customers. Discounts, coupons and
other cash incentive to customers
are accounted for as reduction of the
transactions prices.
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90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Administration and management fee
income

The Group provides administration
and management service to operators
of concessionaire counters and
customers. The administration and
management fee income is recognised
overtime when the Group transfers the
control of services over time based on
the actual service provided to the end of
the reporting period as a proportion of
the total services to be provided, as the
operators of concessionaire counters
and customers receive and consume
the benefits simultaneously. Invoices
are usually receivable from 30 to 90
days.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time
basis on the principal outstanding at the
applicable interest rate.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(viii)

(ix)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract assets are rights to consideration
in exchange for goods or services
that the Company has transferred to a
customer when that right is conditional on
something in additional to the passage of
time.

Contract liabilities are obligations to
transfer goods or services to customer
for which the Company has received
consideration, or for which an amount
of consideration is due from the
customer.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable
consideration, the Group recognises
the amount of consideration to which
it is entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which
the Group is entitled. The amount of
variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(a) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

x)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in
providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is
a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself
(i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services
to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group is an agent). The Group is
a principal if it controls the specified
goods or service before that goods or
service is transferred to a customer.
The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision
of the specified goods or service
by another party. In this case, the
Group does not control the specified
goods or service provided by another
party before that goods or service is
transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be
provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for
concessionaire sales as the Group does
not control the specific goods provided
by the concessionaires before goods
transferred to a customer.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Revenue recognition (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sale of goods and the use by others of the
Group’s assets yielding interest and dividends,
net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised as follows:

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Sale of goods are recognised upon
transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customers.
This is usually taken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the
customers have accepted the goods;

Commissions from concessionaire
sales are recognised upon the sale of
merchandise by the relevant stores;

Administration and management fee
income are recognised on an accrual
basis when the right to receive the
income has been established or as
services are provided according to
contract terms;

Rental income under operating leases
is recognised in accordance with note
2.12;

Interest income is recognised on an
accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of that financial asset on initial
recognition; and

Sales of food and catering is recognised
at the point of sale to customers.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

212

213

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease income receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

The land and buildings elements of property leases
are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification.

Inventories and consumables

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for
resale and are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of merchandise, representing
the purchase cost, is calculated on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make to sale.

Consumables for own consumption are stated at
cost. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IS IRR MR ()
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

Income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Except for goodwill and recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in OCI in which
case the taxes are also recognised in OCI or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018)

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction
price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”): Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Debt
investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective
interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"): Financial assets at FVTPL
include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or
financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Financial assets with cash flows that
are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured
at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria
for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or at FVOCI, as
described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies

applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading,
the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments
at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery
of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCIl and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit loss (“ECLs”) on
trade receivables, contract assets and
financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and
(2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

TESHHEBEE)

216 @I E(E)
(a) SEWIE(H-ZT-N
F-A—HEMERS
sTEER) ()

(i)

BEZRERDF

THEE(E)

MR T B (%)

AEBEGEKE
SRR - AHE
JBE N AR B SH R AN
rECEREE
HREHEERE
B([ B EER
Bl MEBBE
% - FBHEEEE
BIRATHEAF —
HEEHE : (1)
1218 A B # {5
BEEE  EAR
wmEBH%2
& A B ERE
FENEMHER
MEBEES
B REEH
FEHEEEBA -
LSRR E T A
TEFTEAARA

B o oE s
EANEHEE
518 o EETTE
H{EEEER
%ﬁmfﬁﬁﬁ
BASEmEE
ERRNHERE
,Z'],HHFEEJ ©

BHEEEER
EEEROE X
MHEfhE - EE
ERTERES
RN TAKE
MAEEHNES
mE K EIE
HAWER ) P A 3R
TREZMMNE
BT E - ARIA
B E R ERA
KREZHAMR
EH o

—T—\EER 101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR IS ERAR M (4])

For the year ended 31 December 2018
NE+ZA=+—HIEFE

BE—ZT—

2.

102

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure
loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Impairment loss on financial assets

For other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be in default when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2)
the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially
measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised
cost including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, and amount
due to a director are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred
and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)

(1)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets
at initial recognition, depending on
the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. Financial assets at FVTPL
are initially measured at fair value and
all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial
asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within
the time frame established generally
by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of
goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other
types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

TESHHEBEE)

2,16 @I AE(E)
b) ZRMIB(ERZE-Z
—t&+=A=+—8H

ZEETHBR)

(i) EHEE
REEEYTHE
R R T U

BENBNDE
HEMEE - %
DA ARZE
MEREENL
BAVFERE
mATA E b Bl
BENTRAF
BN E S R E
EEEREHNHR
HRAGTE © I
ERIABES
HENTREE
BR 5 HEER
R I LFERR o
AERTAREE
SHEERES
# (R E K
RIRBEBETS
BB BT
F) — AR B FRJAE 2R
NRNEE) B
BERHESHE
o

B K e WRIR
BN R W IR
WA B E 3
FEMNTAIEDT
TeREE- A
I\ E BT
WHIRE B A8
AEF(BE5ME

X
=
S
e
HF
Bk

R BREEME
RMAHNEERE
E - NYIFHER
% ERREK
FRETRAER
M EEIZE B
BT AT 2 28
7 R (B & 18 5
BE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(b)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included
in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
these assets are carried at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised
in OCI, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity
investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.

TESHHEBEE)

216 £@MITA(E)
b) ==MIBE(ERZE=Z
—tE+=ZA=+—H

(i)

BEZRERDF

SETBER) (&)

SBAE(#)
RIS WA
E
HEAE A
R
ZITESBE
ESRBEER
5 B2 S8
A% - MEHR
e BEAER
ATEEAR
FEEDER
Ly
R ERAERX
REETALE
SRz T R

B

N8B ERT
Bz MG HRE
BHEATFETEE
Al SRt EA A H
HERRRE
LA R B 1t K8 4 57
BHess T B
W78 BRIk
HEREERT

BREENITAET
B EEAAN
B T {a] 2 22t Bk
BEEXYIE -

—T—\EER 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.

108

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of
each reporting period, whether there
is any objective evidence that financial
asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of
the debtor;
° a breach of contract, such as a

default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor
because of debtor’s financial
difficulty;

° it becoming probable that the

debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR SRR M (4])

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For loan and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.

For available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investment
that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(b)

(i)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially
measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade and other payables,
accruals, amount due to a director are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial Instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December 2017)
(Continued)

(b)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred
and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS
39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised
when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

217

2.18

Coupon liabilities (accounting policies
applied until 31 December 2017)

Coupon liabilities are recorded as liabilities when
coupons are sold. Coupons used in exchange for
products during the year are recognised as sales and
transferred to profit or loss using the coupon sales
value.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
government, the Group participates in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Retirement Scheme”), whereby the subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC are required to contribute
at rates which ranged from 13% to 19% of the basic
salaries of its employees to the Retirement Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the
PRC. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the Retirement Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Retirement Scheme.
Contributions under the Retirement Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. There are no
provisions under the Retirement Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

2.

TESHHEBEE)

217

2.18

RREGB(RAZE=Z—+
F+ZRA=+—-—HzE&
HR)

EREBENRESELERTIE
BfE - FARBBREMRLAZ
RERERARHELRREER

EBESERER -

EERA

EHREEREA
BEFZANFEBRNEENZH
RiER - YHEBERERMR
IERESHERRBMZERH
FERNGETREELRE -

RBRERERSFIEREAFHEY
RIRER Bl 07 TR o

BIREA
BRI ATAERE ARG - A%
B £ 8 7 BT R AR F T 2
(TERIARETEI]) - ARQBR A
Bz BB A m) AR KE B
HAEEREEBEAFHS13%2E
19% 2 HH - AFEZRKE
MR E S o b5 B A &
EARQRIFBEMBAGAER
BRAREBKEES ZBKEF
BT - AEBEERKFEI 2 M
—EXBFEI T RIRTEE
THTE 2K o BIAFTEIET
HEARELFRIBRNG - B
RETEIE T I 2 Wt 3k aT A
TEHUR BB R Z 16 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
MG R R MY 5 (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT-\E+-_A=+—RALEFE

=
mE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

219

2.20

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate and
are presented separately from the costs.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Provisions, contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Related parties
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(if) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors are determined following the Group’s major
operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-
HKFRSs 2014-2016 time adoption of Hong Kong
Cycle Financial Reporting Standards

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKAS 28,

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Investments in Associates
Cycle and Joint Ventures
Amendments to Classification and Measurement
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment
Transactions
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with
HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 1, First-
time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, removing transition provision exemptions
relating to accounting periods that had already
passed and were therefore no longer applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the periods to which the
transition provision exemptions related have passed.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
clarifying that a Venture Capital organisation’s
permissible election to measure its associates or joint
ventures at fair value is made separately for each
associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group is not a
venture capital organisation.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification
and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the
accounting for the effects of vesting and non-
vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based payment
transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the
terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from
cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does
not have any cash-settled share-based payment
transaction and has no share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for
withholding tax.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
nVT\AHZI-ﬁ%#FX%:ZBﬁ? /IE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: (1) classification and
measurement; (2) impairment and (3) hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018 has resulted in changes in
accounting policies of the Group and the
amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS 3. BHAFISRIETEBIMER
(Continued) HER(4K)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective (@) BREHE] G BB

1 January 2018 (Continued) FREPEAER ——F— \F
—A—BAEXM(E)
EBYBIRE LRSS
AT A (&)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) £OS%— &

(i) Classification and measurement of financial ] AT AMSBENAE
instruments (Continued) (&)
The following tables summarised the impact, TRBMBEEFEY
net of tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the 6 3R 45 A B 55 5% ¥ &
opening balance of reserves and retained —N\F—HA—H

earnings as of 1 January 2018 as follows:

SR BESRRE
BAMEE (1B PIE)

120

UM
RMB’000
ARBT T
Retained earnings REBER
Retained earnings RZE—tF+ZA=+—Hz

as at 31 December 2017 R EF 238,703
Reclassify impairment loss previously SRR REESmEENE

recognised in profit or loss for nERNBEEEENSEE

available-for-sale financial asset to HEENHREE T XM E®D)

investment revaluation reserve

(note (b) below) 7,565
Restated retained earnings RZZE-—NF—HA—HBZ

as at 1 January 2018 iﬁﬂ%mﬁjﬂ 246,268
Investment revaluation reserve REEHREE
Reserves balances at 31 December 2017 WN=—ZT—+F+=-_HA=+—HB2Z

R -

Reclassify impairment loss previously BRI AREESHMEER

recognised in profit or loss for BaERNRESEENDE

available-for-sale financial asset to EREEHFHEHECTXWHEE®D))

investment revaluation reserve

(note (b) below) (7,565)
Restated reserves balance RZE—N\F—A—HZ

as at 1 January 2018 B EEEH (7,565)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in OCI unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in
HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it eliminates
the previous HKAS 39 categories for financial
assets of held to maturity financial assets,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has
no material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies related to financial liabilities and
derivative financial instruments. The impact
of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s classification and
measurement of financial assets is set out
below.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall,
at initial recognition, measure a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. A
financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised costs”);
(i) FVOCI; or (iii) FVTPL (as defined in above).
The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria: (i)
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and (i) its contractual cash
flow characteristics (the “solely payments of
principal and interest” criterion, also known as
“SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be
separated from a host financial asset. Instead,
the hybrid financial instrument is assessed as a
whole for the classification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR SRR M (4])

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT-\E+-_A=+—RALEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

() Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)
A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following conditions
are met and it has not been designated as at
FVTPL:

It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

It is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI.
This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. All other financial assets
not classified at amortised cost or FVOCI as
described above are classified as FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets. On
initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

The following accounting policies would be
applied to the Group’s financial assets as

follows:

Amortised cost Financial assets at amortised

FVOCI (equity

instruments)

cost are subsequently
measured using the effective
interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and
impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity investments at
FVOCI are measured at fair
value. Dividend income is
recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery
of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in
OCI and are not reclassified to
profit or loss.
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126

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

(@) As of 1 January 2018, an unquoted
equity investment was reclassified
from available-for-sale financial asset
to financial asset at FVOCI. The
unquoted equity instrument has no
quoted price in an active market and
was previously measured at cost less
impairment. The Group intends to hold
the unquoted equity investment for long
term strategic purposes. In addition, the
Group has designated such unquoted
equity instrument at the date of initial
application as financial asset at FVOCI.
As at 1 January 2018, there was
no difference between the previous
carrying amount and the fair value.

(b) The impairment loss previously
recognised and charged to profit or
loss of approximately RMB7,565,000
in relation to the available-for-sale
financial asset was transferred from
retained earnings to investment
revaluation reserve as at 1 January
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS 3. RMFIIBLBITERUKR
(Continued) HER (&)
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective (@) RGFEET KB E BB
1 January 2018 (Continued) BHRELEN——F—N\F
—B—HB&EME)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) ERMKHREERESE—2
BT A (&)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial 1] CETAMSERE
instruments (Continued) (&)
The following table summarises the original TRBMAEBH —=
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and —N\F—-—H—HZE®
the new measurement categories under HKRS MEERESSGE
9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets RIZE39R R BT 28R
as at 1 January 2018: MR BB SR 2

AR Z et BRI

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Original New as at 1 January  as at 1 January

classification classification 2018 under 2018 under

Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9

REFEST REEEHE

EAFE3F  WEENFR

RETBEEN REFBHEERS R=Z-N\&F R=E-N\F
FIHZFRELE ERFRZHNIE —B-AZKREE -—-A-AZKRHEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Available-for-sale Available-for-sale Financial assets 3,235 3,235
financial asset financial asset at FVOCI
At EemEE FHEEeREE RATESAEM
FHBRERERE
Trade and loan Loans and Financial assets 45,493 45,493
receivables receivables at amortised cost
[EYE 5 BT R B R EYGRIE REHER ARG RN
8% SREE
Deposits paid and  Loans and Financial assets 38,676 38,676
other receivables receivables at amortised cost
BiiEe REM B R EYGRIE REHER ARG RN
FENFIE SREE
Cash and bank Loans and Financial assets 288,817 288,817
balances receivables at amortised cost
Be kBT B R EYGRIE REER A 2N
SREE

EETEEZERERAT —z-nsan 127
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing
the HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“ECLs model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group
to recognised ECLs for trade receivables,
financial assets at amortised costs, contract
assets and debt investment at FVOCI earlier
than HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are
subject to ECLs model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowances are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’

original effective interest rate.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors

and the economic environment.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For other debt financial assets including
deposits paid, other receivables and loan
receivables, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. The 12-month ECLs is
the portion of the lifetime ECLs that results
from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
in default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
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No allowance for ECLs was recognised in the
statement of financial position on 1 January
2018 and 31 December 2018, as the amount
of impairment measured under the ECLs

model is immaterial.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS 3. BHPHITIKBITEBUBER
(Continued) HEH| (&)
(@ Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective (@) ER&FE]RIETE B
1 January 2018 (Continued) BRELEN-——F—NF
—B—B4&XM(E)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) ERUKRELERFES—<
=N
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (ii) TREERE(E)
Presentation of ECLs FEHEEEEEY
Loss allowances for financial assets measured BB ARNGTEN S B
at amortised cost are deducted from the BEBEBREREED

gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
investment at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in OCI, instead of reducing the
carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of the ECLs model

The Group assessed the ECLs of financial
assets measured at amortised cost as at
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018.
There was no significant changes to the loss
allowance for these financial assets of the
Group as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December
2018.

(i) Transition

The Group has applied the transitional
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9
was generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new
ECLs rules, if any, are therefore not reflected
in the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2017, but are recognised
in the statement of financial position on 1
January 2018. This mean that differences in
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained
earnings and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented for
2017 does not reflect the requirements of
HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Transition (Continued)
The following assessment has been made
on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at the date of initial application of

HKFRS 9:

o The determination of the business
model within which a financial asset is
held; and

° The designation of certain investments

in equity investments not held for
trading as at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had low
credit risk at the date of initial application, then
the Group has assumed that the credit risk on
the asset had not increased significantly since
its initial recognition.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
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(“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-
step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a

customer.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method. The Group has recognised
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at the date of initial application (that is, 1
January 2018). As a result, the financial information
presented for 2017 has not been restated. There is
no impact of transition to HKFRS 15 on the opening
balances of retained earnings.

The details of the nature and effect of the changes on
application of HKFRS 15 are set out below:

1. Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue from sale of goods,
food and catering was generally recognised
when the risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods had passed to the customers.
Commissions from concessionaire sales are
recognised upon the sale of merchandise
by the relevant stores. Administration and
management fee income was recognised
when the services are rendered.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

1.

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
goods or service in the contract. This may be
at a single point in time or over time. HKFRS
15 identifies the following three situations in
which control of the promised goods or service
is regarded as being transferred over time:

- When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance,
as the entity performs;

- When the entity’s performance creates
or enhances an asset (for example work
in progress) that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations, then
under HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that goods or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is
only one of the indicators that is considered
in determining when the transfer of control
occurs.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

1.

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)
The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have
a significant impact on when the Group
recognises revenue from sale of goods,
food and catering, commissions from
concessionaire sales, and administration and
management fee income.

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises
revenue from sale of goods and food and
catering at a point in time. The commission
income is recognised over time which it is
entitled and is based on certain percentage
of sales made by the concessionaires in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When
they fail to meet the minimum guarantee
income in accordance with the terms of
certain contracts, the minimum guarantee
amount is recognised as income as it is
the amount that the Group has the right to
receive. The administration and management
fee income is recognised overtime as the
operators of concessionaire counters and
customers receive and consume the benefits
simultaneously.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

2.

Customer loyalty programme and prepaid gift
cards

Prior to adoption of HKFRS 15, the customer
loyalty programme offered by the Group in
the allocation of a portion of the transaction
price to the customer loyalty programme using
the fair value of points issued and recognition
of the deferred revenue in relation to points
issued but not yet redeemed or expired.
The Group concluded that under HKFRS
15 the customer loyalty programme gives
rise to a separate performance obligation
because it generally provides a material
right to the customer. Under HKFRS 15, the
Group allocated a portion of the transaction
price to the customer loyalty programme
based on relative standalone selling price.
The Group determined that, considering the
relative stand-alone selling prices, the amount
allocated to the customer loyalty programme
should not be significant by different compared
to the previous accounting policy.

Under HKFRS 15, estimated amount of
customers’ unexercised rights (“breakage”)
requires to be considered refer to the
guidance on constraining estimates of variable
consideration as well as the Group’s historical
experience with award points in relation to
customer loyalty programme and prepaid
gift cards. Based on the past experience,
the management of the Group considers
the breakage as of 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018 is immaterial. However, the
deferred revenue related to this customer
loyalty programme and coupon liabilities
related to prepaid gift cards was reclassified to
contract liabilities as described in below.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

3.

Right of return

Customers has right to return goods under
the Group’s standard contract terms. Under
the Group’s policies, customer can return the
goods with quality problem within 15 days
upon acceptance of the goods.

Under HKFRS 15, right of return gives
rise to variable consideration. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until the associated
uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The
application of the constraint on variable
consideration increases the amount of revenue
that will be deferred. In addition, a refund
liability and a right to recover returned goods
assets are recognised.

Based on the past experience, the
management of the Group considers the
refund liability as of 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018 is immaterial.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

4.

Presentation and disclosure requirements
Disaggregation of revenue

As required for these financial statements, the
Group’s disaggregated revenue recognised
from contracts with customers into categories
that depict how the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
are affected by economic factors. The
Group has also disclosed information about
the relationship between the disclosures
of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable
segment. Refer to note 5 and note 6 for the
disclosure on disaggregated revenue.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

At the date of initial application, 1 January
2018, the Group had deferred revenue
amounted to RMB2,350,000 and prepaid gift
cards amounted to RMB12,922,000 previously
included in “other payables” and “coupon
liabilities” respectively were reclassified to
contract liabilities upon application of HKFRS
15.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective

1 January 2018 (Continued)

(a)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”) (Continued)

5.

The following tables show the impact on
each individual line item of the consolidated
statement of financial position as of 31
December 2018 following the adoption of the
HKFRS 15. Line items that were not affect
by the changes have not been included, and
therefore the line items disclosed do not add
up to the sub-totals and totals below.

3. BRHAFITRLEITEBMBR
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() BEREFE]LIETEBEY
WHEEA——F—N\F
—B—B4%M(E)
ERMKHREERE15EEF
B E (BB KR EER

#1555 1) (&)
5. TRETREMEBWE

MEERE1GHRRE =
E-NF+A=+—
REREMBHRRARNE
BEIELENTE - K
BXIEHFENAR
EmHIA - R EHE
)18 B [E 43 T8 2

AT/ NG RABET S8 ©

As at 31 December 2018
R=ZB-NF+=A=+—H
Before Impact of
adoption of adoption of

HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported

RRABEME FRATEME

Consolidated statement of
financial position (extracts) & BMBMRRR (HE)

R R
F1555A1 F15HRMNTE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR%ETR

2R
RMB’000
ARETT

Current liabilities RBAE
Coupon liabilities, deposit ZE&E - BUiEs -

received, other payables Hh e E &
and accruals & 134,070 (23,619) 110,451
Contract liabilities BHEE - 23,619 23,619

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no impact on
the net cash flows from operating, investing

KABBMEHREER
FASHWEELER S

and financing activities on the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group had
not previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this, its first, year.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property -
Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use
and provides guidance on making this determination.
The clarification states that a change of use will
occur when a property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of
evidence in the standard as a non-exhaustive list,
thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to
support a transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously assessed transfers.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2018 (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an
exchange rate to use for transactions that involve
advance consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability. The Interpretations specifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part thereof) is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group has not
paid or received advance consideration in a foreign
currency.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRS, potentially relevant
to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments'

Amendments to Definition of a Business®
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation’

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement!

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint

Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material®
HKAS 8 (Revised)

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Business Combinations'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 11,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Joint Arrangements'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Income Taxes'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 283,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  Borrowing Costs'
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

(b)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for transactions that occur on or after 1 January
2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application
of the amendments of the amendments continue to be
permitted.

The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing the impact of these new/revised HKFRS
and do not intend to adopt them before their
respective effective dates. Other than HKFRS 16, the
directors of the Company expect that the adoption of
the new/revised HKFRS above will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the period of
initial application. Specifically, the Group assesses
the impact of HKFRS 16 as follows:
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

Regarding sublease accounting, HKFRS 16 requires
an intermediate lessor to account for a head lease
and a sublease as two separate contracts, applying
both the lessee and lessor accounting requirements.
In classifying a sublease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease, an intermediate
lessor may classify more subleases as finance leases
than it would have done under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17, if those same subleases were
classified by reference to the underlying asset.
Accordingly, a lessor may classify similar leases
differently depending on whether the lessor owns or
leases the underlying asset.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS
(Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
RMB545,277,000 as disclosed in Note 28(b)(i).
A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for
low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis
to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities
arising from operating lease commitments on
adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting
for any leases entered into or terminated between
now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 - Definition
of material

The amendments clarify the definition of material
to make it easier for entities to make materiality
judgements. The definition of material, an important
accounting concept in HKFRS Standards, helps
entities decide whether information should be
included in their financial statements.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRS that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a business

The amendments improve the definition of a business.
The amended definition emphasises that the output
of a business is to provide goods and services to
customers, whereas the previous definition focused
on returns in the form of dividends, lower costs or
other economic benefits to investors and others. In
addition to amending the wording of the definition, the
Board has provided supplementary guidance.

Distinguishing between a business and a group of
assets is important because an acquirer recognises
goodwill only when acquiring a business.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next year are discussed
below:

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment and
amortises the prepaid land lease and intangible assets with
finite useful lives in accordance with the accounting polices
stated in notes 2.5, 2.7 and 2.8 respectively. The estimated
useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of the periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease and intangible assets.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued using the cost method, which values
inventory at the lower of the actual cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. The estimated net realisable value is generally the
merchandise selling price less selling expenses. The Group
reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
merchandise and use markdowns to clear merchandise.
Inventory value is reduced when the decision to markdown
below cost is made.

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group
to make judgements and estimates. Specifically, significant
judgments include determining whether the Group is acting
as the principal in a transaction. The Group is a principal in
a transaction if the Group obtains control of the products
sold or services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is primarily
obligated in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has
latitude in establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has
several but not all of these indicators, the Group records
revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the
net amount earned as commissions from products sold.

Estimated amount of customers’ unexercised
rights

Determining the breakage amount requires an estimation of
the ratio and proportion to the pattern of rights exercised
by the customer. The Group recognises the amount by
reference to the ratio derived from historical information that
represents proportion of the award points and prepaid gift
cards granted and sold to the customers by the Group but
not yet utilised by the customers.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Loss allowance for receivables

Management estimates the amount of loss allowance
for ECLs on financial assets at amortised cost based on
the credit risk of the respective financial instrument. The
loss allowance amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument. The assessment of the credit risk of the
respective financial instrument involves high degrees of
estimation and uncertainty about future economic conditions
which have an adverse effect on debtors’ business, debtors’
creditworthiness, the payment delinquency or default in
interest or principal payments. When the actual future cash
flows are less than expected or more than expected, a
material impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment
loss may arise, accordingly.

Income tax

Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision of income tax and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax
provisions in periods in which such determination are made.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax expense in the periods
in which such estimate is changed. The outcome of their
actual utilisation may be different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The recognition of deferred tax liabilities requires assessment
of the temporary differences which arise as a consequence
of different accounting and tax treatments. These temporary
differences result in deferred tax liabilities are included
within the statement of financial position. Deferred tax
liabilities are measured using substantially enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse.
Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised where it is more
likely than not that the liabilities will not be realised in the
future. This evaluation requires judgements to be made
including the forecast of future taxable income. Recognition
therefore, involves management’s judgement regarding the
future financial performance of the particular legal entity in
which the deferred tax liabilities have been recognised and
interpretation of country specific tax law and the likelihood
of settlement. However, the actual tax liabilities could differ
from the provision and in such event the Group would be
required to make an adjustment in a subsequent period
which could have a material impact on the Group’s income
statement.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.
Accordingly, deferred taxation in relation to the Group’s
investment properties has been measured based on the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amounts entirely
through use.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures investment properties at fair value.
Certain assets included in the Group’s financial statements
also require disclosure of fair value. Significant estimation
and judgement are required to determine the fair value.

The fair value measurement utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

° Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

For more information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the investment properties, please refer to
note 12 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

On adoption of HKFRS 8 Operating Segments, the Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. There are
three business components/operating segments in the
internal reporting to the executive directors, which are
operation and management of retail stores and other related
businesses, food and catering, and provision of financing
services (2017: operation and management of retail stores
and other related businesses, food and catering, and
provision of factoring services) for the year. The business
of provision of supply chain financing services started
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The business of
provision of supply chain financing services and factoring
services are reported as provision of financing services.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5.
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Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FRLERE BRILEEEE
Operation and
management
of retail
stores and Provision Inter-
other related  of financing Food and segment
businesses services Subtotal catering elimination  Consolidated
&ER
ERZERR Rt fIR pagcl]
HthRBER SRR NGt £8 B af
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTn  ARETn  ARMTR ARMTR  ARETx
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-B-N\%
TZR=t-ALEE
Revenue from external customers SPRERA 704,227 6,109 710,336 7,902 - 718,238
Inter-segment revenue PEERA 448 - 448 - (448) -
Reportable segment revenue 2N ENE 704,675 6,109 710,784 7,902 (448) 718,238
Revenue recognition WA
Timing of revenue recognion under ~ EAR RS ERF 1555 T
HKFRS 15 BB
- Atapoint in time -REARES 494,219 - 494,219 7,902 - 502,121
- Qver time — KRB 101,761 - 101,761 - - 101,761
From other sources REEMIR 108,247 6,100 114,356 - - 114,356
704,227 6,109 710,336 7,902 - 718,238
Segment results EcE 35,344 4,967 40,311 734 5 41,045
Other unallocated corporate income — EfANERERA 1
Other unallocated corporate expenses  EHANEAERHT (6,758)
Profit before income tax it 34,288
Income tax expense FEHEY (9,085)
Profit for the year ERET 25,203
EETEEZERBRAT -z 558 153
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HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. HER (&)

P

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation

HEEEXE BRILEBERY

Operation and
management
of retail stores
and other  Provision of
related financing Food and
businesses services Subtotal catering  Consolidated
BER
EEZERR Rt RUK
Lguhi RS SREHE Nt £# At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTz ARBTR  ARBT:n

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE-E-\E

TZB=t+-HLEE

Other segment information HtpEER
Interest income IV ON (4,298) 8) (4,306) 2 (4,308)
Additions to non-current assets  FFEBHEERE 68,769 146 68,915 7,363 76,278
Amortisation of intangible assets &/ ZE# 115 - 115 1,548 1,663
Amortisation of prepaid land lease &1 114 & 5 261 - 261 - 261
Written off of an intangible asset  EF A& K - - - 1,399 1,399
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% - BERZERE

and equipment 41,027 23 41,050 2,901 43,951
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER

plant and equipment REER 706 - 706 - 706
Obsolete inventories written-off ~ [REZEHIH 127 - 127 - 127
Inventories loss FEBR 122 - 122 - 122
Impairment loss on At ENGERE

other receivable 1,828 - 1,828 - 1,828
Increase in fair value of REWMELTEEM

investment properties (500) - (500) - (500)
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BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2¥ERE)

Operation and
management of

retail stores and Provision of

other related financing
businesses services Consolidated

EEZEER R
HiHeE xR SRRE &
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®T R

At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+=ZA=1+-H

Reportable segment assets AERPEEE 887,552 55,784 943,336
Other unallocated corporate assets EftiA A B EEE 4,416
Total assets BEE 947,752
Reportable segment liabilities AEER 304,153 494 304,647
Provision for taxation BB E 11,961
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 23,931
Unallocated corporate liabilities N = 1,485
Total liabilities BEE 342,024
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HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZEERGA)

Continuing operations

;

Operation and
management
of retal
stores and Provision
other related  of factoring Foodand  Inter-segment

husinesses services catering glimnation ~ Consolidated

i) ‘ Fa aff
RMB'000 RMB'000 ‘ RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE  ARETT ARETR ARETR  ARETR
(Re-presented
(&5)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tf
tZAZt-BLEE
Revenue from external customers HEEERA 687,316 2,808 690,124 10,059 - 700,183
Inter-segment revenue FERERIA 191 = 191 = (191) =
Reportable segment revenue 2N ENE 687,507 2,808 690,315 10,099 (191) 700,183
Revenue recognition BARER
Timing of revenue recognion under ~ EARHHEEF 1555 T
HKFRS 15 ZBARR
- Atapoint in time -REEREY 509,167 - 509,167 10,059 - 519,226
- Qver time — KR 109,525 - 109,525 - - 109,525
From other sources REEBIR 68,624 2,808 71432 - - 71432
687,316 2,808 690,124 10,059 - 700,183
Segment results NEEE 82,116 1,086 84,102 (16,327) = 67,775
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale A HELFAE 2
financial asset HERSE (3,484)
Unallocated corporate income AL e LN 692
Other unallocated corporate expenses  EMANEAERER (5,119
Proft before income tax [aiteaihed 59,864
Income tax expense FEREY (26,665)
Profit for the year EREH 33,199
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE_T—

5.

NFE+ZA=+—BLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operations

QOperation and
management of
retail stores and
other related Provision of Food and
businesses  factoring services catering Consolidated
Rt
REMRS It Ak
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ‘
(Re-presen ed)
2
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-B-1%
TZR=t-ALEE
Other segment information Ao BER
Interest income FIBHA (5,09) 1) (5,116) (1) (5,127)
Additions to non-current assets ERDEERE 96,873 408 97,276 11,767 109,043
Amortisation of intangible assets BYAESH 115 - 115 4741 4,856
Amortisation of prepaid land lease ~ Eff T4 261 - 261 - 261
Impairment loss on intangible assets & AEZ HEEE - - - 1773 1773
Depreciation of property, plant W% BRLRENE
and equipment 32,601 12 32,613 3,066 35,679
Written-off of property, plant % BERRENE
and equipment 1 = 1 475 476
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HENE - BREREEE
and equipment 12 - 12 - 12
Obsolete inventories written-off REFSHEK 178 - 178 - 178
Inventories loss FEFE 10 - 10 - 10
Increase in fair value of investment REMENTLELEM
properties (20,100) - (20,100) - (20,100)
Provision for a legal claim R-BAERL R 3,159 - 3,159 - 3,159
EETEEZERBRAT -z 558 157
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5.

158

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

QOperation and
management of
retail stores and

other related

Provision of

businesses  factoring services

Discontinued
operation

Food and
catering Consolidated

REfR i) ey
RMB'00 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Re-presented)
2

At 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+=R=1-H
Reportable segment assets 2RNBEE 864,666 47,313 911,979 23,884 935,863
Available-for-sale financial assets AREESREE 3235
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ EHAARAEAE 3,318
Total assets BEE 942416
Reportable segment liabilities N2HHEEE 300,816 258 301,074 3,261 304,335
Provision for taxation HERE 14,393
Deferred tax liabilties ERHIEARE 22,486
Unallocated corporate liabilties AOELEBEE 1426
Total ligbilties ek 342,640

The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group. The country
of domicile is determined by referring to the country which
the Group regards as its home country, has the majority of
operations and centre of management.

No separate analysis of segment information by geographical
segment is presented as the Group’s revenue and non-
current assets, including available-for-sale financial assets,
are principally attributable to a single geographical region,
which is the PRC.

Information about a major customer

There was no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6.
(@) Revenue
The Group is principally engaged in operation and
management of retail stores and other related
businesses, sales of food and catering, and provision
of financing services. Revenue, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents invoiced value of goods
sold, net of value added tax and after allowances for
returns and discounts, rental income, sales of food
and catering, and interest income from financing

WA RH A& KA

(@ WA
AEEBFZEEBREERER
TEEREMIBEEY - HE
RYREBERRRESHART
IWA(NBREE  &%5E) -
EEHE MR EERKRE
R0 - HelA - SHERY
FEGRRIRE S BRBFTEE
MMBEZEMEREE - F1A

services. Revenue recognised during the year is as MU AT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARET T
(re-presented)
(E3)
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue from Contracts with ERMBHREERE1558
Customers within the scope HEAZEFGHW
of HKFRS 15: WA :
Sales of goods HEER 494,219 509,167
Commissions from EEHEMSHAS
concessionaire sales 101,761 109,525
595,980 618,692
Revenue from other sources: REHMFFEHWA :
Rental income from HEYENBES WA
investment properties 10,081 10,146
Rental income from sub-leasing of S MEHMEMHSUA
shop premises 58,428 51,581
Rental income from sub-leasing of £ ARSI &S U A
a shopping mall 39,738 6,897
Interest income from financing KBRS 2R B YA
services 6,109 2,808
114,356 71,432
710,336 690,124
Discontinued operation ERIEREETE
Revenue from Contracts with BEMEHREERE155
Customers within the scope HEERN2EFAHN
of HKFRS 15: A
Sales of food and catering HERY MEK 7,902 10,059
718,238 700,183
EETEERERLT -z a8 159
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HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. WARHMEKZWKA (&)

(Continued)

(@ Revenue (Continued) (@ WAE)
The following table provides information about trade TREHMEEREEFEHH
receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with RUEZEFEGHEESR
customers. #} o

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—2-N\F -2 )\F

+t=A=+-8 —A—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Trade receivables FEW B 5B 373 1,920
Contract liabilities BHAE 23,619 15,272
Note:  The contract liabilities mainly relate to the prepaid gift Mt : ARHNABXESREPREX
cards and unredeemed award points in a customer loyalty FEr B EMERRRARR
programme. The amount of RMB14,396,000 recognised HERED - HE_T—N\F
in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year has been TZA=T+—RHIFE - RF
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December MENBERERNEEAR
2018 as the Group satisfies the remaining performance #14,396,0007C B R AWK
obligations under the contracts with customers. # - RERFAEEREITEFE

HWETHHRTEOET -
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BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6.
(Continued)
(b)  Other operating income
An analysis of the Group’s other operating income is
as follows:

WA RH & WA (%)

(b) HEEWA
REBHAMKLLWA 2 ST
-

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
(re-presented)
(&%)
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest income FLEHA 4,307 5,116
Net exchange gain P H s R 279 692
Government grants (Note) BpT i Bh (5T 6,052 1,318
Administration and management T R EIRE LA
fee income 45,622 42,197
Others Hib 15,249 13,812
71,509 63,135
Discontinued operation CRIEEEET
Interest income .24 A 2 1
Administration and management TR BEIEE UL A
fee income - 117
Others Hth 5 9
7 137
71,516 63,272
Note:  Various local government grants have been granted to fisE: HUE—FT—tFR-F-N\F

subsidiaries of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2018. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attaching to these government
grants.

TZA=Zt—HLFEALE
ZIBRRER T RTRTZ
B o ZEBUR# B AP
TARERGHRIRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE-_Z—\F+=-A=1+—HLEFE
7.  PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BFBBASR(EE)
(@)  Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after (@) Bfﬁﬁ{:ﬁﬂﬁu/mf'/()gﬁ?@)ﬂﬁ

charging/(crediting): Mk GEA) TS HESGHT

162

2018
—E-N\fF
RMB’000

AR®T T

2017

—+tF
RMB’000
AREFTT
(re-presented)
(E%1))

Continuing operations BEQEEK
Cost of inventories sold recognised R ARSTH
as expense EEFERA 410,424 418,357
Auditor’s remuneration HETRNE 1,602 1,185
Depreciation of property, plant mE - BEM
and equipment BB E 41,050 32,613
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FE 1t 3 8 261 261
Amortisation of intangible assets ER A Y 115 115
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEDE  BEK
and equipment HiEEE 706 12
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REFH)
land and buildings LiEREMS 108,612 65,376
Obsolete inventories written-off MR ERFE 127 178
Inventories loss FEERE 122 10
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale AJ{tHESRIEE
financial asset (Note (i) )@YTEJEE?E(WE()) - 3,484
Impairment loss on other receivables HAb R IRRE
(Note (i) (P &E() 1,828 =
Written-off of property, plant and VI - BB MR
equipment T8 - 1
Provision for legal claims (Note (i) SRR EA B
(BEEG)) - 3,159
Staff costs, including directors’ BINAE BFEESE
emoluments (Note 27(a)) < (P5E27(0))
Salaries and other benefits Fre R EAEF 86,227 82,616
Contributions to retirement schemes Rk & T 24t 10,360 9,992
96,587 92,608
Net exchange gain b 5 Y e (279) (692)
Rental income from investment WEWE 2 HRWA
properties (10,081) (10,146)
Sub-letting of properties paN sk ES
— Base rents —HAHE (94,712) (54,574)
— Contingent rents (Note (ii)) — s AT & (B 5E(i) (3,454) (3,904)
(98,166) (58,478)
Total gross rental income FEVEE AV ON (108,247) (68,624)
Less: Direct operating expenses arising 3, : WNERNPEE S
from investment properties that L ON:oEa=R7ES
generated rental income during EENEERLE
the year Ea 2,058 -
Less: Outgoings of sub-letting of B DTYERT
properties 14,801 15,906
Net rental income FHEBUWA (91,388) (52,718)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-_ZT—\F+-A=1+—RHLFE
7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BREBHAEF(EE) (#&)
(Continued)
(a)  Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after @  &RF1E %FEHIJ@?‘/(EEE)E%“
charging/(crediting): (Continued) ?ﬁ/< P TR E ARG
/ﬁ
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB'OOQ
AR¥T T ARETIT
(re-presented)
(&E51)
Discontinued operation ERIEEEER
Cost of inventories sold recognised as ~ BRAFZHNEEFE
expense (7N 3,366 3,104
Auditor’s remuneration EE 15 2
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BE N
equipment e 2,901 3,066
Amortisation of intangible assets A A 1,548 4,741
Operating lease rentals in respect of iifg&@:r—a’jA EHE
land and buildings He 2,115 2,475
Impairment loss on an intangible asset ﬂﬁ/QF/JITEJEﬁE
(Note (i) (PHEEG)) - 1,773
Written-off of property, plant and ME - BEK
equipment AR - 475
Written-off of an intangible asset B A EMER 1,399 -
Staff costs, including directors’ BIA - BIRESH
emoluments (Note 27(a)) & (H3E27(@)
Salaries and other benefits T R H A F] 5,168 6,043
Contributions to retirement schemes RS TEIHR 449 502
5,617 6,545

Notes:

BYEE -

(i) Impairment loss on an available-for-sale financial asset, an (i)
intangible asset and other receivables, and provision for
legal claims had been included in other operating expenses.

(if) Contingent rents are calculated based on a percentage (if)
of the relevant sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental

agreements.

FEETEERARAA

AfHESREE  BREEREM

A2 REBRRARFRZE

BETARMEERATA -

KRB EDRIFEE H5

2R A E AR

HENBETEDLE -
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HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 7. BREFEHANER,(&E) (E&)
(Continued)
(b) Discontinued operation (b) EBRIEREHEK
On 30 June 2018, the Group completed its disposal N-ZE—NFA=1H" &
of the entire interests in a subsidiary, Shenzhen Bk EHEE—FKMBELARZ
Qianhai Baijiahua Beverage Management Limited 2ERFZ — FY A B (EE
(“Baijiahua Beverage”) which was principally engaged BHREEBRAFN(BHEES
in food and catering to an independent third party. HKNE—ZBIE=T7 - 2z

BAREEREERER -

The sales, results and cash flows of the disposed

FEEZERIWA - FERR
subsidiary were as follows: mE

=]
EREHTOT :

1 January 1 January to

to 31 December

30 June 2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF

—H—RZ —A—HZE
AA=tH +t=—A=+—~

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Revenue A 6(a) 7,902 10,059
Cost of inventories sold EEFENR (3,366) (3,104)

4,536 6,955
Other operating income H g U A 6(b) 7 137
Selling and distribution costs  $4% & 9 45 7 (10,976) (12,695)
Administrative expenses TR X (8,715) (8,372)
Other operating expenses HagEMs (1,459) (2,352)
Loss before income tax BialEE 7(a) (11,607) (16,327)
Income tax expense FriSRif 2 8 - -

Loss after tax from discontinued 2 4% |F4S & 2575
operation FESE (11,607) (16,327)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR 2Bz 32 12,341 -

Profit/(loss) from discontinued B 4% | F4E& 2552

operation for the year FEHRA,(BE) 734 (16,327)
Operating cash flows EEREBN 7,418 9,805
Investing cash flows BEREMR (8,057) (10,086)
Total cash flows BB (639) (281)
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX
(Continued)
(b) Discontinued operation (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
the Baijiahua Beverage at the date of disposal are
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

A profit of approximately RMB12,341,000 arose
from the disposal of Baijiahua Beverage, being the
proceeds of disposal less the carrying amount of the
subsidiary’s net liabilities.

For the purpose of presenting discontinued
operation, the comparative consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and the related notes have
been re-presented as if the operation discontinued
during the year had been discontinued at the
beginning of the comparative period.

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

7. BRAABBADER(BER) (&)

(b) EHRLEEXKE)
BEFERNLERHRNEE
ke EREENI B RRIE
324 EE -

HEEEEZEREEEFOA
R#12,341,0007C - BIHEFR
BREREWNBARKEAAR
/?'TE ©

BEVNERELEEBMS -
LLEAR A 2 RS R M AEREHT
HEEHEY  BUNFRER
L AR 2 T A L B AR B 1A B
EARIEEE o

8. FiB®imMxX

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT
(re-presented)

(&%)
Continuing operations BEREER
Current income tax BVERET 15 A
- PRC enterprise income tax — R EPEMEHR 4,540 18,040
- PRC withholding income tax — R HBHFEH 3,100 2,800
7,640 20,840
Deferred tax (Note 24) EERIR (MI5E24) 1,445 5,825
9,085 26,665

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands
during the year (2017: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong
for the year (2017: Nil).

REERFRNHRABRETMAFESHS
MEBRABERAEERNTIEA(Z
T—tF )

HRAEERFAL EREEFBNMG

FHRERBULN - B BB NG
FHEE( T —F &) -
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8.

166

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8.

For a subsidiary of the Group in Guangxi, its PRC Enterprise
Income Tax has been provided at the preferential enterprise
income tax rate of 15% (2017: 15%) for the year pursuant
to the privilege under the China’s Western Development
Program.

Other subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC were
mainly subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of
25% (2017: 25%) for the year under the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates:

FrigBipxx (4&)
RAEBREAN—XWBAF - B
BB AREENEREER -
FREPBECEMSHRIZERLEMN
BHRMEAS%( T —CF 1 15%) 8
gm o

REBPAP BB R EARR
ANE R ARBE T BTSN GRE FOER
125%(—F— 15 : 25% ) B KB
RRIDERMEN

BRERREFENMEHAESR
i Fl) 2 1 B

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETTT
(re-presented)

(%)

Profit/(loss) before income tax PSR AE A (E518)
- From continuing operations —REFBEEER 33,554 76,191
— From discontinued operation —REBRIELERK (M7 D))

(Note 7(b)) (11,607) (16,327)

21,947 59,864

Tax on profit before income tax, FRFr ST A M A9 AR IE - iR B T

calculated at the rates applicable %5 &);% #E [ )i 1) B B T &R 51 &

to profit in the tax jurisdictions

concerned 5,052 14,833
Tax effect of non-deductible AR A RIS 2

expenses 8,138 3,887
Tax effect of non-taxable income  HBZERFHIM AR TS E (7,701) (1,828)
Utilisation of tax losses previously  {F S i AR T IE & 18

not recognised (577) S
Effect of withholding income tax on 7N &5 B B &8 2 7] AT 4 5 R i 7l

distributable profits of the Group’s KBTS Fi £

PRC subsidiaries 3,400 3,600
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised & FER T HE BRI TG 2 773 6,173
Income tax expense TS X 9,085 26,665
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BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

9. DIVIDENDS RE
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (@ AEEEERE

©

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Proposed final dividend for the Bz N\F+=-A

year ended 31 December 2018 —+—HIEFEHRRER

of approximately RMB1.88 cents  HAfR B MR EFEARLY

(2017: RMB1.91 cents) AR¥1880(=ZF—+

per ordinary share F:ARK1.915) 19,505 19,816
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date WE B HBERORPAREL
has not been recognised as a liability at the respective ERAEEEREEHENEG
reporting date, but reflected as an appropriation of B HEERMAEZFENRE
retained profits for that year. il AN o

(b) Dividend attributable to the previous year, (b) FARAHAERIKMASH LEFE

approved and paid during the year ERERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT

Final dividend in respect of the FEFEHNRPREER
previous year, of RMB1.91 cents  Zi@Ax AR 915

(2017: RMB2.41 cents) per (Z=2—+F: AR¥

ordinary share 2.41%)
- Approved during the year —FRLE 19,816 25,004
— Paid during the year —F IR (19,816) (25,004)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 10. BRE2F (&HA)
(i)  Continuing and discontinued operations () FERCALKEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per STEARAREE AEEEFRE
share attributable to the owners of the Company is REREERF - THIRBEATE
based on following data: BErE

2017
—EF—+F

(re-presented)

(E51)

Earnings 2R
Earnings for the purposes of basic it Z AR E N & # & 7
and diluted earnings per share MEF(AREFIT)

(RMB’000) 25,203 33,199
Number of shares BoHAE
Weighted average number of T N 8
ordinary shares 1,037,500,002 1,037,500,002
Basic and diluted earnings FRERAREERT
per share (RMB cents) (AREES) 2.43 3.20
Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings %}%&%;ﬁgﬂﬁ\% NEIRER
per share, as there were no potential dilutive ordinary aF - ﬁi\%@z%\l:%*ti
shares issued during the years ended 31 December &:%*{}¢+:EF+*E
2017 and 2018. EFE TERAEEEH 2 E
R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_ZT-\E+-_A=+—RALEFE

10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 10. SKRZEF/(FE) (&)
(i)  Continuing operations (i) FELEER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T
(re-presented)

(E51)

Profit attributable to owners of KAa)EA NERFEERF

the Company for the year 25,203 33,199
Less: Profit/(loss) from discontinued ¥ : & 4% |48 4 % 758
operation for the year FEEHN(EBE) 734 (16,327)
24,469 49,526
Basic and diluted earnings per BEKRSEENTR
share from continuing AR REERF
operations (RMB cents) (AR¥5) 2.36 4.77
(i) Discontinued operation (iiiy BRIELEHEK

2018 2017
=E2-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARETTT
(re-presented)
(&71)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners N2 A1 %A A JEAG
of the Company for the year FEHEA(EBE) 734 (16,327)

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) B4R IFAE & EBHFRRER
per share from discontinued REERA,(EE)
operation (RMB cents) (AR¥ED) 0.07 (1.57)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. Y% BERRZRE

Motor  Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold  Plant and vehicles fixtures and
buildings improvements machinery  andtools equipment

LS 58 %8

Gt 8 %8 ERREE® NRERIR  REA #E
RMB'OO0  RMB'OOD  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMBIOOD  RMBO00

ARETT ) T ARBTT ARETL ARETT A

At1 January 2017 R=Z-t§-B-H
Cost ik 21957 314,60 21,403 10857 107082 475304
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (1107)  (242,299) (16,677) (7,560) (94,527)  (362,170)
Net carrying amount RERE 20,250 72,306 4726 3,207 1255 113,134
Net carrying amount BEFHE
At 1 January 2017 R=F-+%-f-A 20050 72,306 4726 3,007 12565 113,134
Addtions FE - 905% 73 102 3456 94,167
Disposals HE - - - (19 - (19)
Written-off i S (474) 1) E 1) (476)
Depreciation it (305)  (29,856) (749) (991) 3778 (35679
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+E+-A=t-R 19945 132512 4,049 2,389 1228 171127
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R-E-tE+-A=t-AR

“E-N\§-5-A
Cost A 21,357 404,537 21,461 1083 110529 568,720
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (1412 (272,02 (17419 (B447)  (98.207) (397599
Net carrying amount BEFE 19945 132512 4,049 2,389 1228 171127
Net carrying amount REFE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F-F-H 19,945 132,512 4,049 2389 12282 471,127
Addtions TE - 64,853 2 756 9,363 74792
Disposals L& - - - (10) (811) (821)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 32) HE-BHBAR (MiH32) - (14,699) - - (4402 (19,101)
Depreciation i (305 (37,884) (669)  (1,070) (4,02 (43,951)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+-A=t-H 19,640 144,582 3,400 2065 12350 182,046
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1-A
Cost A 21,357 449,521 21,481 11,384 100,683 613,426
Accumulated depreciation ZifE (1,7117)  (304,939)  (18,081) (9,319)  (97,324)  (431,380)
Net carrying amount FEFE 19,640 144,58 3,400 2,065 12,359 182,046
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
Depreciation charges incurred for the year from continuing
operations were recognised as “selling and distribution
costs” and “administrative expenses” amounted to
approximately RMB40,489,000 (2017: RMB32,066,000) and
RMB561,000 (2017: RMB547,000) respectively.

Depreciation charges incurred for the year from discontinued
operation were recognised as “selling and distribution costs”
and “administrative expenses” amounted to approximately
RMB2,870,000 (2017: RMB 3,010,000) and RMB31,000
(2017: RMB 56,000)

Written-off of property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB476,000 incurred have been recorded as
other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2017, in which approximately RMB475,000 was in relation
to agreements entered into for the exclusive right for
operation and licensing of the business of beverage kiosk in
Shenzhen region with an international cartoon brand name
from discontinued operation, please refer to note 14 to the
financial statements for the particulars.

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

11.

12.

M - BB RHRE(R)

FRAREBFBECEEBEENTES
HER [HERDEKA IR [1THHA
X 9 RIHER K AR 40,489,0007T
(ZZ—+%F : AR¥32,066,0007T)
R ARES561,0000(ZF—+F : A
R#547,0007T) °

AFEERIEEBEENTERSE
BRE HERD AR (176
Y1 @EHRIKAEARK2,870,000
T(ZE—+4F : AR¥S3,010,000

TT) R ARKES31,000T( = —+4F :
AR#56,0007T) °
MEDE BMELRXEHDARE

476,000 T E R ABHE_ZT—+tF
T AT —HIEFEZEMEER
¥ ERHARKEA75,0000E BT
S HEERIEEEEBLFR - A—
I BR R 38 Gh K2 2 T PR Y1 b [ 45
RIEZBREFRMNBES HI#E - 5F
B MU BmEME14 -

REME

2018 2017

—E-N\F —t5F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET AREBTIT

At beginning of the year F17 290,800 270,700
Increase in fair value of investment REENTFEEM

properties 500 20,100

At end of the year FR 291,300 290,800

The investment properties represent various buildings and
leasehold land located in the PRC held for generating rental
income and the leasehold land will expire in 2066.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2017 and 2018 were arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out at the date by Chung Hin Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected to the Group, who has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

REMERBELHASWAMBEN
my¢l@$&ﬁﬁim mAE+
HEEIBR R T NFfEm o

REFREYWENR_TE—+ER_-FT
—N\FE+-_A=+— am NEAE - Th

ERFOTRHEBER A RIRZBEITH
EEER - Ei\i,%iﬁiﬁﬁ =5 R Y

—EBYAEREXMEMT WA
BrHEHEASRBEUNEEE ER

BEEZERERLATA -5 17



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 12. REWME(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring KEVMENAFELSEIBLEER
fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and FEFE c FUNFRNAFELES
closing fair value balance is provided below: HERF T

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARETT

Opening balance T sk

(level 3 recurring fair value) (FEIBREFERTE) 290,800 270,700
Increase in fair value of investment WEME 2 N FHEEM

properties 500 20,100
Closing balance TR

(level 3 recurring fair value) (BIEBLEERTFHE) 291,300 290,800

Change in unrealised gains for the year ~ ®+Z=H=+—H ?Jt%ﬁﬁ
included in profit or loss for assets held — Ezt ABZHIERNKREIR

at 31 December W 5 B 500 20,100
Fair values of investment properties are determined using WEMENATEVEBERLLIREA
the investment method on the basis of capitalisation of the ’fﬂ A ENESREIRAE DI EE R
net rental income derived from the existing tenancies with N)ESX)FHESWATARE LS
due allowance for the reversionary income potential. The F o NFEGEETISEEAMESAKIE
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the market e e E R HERBK K ©
monthly rental rate and negatively correlated to property
yield.

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs

fhERE EABEREZBAER

At 31 December 2018

Investment properties Investment method Market monthly rental rate taking into account of RMB120 to RMB340

RIB-NE+ZF=1+-H KZ&% individual factors such as location, environment, ~ (2017: RMB120 to RMB340)
RENE age, accessibility, floor, size. etc. (RMB/sq.m.)

TESAREHRIE  B% Bk MEH BE . ARKI20nEAREM0T

RTZERIER (ARE/THR) (ZF—tF - AR¥1207

EAR¥340T)

Capitalisation rate of reversionary income 4% t0 5%

(2017: 4% to0 5%)

EERAMERLLE 4%E5%

(Z2—1 % 4%Z5%)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during R E M AT S -

the years.

The fair value measurement is based on the above iﬁﬁrg)}%ﬁiﬂﬁ%i 23525
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from SMER(EEERESRER) -

their actual use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

13. PREPAID LAND LEASE 13. FEfMLTE

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

At beginning of the year F£1

Cost B A% 14,132 14,132
Accumulated amortisation RET 5 (1,470) (1,209)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 12,662 12,923
Net carrying amount REFE

At beginning of the year F 1) 12,662 12,923
Amortisation By (261) (261)
At end of the year FR 12,401 12,662
At end of the year FR

Cost B AR 14,132 14,132
Accumulated amortisation REHHEEE (1,731) (1,470)
Net carrying amount BRTFE 12,401 12,662
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HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14, BREE

Computer software
ERBM
2018

Franchise (Note) Total
R R (i aE) #st

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

“9-)\F ZT L% %-NF T LF S9N\ “TF

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARETT ARMTR ARBTI ARMTR ARETRT

At beginning of the year g9

Cost B AR 1,150 1,150 11,500 15,000 12,650 16,150
Accumulated amortisation and &+ i K RE

impairment (220) (105) (6,061) (4,547) (6,281) (4,652)
Net carrying amount FEEE 930 1,045 5,439 10,453 6,369 11,498
Net carrying amount REFE
At beginning of the year E4] 930 1,045 5,439 10,453 6,369 11,498
Additions - externally acquired & — 5N EBUES 490 = - 1,500 490 1,500
Amortisation i (115) (115) (1,548) 4,741) (1,663) (4,856)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRBAF

(Note 32) (BiE32) - - (2,492) - (2,492) -
Impairment HE - - - (1,773) - (1,773)
Written-off Wi - = (1,399) - (1,399) =
At end of the year FX 1,305 930 - 5,439 1,305 6,369
At end of the year X
Cost %N 1,640 1,150 - 11,500 1,640 12,650
Accumulated amortisation and 2 i KRl E

impairment (335) (220) - (6,061) (335) (6,281)
Net carrying amount REHE 1,305 930 - 5,439 1,305 6,369
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BE-_ZT-\E+-_A=+—RALEFE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held three franchise rights. Two of them
are relating to the exclusive rights for operation and licensing of the business
of restaurants in the PRC and beverage kiosk in Shenzhen region with an
international cartoon brand name. Another one is relating to the exclusive right
for operation and licensing of the business of restaurants in Shenzhen region
with a specific brand name.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company
has identified impairment indicator of certain intangible assets and certain
property, plant and equipment in relation to agreements entered into for the
exclusive rights for operation and licensing of the business of restaurants in
the PRC and beverage kiosk in Shenzhen region with an international cartoon
brand name with reference to the continuous losses. The directors of the
Company conducted assessments on the intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment, and these assets were allocated to two cash generating
units, including restaurant business cash-generating unit and beverage kiosk
business cash-generating unit (“Kiosk CGU”) under the segment of food and
catering.

The directors of the Company determined that, based on their estimation,
an impairment loss on an intangible asset allocated to the Kiosk CGU of
approximately RMB1,773,000 and written-off of certain property, plant and
equipment in the Kiosk CGU of approximately RMB475,000 were recognised
in other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017 from
discontinued operation. The recoverable amount of the Kiosk CGU was
based on higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amount of the Kiosk CGU was determined by the value in
use calculation based on cash flow projection of the Kiosk CGU and discount
rate of 18.5% has been used with reference to the current market data for the
relevant industry and comparable companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a franchise right amounting to
approximately RMB1,399,000 was written off due to the early termination
of the use of the franchise right with a corresponding licensor and the close
down of restaurants accordingly during the year.

14.

FEETEERARAA

BIEER)

BieE

RIZB—tF+-A=+—0 AEEHE=
BRFEEE - EPMEARN —EEERERE
an 8 2 T A T B AR AR ZE TS A R R Y| 1 [
REREZBRFENRMBSHE - Z—I8E
BA— AR ERENRIIEEEREB ZBR
RER R INER 5 I o

RBE-_T—tF+RA=+—-BIEFE K
RABERETEVEERETYE B
R AT BBEA—BABEERERBRESR
R P B EEREG 2 BRERN KA H
B ARPRYIM RS ERE 2 RRITS R
FEKBR CHIRETR - ARBESHE
WEE UWEWE - BEERELETHE A
REBREEOREMARCELEN  BFEE
BAOBATZEREBREELBURREE
BReELFEM([RERSEESM]) -

ARRESENREZHE  ATABE=Z
—+tF+ A=+ BULEFEZEMEERAX
ERARREACRICEEBBREEIRER
ERSEAEMZRERBBHARE1,773,000
TRMBEREREELABEVRETHE  BE
R EBHARMEAT5,0007T - XERSELENM
ZAIE S EAERAFEREEXANREAE
BEEZRSEAE -RERSEELEN 2T
WEeERTFRERcELASENRSRETBA
STECUFEREEmE - EEFERSESEET
¥RAILB AR ZBTMISEIEMNE 218.5%8
HE o

BE-_ST—N\EFE+_A=+—BLFE  &F
R AR K1,399,0007T F R P42 1 B A fE
B BT NG5 PR R AR R R TN R B T AR
g o
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15.

176

DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

15.

ENEE  AAREREE
WRRIR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Rental deposits Hekse 15,642 16,533
Prepayments TERTRIR - 140
Payment in advance for acquisition of WEEYIZE -« RE KRB
property, plant and equipment AR RIR 3,840 2,844
Other receivable o Ath fE Y SR IB 3,800 =
23,282 19,517
Current assets REEE
Deposits paid BfEE 2,679 2,922
Prepayments B A 8,311 18,497
Advances to suppliers RILER BT 252 638
Other receivables (Note) b e U I8 (B ) 41,845 35,149
53,087 57,206

Note:

Included in the balance was input value added tax (“VAT") receivable of
approximately RMB19,502,000 (2017: RMB15,928,000) as at 31 December
2018. Input VAT arose when the Group purchases products from suppliers
and the input VAT can be deducted from output VAT on revenue.

Except for input VAT receivables which had no expiry date, all other
receivables were repayable either on demand or within one year.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of other receivables
(current portion), except for input VAT receivables, which are expected to
be recovered within one year are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

The Group recognise impairment loss based on the accounting policy stated

in note 2.16. Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from deposits paid and other receivables are set out in note 33iii).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

16. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 16. R—XBIE QR 2=

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Share of net liabilities EEaERE (484) (484)
Goodwill kS 600 600
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B 2ETREERE (116) (116)
Details of the associate are as follows: i NG =2 =3/l
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of
establishment of paid-up interest held
and legal form registered by the Company  Principal activities and
Company name of entity capital Indirectly  place of operations
FMAL/ B L AR R EAREE FEEBR
GRS R R EEARR BhxEfE RERRESH KERE
Shenzhen Egoos Mobile The PRC, limited RMB10,000,000 30%  Operation and management
Internet Limited liability company of online sale in the PRC
AITHLEBHERAR A HE - AK%10,000,0007 RAEE L RERE RS
BREARA
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the above zls/&aﬂ%%;{l;% RS I W/NCIE RN
associate is immaterial to the Group. SEYFEK-
The summarised financial information of the associate is HE-F—tFR-_F\F+_-A
unavailable for the years ended 31 December 2017 and =t— Etif;ﬁ/{:ﬂx BanRn
2018, and the directors of the Company considered the HBENBE - BARFEERRE
impact of it is immaterial in view of the insignificance of the ﬁ@&tﬂﬁ%%gTZﬂEE@jﬁT\iﬁ T
carrying amount of this associate. HEgreEx-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE—ZT—

17.

18.

178

NFE+ZA=+—BILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

17.

IHHESREE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —t

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR¥ET T

Unlisted equity securities, at cost JEETIRAES - IR A - 10,800
Less: Accumulated impairment losses B REDREBE - (7,565)
- 3,235

The Group held an investment in an unlisted company in
the PRC as at 31 December 2017. It is measured at cost
less impairment, if any, at the end of each reporting period
because the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment
loss of approximately RMB 3,484,000 has been recognised,
as a result of a decline in present value of its anticipated
future cash flows estimated by the management.

Under the adoption of HKFRS 9, an opening adjustment
as at 1 January 2018 was made to reclassify the entire
available-for-sale financial asset to financial asset at FVOCI.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
disposed of the entire financial asset at FVOCI with proceeds
of approximately RMB3,800,000. The purchaser will
settle the consideration in cash by three instalments from
August 2021 to August 2023 in which is included in other
receivables under non-current assets (note 15).

INVENTORIES AND CONSUMABLES

18.

R-ZB—+HF+-_A=+—8 XK
BN EFE —ERIF LM ARNER
B ARARRESZR ARSI
FFENFE - HREHmEHRZAA
WRE(IE)FTE -

HE-_Z—+tHF+-_A=+—HIF
g - Haﬁéﬂy‘ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiiﬁlﬁkmﬁé—a
RENRETY  REBEBHOARE
3,484,0007T 2 FER -

RMBZBHMBHREEAESR®R - 1
—F-N\F-A—-BELHTHEE
N Mt ESRMEESHOE
ERANVEFAREMEE RS SR

HE_Z—)/\F+-A=+—HLF
B AEEBHE2HMIRAFETAE
EEREZEMEE @ FTSHKIEY
AR #3,800,0007C © E AR E
ERRE BT —EN\ARE=
Eo=FN\AL =B EETAZE
MEYE EIE T /9 E e Uk 5k IE (B 5
15) o

FERZFm

2018 2017

—E-)N\F —tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETIT

Merchandise for resale iy 50,289 44,051
Low value consumables KESER 2,287 3,139
52,576 47,190
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19.

TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on cash basis except for trade
receivables from certain bulk sales of merchandise to
corporate customers, rental income receivables from tenants
and loan receivables from provision of financing services.
The credit terms offered to the customers from operation
and management of retail stores are generally for a period
of one to three months, while to customers from financing
services are generally for a period of nil to seven months
(2017: one to nine months).

As at 31 December 2018, included in trade receivables
of approximately RMB13,274,000 (2017: RMB8,111,000)
represented rental income receivables from tenants.

Trade receivables were non-interest-bearing. Loan
receivables from provision of financing services which bore
interest at fixed rates with effective interest rates ranging
from 12% to 15% (2017: 6% to 24%) per annum.

19.

BWE ZRRARER
BETRACEZFPELNRER M
& BEEAENHEHSKRARER SR
EBWETRR - AEBMAHEN
MIREET - BTUFEREREET
EEZEPHEESN—KAR—2=@
A METEREFIEPHNEEY
—RAZFELEA(ZF—LF : —
EN@A) -

NZE-NE+-A=+—8 " &A
FEWE ZERR A AR ¥13,274,000
T(ZZ—+F : AR¥S8,111,0007T)
BREKERMHAS A -

RBURESERBEE - RESRER
BB RERMBENT12EE15E
ZETERFMNER(ZE—EF : N
TBEZE24E) o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Trade receivables (Note (i) FEUWE 5 BR R (BRE() 13,647 10,031
Loan receivables (Note (ii)) FEUCE FR (M aEGi) 47,212 35,462
60,859 45,493
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

19. TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. BEREZHRIARER(E)
(Continued)
Notes: 5T
(i) The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on invoice 0] AREZ EREZEFILEFRBHO

180

dates, is as follows:

BRECAMTANT -

2018
—E-N\F E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
Within 30 days 308 12,399 8,311
31-60 days 31E60H 488 667
61-180 days 61£180H 484 624
181-365 days 181E365H 276 282
Over 1 year —F Ak - 147
13,647 10,031

The aging analysis of Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 that were neither past due nor impaired and, past due at the
reporting date but not impaired, based on due date is as follows:

R-Z—+E+-_A=+—0 A&
B 12 B 53 B 37 K 380 2 SR (B LA R R 3R
LRMEAPRERRENERE SE
KRR DT -

2017

—F—tF

RMB’000

ARETT

Neither past due nor impaired W s BRSOR B 9,602
1-30 days past due #ER1 —30H -
31-180 days past due #HA31 —180H 282
181-365 days past due #H3181—365H 147
10,031

The trade receivables do not contain impaired assets. Trade
receivables as at 31 December 2017 that were neither past due nor
impaired related to customers or tenants for whom there were no
recent history of default. Trade receivables as at 31 December 2017
that were past due but not impaired related to a number of customers
or tenants that had a good track record of credit with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believed that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.
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19. TRADE AND LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. EKWESRIARER(E)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MisE - (48)
(ii) The aging analysis of the Group’s loan receivables, based on (ii) & EIRIREN A 6 B R R IR
drawdown dates, is as follows: DT :

2018
—B-N\E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Within 30 days 30BA 12,061 484
31-60 days 31E60H - 24,360
61-180 days 61£180H 8,110 10,618
181-365 days 1812365H 27,041 -
47,212 35,462
The aging analysis of Group’s loan receivables as at 31 December R-ZEBE—+tF+-_A=+—8 &%
2017 that were neither past due nor impaired based on due date is BEZEHA RS HSORENERE
as follows: RZEBRDITT -

2017
—T—tF
RMB’000
ARBT
Neither past due nor impaired IR 8 B sk R B 35,462
35,462
Loan receivables as at 31 December 2017 that were neither past due R-_FE—+F+-_HA=+—HIU K ®
nor impaired related to the customers for whom there was no recent HA Y R E &Y FE Uk B S ER 3T HAD M iE 4
history of default. Based on past experience, management believes HENEEAR  BEBALSR &
that no impairment allowance is necessary as there has not been a BEMACEESEERERE  BAE
significant change in credit quality. BEEWEEAKEH) -
The directors of the Company consider that the fair values ARBEEZRE  HRZRSEBRRE
of trade and loan receivables which are expected to be EBRAREARE - R —FRIK
recovered within one year are not materially different from EHEWKE ZRIAERERN AT EHE
their carrying amounts because these balances have short HIEEBETEERNER -

maturity periods on their inceptions.

During the year, the Group recognise impairment loss based FRN - AEBEREN 26T E

on the accounting policy stated in note 2.16. Further details FTECRERBERE  c BEASER

on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade —E-NF+ZA=T—HBHNEKE

and loan receivables as at 31 December 2018 are set out in SEFREREENEERRREE

note 33(iii)(a) and (c). [R. B 89 #E — 25 57 1B 3 7 B 3 33(iiN) (@)
K(c) e
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20.

182

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

RERBRITHER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

Cash at banks and in hand WITRFERS 161,400 151,150

Bank deposits maturing within three months 7 =1 A A | BRI ER1T1F X 99,496 107,667
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose & mE8 XM &

of statement of cash flows NEEEBEY 260,896 258,817

Bank deposits maturing over three months 7 =& B £ Z| BV iR1T1E K 10,000 30,000

270,896 288,817

The Group had cash and bank balances denominated
in RMB of approximately RMB264,642,000 (2017:
RMB281,394,000) of which the remittance out of the PRC
was subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.

The cash at banks bore interests at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Certain bank deposits bore interest
at floating rate with effective interest rate at 31 December
2018 was 0.35% (2017: 0.35%) per annum. The other bank
deposits bore interest at fixed rates with effective interest
rates at 31 December 2018 ranged from 1.35% to 3.2%
(2017: ranged from 1.35% to 1.65%) per annum. They
had maturities ranged from 3 months to 12 months (2017:
ranged from 3 months to 6 months) and were eligible for
immediate cancellation without receiving any interest for the
last deposit period.
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21. TRADE PAYABLES
The credit terms granted by suppliers are generally for a
period of 30 to 60 days. The aging analysis of the trade
payables, based on invoice dates, is as follows:

21.

BN E S RN
HEFRENEEHR K A30E60
H-ENEBZERENIZEEAHNERER
DT -

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARETT

Within 30 days 30HR 102,708 105,662
31-60 days 31260H 47,662 56,804
61-180 days 612180H 11,352 19,530
181-365 days 181£365H 2,898 4,345
Over 1 year —F Uk 7,383 8,158

172,003 194,499

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts
of the Group’s trade payables are considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair values.

(£

FEFIESRER  FAit - AEEZ
FEN B BRRFREERSR AE A FE
ZRBHH -
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, COUPON 22, AWEMRE ZSEE- CWE
LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER S\ B oA 2R B R

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2018 2017
—E—_N\&E —E—F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Contract liabilities (Note (i)) AHaEE>) 23,619 =
23,619 -
Coupon liabilities EE8E - 12,922
Deposits received B Wiz e 27,932 25,936
Other payables (Note (ii)) H At A5 SR IE (B (i) 48,568 47,554
Accruals JEFTE A 33,951 24,791
110,451 111,203
134,070 111,203
Notes: MisE
0] Contract liabilities 0] AR

31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018
—E-N\F A%:S

+=A=+—H —H )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT ARETT

Contract liabilities in relation to: BREBIR

Operation and management of retail KR BB T E R K H 4 iR
stores and other related businesses ESi 3
— Customer loyalty programme - BEPREXHFE 7,259 2,350 -
— Prepaid gift cards —EERTF 16,360 12,922 -

23,619 15,272 -
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, COUPON
LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(i) Contract liabilities (Continued)

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied as of each reporting period. The Group expects the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations
will be recognised as revenue when the award points in relation to
customer loyalty programme and prepaid gift cards are redeemed.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Prepaid gift cards

The Group sells the prepaid gift cards to the customers who redeems
the prepaid gift cards for future purchases. The prepaid gift cards are
non-refundable and with no expiry date. The Group expects to satisfy
the remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within one year
or less.

Award points under customer loyalty programme

Under the Group’s customer loyalty programme, customers who
participate in the loyalty programme can earn award points by
spending. Valid awards points as at end of reporting period are
with no expiry date and the Group expects to satisfy the remaining
obligations of these contract liabilities within one year or less.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amount of approximately
RMB12,922,000 in relation to prepaid gift cards previously included
as “Coupon liabilities” have been reclassified to “Contract liabilities”
as at 1 January 2018 whereas the deferred revenue of approximately
RMB2,350,000 in relation to customer loyalty programme previously
included as “Other payables” have been reclassified to “Contract
liabilities” as at 1 January 2018.

(if) Other payables

As at 31 December 2018, included in other payables of
approximately RMB4,585,000 (2017: RMB4,680,000) represented
other PRC tax payables, other than PRC Enterprise Income Tax.

As at 31 December 2018, included in other payables of
approximately RMB3,244,000 (2017: RMB2,291,000) represented
amounts received from (i) suppliers when they send promoters to the
retail stores and (i) staff when joining the retail stores in aggregate.

As at 31 December 2018, included in other payables of
approximately RMB60,000 (2017: RMB3,219,000) represented
provision for counterclaims of alleged damage ruled by the court
against the Group (Note 35).

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts
of the Group’s contract liabilities, coupon liabilities, deposits
received, other payables and accruals are considered to be
a reasonable approximation of fair values.

22. ANEME REAE SWE

T HttENRERESER
(#)

Mz - ()
0] ERBEEE)

EHABEBEEREAMAIRER
EXRBHEENRHERER - A%
ERY - ERAMAMEER YR
gIRENERROEBHESE - DA
ERERBHEENR D ERBHER

A o
HEHACNABESRBRZEN —
M AHERAT -

RS

AEERBERHERNER KT M&
BB RAEAREE - BRAEH
RENTRDBEEMAERE - XEH
BAR—FRARTZEEHABOR
TEE-

EPEMNFAETZEEDK
EAEBEZRFROXFHFAET 2
HEPRMNFIE T ZEER IS
ERMBEDH - BEREPRZE
MEEE DB BB R - MAKE
BER—FARETASAHOEBENHRT
Bff-

REMBEBU B RELRFE1551% -
ERIFATZEAGEINBEMERRD
AR#12,922,000tER =T — N\ F
—A—BEFIBEEAHNEE]
mocaat A [HERREBISRE
PFROAZHHENETCHKAHARE
2,350,000cER=E—N\F—A—H
B BEEANAMGE] -

(ii) e FRIA

R-ZZE—NE+-_A=+—8 " it A
H fth FE A ZIB A A R % 4,585,000 7T
(ZZ—+t%F : AR%4,680,0007T) %5
B AR B 1 2 FIT A5 o LA O 2 L b £ R
BRI o

R-ZZ—NE+-_A=+—8 " it A
H fth FE A ZIB A A R % 3,244,000 7T
(ZZ—+tF : AR%2,291,0007T) 8
(REEEREREABETEEERE
It MR E KR E TNBETEE
R IEW B THFIEM & 2 85 -

RZZT—N\FE+ZA=+—8 A
HAth B SRIE A AR #60,0007T (=
—+tF : AR¥3,219,0007T) 55t
FRET AL E S BIBE Y RFH RN
B4 (ME5E35) ©

MBRBEGRES - BAit - AEEZ
aMaE ZERAE cliEe  H
fil AN 5 K B B AR E B HUR A
HRVEZRENE -
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23. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 23. BER—BEERE
The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable on BERELAEER 2B REZENRE
demand. fol)

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, EIEFIE

AT RARBRAEE MBE S RF
EOHEANTIRZRERNBAEERAR
REBEE -

The following are the major deferred tax asset and liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and previous financial years.

Revaluation Available-  Undistributed
of investment for-sale profits of
properties financial asset subsidiaries
RE THmE HEARZ
MEE SREE R KEH Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBETT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 15,681 (1,020) 2,000 16,661
Deferred taxation debited to MR ERNELHR
the profit or loss (Note 8) (F3728) 5,025 - 800 5,825
At 31 December 2017 and RIZ—+%F
1 January 2018 +ZR=+-8k
—2-\¥-A—H 20,706 (1,020) 2,800 22,486
Deferred taxation debited to MR BEMELERIE
the profit or loss (Note 8) (FizE8) 125 1,020 300 1,445
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\%¥
+-A=1+—-H 20,831 - 3,100 23,931

186

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the new Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC issued on 6 December 2007, a 10% withholding
income tax shall be levied on the dividends remitted by
the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors starting from 1 January 2008. Dividends declared
or proposed out from the profits generated by the PRC
companies after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this
withholding income tax.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB270,000,000
(2017: RMB323,000,000), as the directors of the Company
consider that timing of reversal of the related temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.
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24.

NFE+ZA=+—BLFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2018, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately RMB18,140,000 (2017: RMB45,045,000)
which were available for offset against future profits and
are subject to expiry period of five years as follows. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, unused tax losses
of approximately RMB26,527,000 was reversed upon
deregistration and disposal of subsidiaries. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the estimated tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

24,

IR SE R (4]
FLT)EEIEEF?WFE ﬁ% %%IE?‘J:ET&EJ%‘E

Eﬂaﬂxﬁﬁ*ﬂoﬁé_i )\¢+:ﬂ
Zt— 8 AEECEHAREBAR
THEEH AREA18,140,000T(=F
—+t& : AR¥45,045,0005T) © 7]
AUAKEEERES - WIRBRT A
FEHBER REE-ZT—-—N\F

+ZA=+—BULFE  AHEHE
EE M A R#26,527,000 T A B 5
MREEHBARERERD - AxETE
B BBEFRR - BEREEHBEAE
A BT IEBEMERER -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT

Expire in RUATEEZEER
-2018 ——ZF—)\F - 1,160
-2019 ——ZE—IF 10 3,743
- 2020 ——=E-FTF - 3,767
- 2021 ——=E-—%F 2,676 11,682
- 2022 ——F-—4F 12,364 24,693
- 2023 ——E-=%F 3,090 -
18,140 45,045
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. BRA
2018 2017
—E-N\E¥ —E—+F
Number of Number of
shares ('000) RMB’000 shares ('000) RMB’000
g E ringi 8
(FR&) ARETR (FR) ARBTT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of Hong Kong BREE0.O1ET
Dollars (“HK$”) 0.01 each (M) e @R
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRk
+-A=1+—H 10,000,000 97,099 10,000,000 97,099
Issued and fully paid: BREIRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  GR&EE0.015TTH
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Hk
+-A=1+—H 1,037,500 10,125 1,037,500 10,125
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26. RESERVES 26. f#f&
The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are REBRFAZRBEEE D NGARE
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in HEHKRET -
equity.
The movements of the Company’s reserves for the year are ARBRNFAZBEEBFEIIDOT -

set out below:

Share Contributed Retained Dividend
premium surplus profits proposed Total

REEE  #MARS  RENA  BRRS it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARETL ARETL ARMTL ARETR

At 1 January 2017 R-_T—+F—-A—H 252,478 67,848 1,081 25,004 346,411

Profit and total comprehensive & 73 | &2

income for the year FEMEEE - - 19,578 - 19,578
Dividend approved for 2016 —Z—xE2
ERUERE - - - (25,004) (25,004)
Proposed dividend for 2017 —Z—+F 7 R 2 S = (19,816) 19,816 =
At 31 December 2017 and ~ R-ZT—+F
1 January 2018 +ZRA=+—8Bk
—T-N\F—H—H 252,478 67,848 843 19,816 340,985
Profit and total comprehensive & /435 7 &
income for the year 2 ES A% - - 19,748 - 19,748
Dividend approved for 2017 Z—Z—+F 2
BRARS - - - (19,816) (19,816)
Proposed dividend for 2018  —Z— N\FZ RS - - (19,505) 19,505 -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
+=A=1+-H 252,478 67,848 1,086 19,505 340,917
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26.

190

RESERVES (Continued)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of Cayman lIslands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, subsidiaries established
in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. The transfer of
this reserve must be made before the distribution of dividend
to the subsidiaries equity owners. The statutory reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity.

Statutory welfare reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, companies established
in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage,
as approved by the directors of the subsidiaries, of its net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory welfare reserve. This reserve can
only be used to provide staff facilities and other collective
benefits to its employees. The statutory welfare reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity. According to the relevant PRC laws, from 1 January
2006, no subsequent profit distribution to the statutory
welfare reserve was needed.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued under the reorganisation and the nominal
value of the aggregate share capital/registered capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries then acquired.

Investment revaluation reserve

Investment revaluation reserve represents fair value reserve
comprising the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investments designed at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.
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26.

NFE+ZA=+—BLFE

RESERVES (Continued)

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve represented the revaluation
gain in respect of the leasehold land and buildings which
were reclassified as investment properties for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve represents the exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries into presentation currency of the Company.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the net assets
attributable to the additional of interest in a subsidiary being
acquired from non-controlling equity holder in prior year.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and
represents the excess of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the consolidated net assets
value of the subsidiaries then acquired.

26.
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27. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 27. EE¥BMRaRSEAE#HS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=#M=
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were ENRENESZMeNT !
as follows:

Salaries,
allowance
and other Contributions
benefits to retirement

Fees in kind schemes Total

¢ 2ER B
e HitEWAzR B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥Tz AR%®TR AR¥TxR

2018 —E-N\%
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun ST o A - - - _

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong S0 %4 600 126 51 777
Mr. Gu Wei Ming (Note)  BA%7RA 5t A4 (Ff5E) 350 67 30 447
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong St/ A 720 244 51 1,015
1,670 437 132 2,239

Independent non- BUFHTEE

executive directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung 48804 125 - - 125
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEREE 144 - - 144
Mr. Ai Ji kit 144 - - 144
413 - - 413
2,083 437 132 2,652
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BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—RHILtEE

27. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 27. EEHFMIESREBEAEME

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (£8)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ EZ=E=M=E(E)
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were ENRENESEZMES0T !
as follows: (Continued) (&)

REIEEES
allowance
and other  Contributions
benefits  to retirement

Fees in kind schemes Total

e 2R RIK
we HME®ilR STEI @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR%®TT ARET:

2017 —E—+F
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun A A = - - -

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong ~ #EE 54 650 139 51 840
Mr. Gu Wei Ming BEEPLEE 650 133 51 834
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong  #/NifE S A4 780 265 51 1,096
2,080 537 153 2,770
Independent non- BUFHTEE
executive directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung  $£88# 504 125 - - 125
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEREE 144 - - 144
Mr. Ai Ji UhitHsE 144 - - 144
413 - - 413
2,493 537 153 3,183
Note: FfzT -
Mr. Gu Wei Ming resigned as an executive director on 14 July 2018. BEEHEREER-_T—N\FtA+HEA

BHIITES -

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments FAMERRAFNEEREN

paid by the Group during the year (2017: Nil). SEMNEAMS(ZT—+
Fm|) o

No emoluments were paid to the directors of the FAXRBESTEESNE

Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the e  ERBEMNAKREE

Group or as compensation for loss of office for the i 7 N A By Y 52 B ok Bl B 4 (E

year (2017: Nil). ZE—tF |,
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HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

27. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 27. EEFMRSREEAEMS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (4&)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) DEESHFMAL

194

(c)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two (2017: three) directors of the Company for the
year, whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 27(a).
Details of the remuneration paid to the remaining
three (2017: two) non-director highest paid individuals
who were also members of senior management of the
Group, which fell within the band of Nil — HK$1 million
(equivalent to approximately Nil - RMB855,000) are
as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits

¥ RMREDAZE

FRAEBRAEZESHHA
TEEARAMEB(ZET—+
F:ZHR)ESF  FENBHS
BERWE27@WE - T
T=Z(ZE—+tF : MB)&
RFMEZEEAT(NALRE
EESRERAB)NEHMNN T
Z % 7T 1,000,000 7% 7T (49
HERARBEZTEARK
855,0007T) * FIBWOT :

2018
—E-N\fF

2017
—EF—+F
RMB’000
AREET T

RMB’000
ARET T

in kind 1,969 1,230
Contributions to retirement schemes R Rk EtH 2 2% 118 67
2,087 1,297

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office for the year (2017: Nil).

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to seven (2017: five)
members of senior management whose emoluments
fell within the following bands:

()

FRAREEYEXNHE TE
MxmHFMAL  (ERBEMN
AR B AR #) 52 B
BERmE(CT—tF8)

SREBAEME
ENZENER(ZFT—+
F RR)RREEEKEZ
MM FIATER

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to Z& 752 1,000,000 7T (47

approximately Nil — RMB855,000)
#855,0007T)

HERARBZTEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

28. COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments
The Group had the following outstanding capital
commitments:

BRAME - BFE R
HIBREE

Contracted, but not provided for,
in respect of property, plant and
equipment

28. EIE

(a) EBEAXREE
AEBABAT RN EARA

=

2018 2017
—E—N\&E —E—F

RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARETT

REEET

7,058 17,448

(b) Operating lease commitments
(i) Group as lessee
The total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings payable to
independent third parties is as follows:

(b) EEHEEFRE
(i) REBEREEA
RIB R RGE T30 A2
TFREMERENKKE
NBILFE =T 2 &IEH
BT

2018 2017

—B-N\F —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARETIT

Within one year —F R 59,085 47,730
In the second to fifth years —FEFERF 101,117 83,555
After five years HF% 54,809 19,063
215,011 150,348
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HE—ZT—\Ft+t-_A=t—RHIFE

28. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Operating lease commitments (Continued)
(i) Group as lessee (Continued)

The total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of land and buildings payable
to related companies, namely Shenzhen
Baijiahua Group Company Limited (“BJH
Group”) and Shenzhen Jiahua Real Estate
Development Company Limited (“JH Real
Estate”), companies in which Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the wife of Mr.
Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests, are
as follows:

28. EIE(E)

REHERERE)

(b)

(i)

REBEREEA(E)
RIS R HGE T30 A2
FREMEANKKE
NAERE A MR
Lt (HEREEZE
FIREERERNE
BRBRYTEEES
BERAR([BEES
= ) BRI EEE
EREARAR([EE
FHE ) NRERER
AR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARET T

Within one year —F R 28,740 33,000
In the second to fifth years HE_FEZERHF 99,239 103,074
After five years HFE& 202,287 226,189
330,266 362,263

The Group leases a number of land and
buildings under operating leases. The leases
run for initial periods of one to fifteen years,
with an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry dates or at dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective landlords.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

28. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Operating lease commitments (Continued)
(ii) Group as lessor
The Group sub-leases out a number of land
and buildings under operating leases. The
leases are negotiated for terms ranging from
two to fifteen years.

The Group leases out the investment
properties under operating lease run for initial
periods of three to ten years.

The total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases from
independent third parties are as follows:

28. EIE(E)
(b) KEHEREE

(i) ZIK%I'T’F%'EHHA
AEBRBEERED
HZELTHWRIETF - %
EHEBRNTWRER
+RFRF R o

AEERELEHEEN
MIEME - NFHY
R=Et+F-

RETAREEEEHEE
FEWCBL 58 =77 Z KRR
REHSEBROT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETTT

Within one year —F R 48,295 37,660
In the second to fifth years HF_FEFERFE 126,988 122,582
After five years HF#E 58,945 67,875
234,228 228,117
The above lease receivables do not RS T BEE
include commitments for additional rentals KEABANBABLB
receivables, if any, when revenue from the TEE K a9 EE S pE IR

lessees exceeds a pre-determined level as it
is not possible to determine in advance the
amount of such additional rentals.

eAE@E) - DHE
A RETR R EEE X BEHME
SR
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28. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 28. HAIE(E)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued) (b) REBEEIEGE)
(i)  Group as lessor (Continued) (i) AEBEAEBEAGE)
The total future minimum lease receivables BRI E M
under non-cancellable operating lease from g RREKEERT
related companies, namely BJH Group and JH AEEEEREERM
Real Estate, are as follow: EZzxERBEENREE

mT

2018 2017
—B-N\E —T+%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARETT

Within one year —F R 3,817 2,923
In the second to fifth years HE_FEZERHF 12,019 9,905
After five years RFE 7,497 8,986
23,333 21,814
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BEALIRS
In addition to those transactions and balances detailed BRRZEFFRREMBOFIZR
elsewhere in these financial statements, the following S RaERIN - AT BB A THET
transactions were carried out with related parties: PR
(a) Transactions with BJH Group (a) HEGEEEEZRS

2018 2017
—E—N\E&E —E—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Operating lease rentals BT REFEINH

payment in respect of land K& HEHES

and buildings (i), (ii) (12,938) (12,938)
Operating lease rentals BT RIEFHLE

arrangement in respect of ~ THEMHEZTHE

land and buildings (i), (ii) - (4,821)
Operating lease rentals Bt NEFHRE

income in respect of land HERS KA

and buildings (i) 2,328 2,328
Rental income arrangement 4 W A &4k (i), (iv) - 833
Utilities income arrangement /K& B UL A 28k i), (iv) - 508
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 20. BEALIRSZ(E)
(Continued)
(@) Transactions with BJH Group (Continued) (@ HAFEEEzXHE)

Notes: (T

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms
of the underlying agreements.

BJH Group (as tenant) entered into lease arrangements
with certain independent third parties (as landlords) to lease
certain premises rented by the Group. The Group paid rental
expenses of these premises as disclosed above directly to
the landlords and not to BJH Group.

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 28 April 2002 between
FITHEREREEER QA (“Zhong Peng Zhan”) (as

(i)

(i)

ZE S EIRBARR 5% 16K

B -

BEEEE(ERER)EET
ﬁi%*ﬁ(f’ﬁﬁa¥1)[ﬂi%ﬁ
T WHES ThAEE
fﬂﬁ%ﬁ’]%% ANEE B S
EgE’hZ%#@%E%F‘J%Iﬁ#
BEESEXMESHAL -

*Eﬂ?iﬁ?&ﬂ!ﬁqﬂm%l?éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
A((PHE] - FR¥EE)H

landlord) and BJH Group (as tenant), BJH Group leases BEEEB(EAMBP)ATRIL
store premises for a term of 15 years commencing from A Hﬁﬁ_gg_iﬂﬂ RIAN
16 November 2002 and expiring on 15 November 2017. At ERE  BEEEER

Pursuant to a supplemental lease agreement dated 1 March
2004 between Zhong Peng Zhan and BJH Group, Zhong
Peng Zhan has consented that BJH Group can provide
the store premises for occupation by Shenzhen Baijiahua
Department Stores Company Limited. Zhong Peng Zhan
also consented that Shenzhen Baijiahua Department Stores
Company Limited shall pay the rental under this lease
agreement directly to Zhong Peng Zhan and BJH Group has
guaranteed the timely payment of rentals to Zhong Peng
Zhan by the Group.

Starting from 16 November 2017, the Group as lessor
renewed the lease agreement with the independent third
party as tenant directly. The operating lease rentals was no
longer related party transaction during the year ended 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the rental deposit paid by the
Group to BJH Group of approximately RMB2,076,000
(2017: RMB2,076,000) was included in the balances of
deposit paid, prepayments and other receivables of the
Group.

BJH Group (as lessor) entered into a sub-lease arrangement
with an independent third party (as tenant) to sub-lease
part of the retail stores which were rented by the Group.
BJH Group received the rental income and utilities income
as disclosed above on behalf of the Group. Pursuant to a
supplemental agreement dated 6 November 2006 between
BJH Group and the Group, BJH Group confirmed that
the Group was entitled to the rental and utilities income
as lessor from the independent third party commencing
1 March 2004. The rentals and utilities income were
determined in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.

Starting from 16 November 2017, the Group as lessor
renewed the lease agreement with the independent third
party as tenant directly. The rental income and utilities
income were no longer related party transactions during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

(i)

(iv)

EIEHME - a‘ﬁﬁ@?%+£¢
H-TT=F+—A+ A
E-ZT—+tHF+—A+AARE
e IRIER IR A EEERE
FEIM ABA-STNF=A
—BMERRERE - PBR
REBEEEEETSERDE
RN TEFEEEERRAR]
15 - PR TARERIITE
FEFERRATEERTES
BEfFUHEERZEETHES -
MBEEEEEDRENEBER
BRPBEREL MRS -

B-Z—tF+—A+AXA
g AEE(MEAHEA) S
BUF =7 (FABEP)EE
BEEHEERZ BHE-_T-N
F+-_A=+—HALFE &
%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ$ﬁ%%ﬁ%§/\i§

AREE E1ﬂ¢z% i‘EHmIE
Ro oAt R B S 4 o

BEEEE(ERBEA)E
%?%4% E(1’Eﬁfﬂ)5)§
SR MERYE - pMBAAE
@%ﬁﬁﬁ MRS ZESE - BiEE
EHERRAEEUE SRR
BEESBARKEBRLA
BB B EEEEEAEENR]
YHABB-TERFL—AN
EIE’]%ﬁ}EWJm E&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
R AEER—_TTNFE=F
*Elﬁ_*ﬁ_ﬁiuﬁjfﬂ)\%”ﬁﬁﬂéi
BUF=TWREE RKER
WA - HERKEERATIR
RABRR hh Rk O RSN E ©

BE-Z—tF+—A+XA
g ARBE(ESHEA) S
BUF=H(EREP)EEE
BHEWR - BE_T—\F
TTA=t+—HLEFE - #HE
WA RKEBBRATBZREE
ALRS
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BEALRS (&)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with JH Real Estate (b) HEEEWENKS

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETT

Operating lease rentals BB+ EREFHRE
payment in respect of land ~ FAEME &R
and buildings (i), (i) (26,685) (11,314)
Operating lease rentals BT RETHRE
income in respect of land HERS KA
and buildings (i) 730 730
Notes: BisE -
0] The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms 0] ZESEDIRBHEB R ENF
of the underlying agreements. HAEEE ©
(ii) As at 31 December 2018, the rental deposit paid by the (ii) RZE-NF+ZA=+—
Group to JH Real Estate of approximately RMB4,220,000 B AEBREEEME
(2017: RMB4,220,000) was included in the balances of TN EERSHOARE
deposit paid, prepayments and other receivables of the 4,220,000 (=T —+4F :
Group. AR #4,220,0007T ) 5 A K
SEMEMNERS  BERRER
FHofth WK IE 2 48R o
(c) Compensation of key management (c) ETEEBEAEME
personnel

2018 2017
—B-N\E —Tt%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBETT

Total remuneration of directors FE2(sF27(@)) R EMEE
(Note 27(a)) and other members BN BRI BN4EEE
of key management

— Short term employee benefits —EEEEREF 5,885 5,433

— Contributions to retirement —IRIRFHEIE K
schemes 454 374
6,339 5,807
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. AQTFHBMRE
THE COMPANY

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARET T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries NGRS 67,848 67,848
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUZ [t B A 75K 18 280,263 281,370
Prepayments and other fﬁﬁmlﬁﬂiﬁ@ﬁ’éﬂﬂl%ﬁﬁ
receivables 173 165
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHH 4,243 3,153
284,679 284,688
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H bR IE R ERTE A 1,485 1,426
1,485 1,426
Net current assets REBEEFE 283,194 283,262
Net assets EEFHE 351,042 351,110
EQUITY B
Share capital f% 25 10,125 10,125
Reserves HiE 26 340,917 340,985
Total equity ey 351,042 351,110
Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
FEFE TR
Director Director
EF -
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31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 31. AMBARNER
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZE—+EFER_ZE—N\F+A
are as follows: =+—8  WBRAFFBET :
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Principal activities
establishment and issued share/paid-up Percentage of interest and place of
Company name legal form of entity registered capital held by the Company operations
AAARERRAS
2018 2017
AL/ =t S . SN
RIBGR BRfIRH/ Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HEAEH BARIMEARE EE BB 0 BEE  AE IEEHREERY
Forever Prosperity International British Virgin Islands, US$20  100% - 100% - Investment holding in Hong
Gompany Limited limited fiability NET Kong
XRERARAT company REBETREAR
ABRUES ARE
fEna)
Ding Xin Investment Company Limited Hong Kong, limited HKS0.1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
SMRABRAA liability company 0137 Hong Kong
B ARELAT REBETRERR
Heng Run Xin Investment Company Limited - Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 - 100% - 100%  Dormant
(Note (vi) liability company 10,0087 TEEE
EEERERRAA (M) B4 BREELT
Shenzhen Ding Xin Department Stores The PRC, limited RMBS,000,000 - - - 100%  Dormant
Company Limited (Note () liabilty company AE5,000,0007 gaxh
AISHREERARD (M) T8 AREEAT
Shenzhen Baijiahua Commercial The PRC, limited RMB45,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and management
Management Limited (Note (vil) liability company (2017: RMB30,000,000) of shopping mallin
MIMAEEAFERARAD (M) +E BREEAR AR#45,000,0007T the PRC
(Z5—t£: RPESEREERS
AR#30,000,0007)
Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua Commercial - The PRC, limited RMB50,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Commercial factoring
Factoring Limited liability company ARH50,000,0007 services in the PRG
MITHEREERZREARAA T8 AREEAR R EETRRRERE
202 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
II‘I—J—\AHZI-%#&‘%:ZB{T? IIE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

31. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 31.
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 and 2018
are as follows: (Continued)

KRB AT ER (&)
RZTE—+FER_T—-NFE+_A
=+t—H WEBRAFBOT : (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Principal activities
establishment and issued share/paid-up Percentage of interest and place of
Company name legal form of entity registered capital held by the Company operations
AAFREREAAM
2018 7
e/ “B-N\§ t
KUK B&fRH,/ Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HEAER BAREMERRE ER BB % Bk TEEBREEHE
Shenzhen Baijiahua Department Stores The PRC, limited RMB220,400,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited liability company AK#220,400,0007 and operation and
MIMEEEEEERAT hE  BREFAT management of retall
stores in the PRC
RAEETRARRREE
REETEE
Guangxi Baijiahua Department Stores The PRC, limited RMB10,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and management
Company Limited liability company AR %10,000,0007 of retail stores in the PRC
BEREZREERAT hE EREAAT RAEEERERTER
Yunnan Baiiahua Department Stores The PRC, limited RMB10,000,000 - - - 100%  Dormant
Company Limit ed (No e (i) liability company AR%10,000,0007 TEEE
ERaREEEERAR () T8 ARELAR
Shenzhen BJH Network Technology Limited  The PRC, limited RMBS,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Operation and management
MM A EE AR ABRAT libilty company AR 5,000,007 of online sale in the PRC
T8 ARREAT RPEEERERA HE
Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua Beverage The PRC, limited RMB35,000,000 - - - 100%  Operation of restaurants in
Management Limited (Note (i) liability company ARH35,000,0007 the PRC
MITAsREERAERARRA hE - EREAAT RPASEEE
(M)
Shenzhen Baijiahua Convenient Stores The PRC, limited RMB5,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Dormant
Chain Management Limited (Note(v) liability company AR %5,000,0007C TaEK
MITEEEEHENEEEARAR  HE AREELT
(k)
Shenzhen Baijiahua Supply The PRC, limited RMB5,000,000 - 100% - - Supply chain financing
Chain Management Limited (No e (V) liability company AR 5,000,000 services in the PRC

RIMBEERERERARDA
(K&E0)

hE - ARALAT

FEETEERARAA

BT RER SRS
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31.

204

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The financial statements of the above subsidiaries were
audited by BDO Limited, for statutory purpose and/or for the
purpose of the group consolidation.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

Notes:

(i) During the year, a subsidiary, Shenzhen Ding Xin Department Stores
Company Limited (&Y% B E B R 7)) has been deregistered.

(i) During the year, a subsidiary, Yunnan Baijiahua Department Stores
Company Limited (527 B 12 5 BB R 7)) has been deregistered.

(iif) During the year, a subsidiary, Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua Beverage
Management Limited (F3IITTA1/8 B EZEZ R EE FRR A F]) has been
disposed as mentioned in Note 32.

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2017, a subsidiary, Shenzhen
Baijiahua Convenient Stores Chain Management Limited (&3 & £
B HE 5 E B AR A R]), has been incorporated.

(V) During the year, a subsidiary, Shenzhen Baijiahua Supply Chain
Management Limited (Z3IT & EFEH-EFEE IR AR A A]), has been
incorporated.

(vi) Subsequent to the reporting period, on 1 February 2019, a
subsidiary, Heng Run Xin Investment Company Limited (fE/8& & &
ABRAR)) has been deregistered.

(vii) During the year, the name of a subsidiary — Shenzhen Baijiahua

Commercial Investment Management Limited was changed to
Shenzhen Baijiahua Commercial Management Limited.
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A HEH e o

(ii) FA -MBLARAEHAEEAEER
RAEBIHEEM ©

(iii) FA-MBRRRITANEREEE
REBARDAE HE (WM 3257
) e

(iv) BHE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HItF
B WEBARDRIN M EEZEHETR
EBERARATEEMAK -

v) FRMBARRYIT AEEHER
ERERIRSEMAL
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BEHE -
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32. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

As referred to in note 7(b), on 30 June 2018, the Group
disposed of its subsidiary, Baijiahua Beverage. The net
liabilities Baijiahua Beverage at the date of disposal were as

follows:

32. HE-—RBHWEARARA
MEEE7(0) P - R=F—\FXA
=+A - AREHEANBRRAEE
FER - BEFERNNERPNE
EFEMT -

30 June 2018

—E—N\F
~NA=1H
RMB’000
AR®T T
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 19,101
Intangible assets mEEE 2,492
Inventories and consumables FTERSER 581
Deposits paid — non-current BES —ERE 705
Deposits paid, prepayments and other BEffEe - BNREREMWERR
receivables — current H—R® 997
Cash and bank balances e MRTTA R 98
Trade payables FEE SRR (1,349)
Contract liabilities aHAaE (610)
Deposits received, other payables and accruals DUz 4 - EfbERNFIE R ETER (24,906)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEBEFE (2,891)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary, included HE—fEHBAR 2 W
in profit from discontinued STAR RIS EEH
operation for the year (Note 7(b)) FRRF (M7 (b)) 12,341
Total consideration ®rRE 9,450
Satisfied by: EBUTAREZAM :
Cash He 9,450
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENERESRAFE .
Cash consideration HeNE 9,450
Cash and bank balances disposed of B ERE RIEITHEH (98)
9,352
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33.

206

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long term
financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns with acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described below.

(i) Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of
financial position relate to the following categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities:

TREE :

Financial assets:

33.

MHEREERAFEFTE

AEBAEREEHELBRELRE
EnEReR TAMBEHMHER -
FRVBRAREEMZAR(BRER
R RN RRR) - EERR MR
HETAR -

MF R EIE AN B AR - I
HEFEERYAEF BEMBRRZ
ERACEHENEBRERS TR
MIZEE - BERANEEEHEFHR
TRE RESRRENAZRZRAR
REELRFELRER -

AREB 2 BRI FARH R B B
MERTAERS - AKEMEHRE
AOERERGHLDT

(i) TRIEEREEER
RBBRAREVEEESRE
ENTREEHERN 2 READN
™

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARET T

Financial assets measured at
amortised costs

RBHEKAGEZEREE

— Cash and bank balances — R MIBTT4 270,896 =

— Trade and loan receivables —BUWESRERLRER 60,859 =

— Deposits paid and other receivables — B <124 [ H th fE W 5008 44,464 -

Loan and receivables BN R IE

— Cash and bank balances — R MIRTTH R - 288,817

— Trade and loan receivables —EWESERTLRER - 45,493

- Deposits paid and other receivables — 2<% & 2 £ g U 3508 - 38,676
376,219 372,986

Available-for-sale financial assets: Tt HESREE !

— Unlisted equity investments —FFLTRARE - 3,235
376,219 376,221
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33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Financial liabilities: £HEE
Financial liabilities measured

at amortised costs

33.

)
(4

(i

RBHEKAGHEZSRAE

T

BEREERQFETE

TREEREERER(E)

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—ET—+F
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARET T

- Trade payables —ERE SRR 172,003 194,499
- Deposits received, other payables — B Uik s « EAbFES
and accruals RIENESTER 110,451 98,281
— Amount due to a director —JEN—RESEHE 59 59
282,513 292,839
Foreign currency risk (ii) ﬂ"ﬁﬁﬂ 5
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value BEEEREERTIAECAFE
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will SR RIS i 2 A E RS
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange R &) < B R o

rates.

The Group has operation in the PRC so that the
majority of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash
flows are denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities
of the Group are mostly denominated in RMB and
HK$. Any significant exchange rate fluctuations of
foreign currencies against RMB may have financial
impact to the Group.

FEETEERARAA

AEERPBEZERS - A
SERFAWA - X KRE
MEBHUARKEFE - AEE
REDEERABAARE R
BILEHE ° SN ARBRE
RMBERERNEIT A e L
AEBEBKRYBEEE -

—T—\EER 207



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
nvj'\/\ﬁzti%#E%:ZBﬁ? nE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILEFE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. B¥EREERLAFEFE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (&)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures at the reporting date
to currency risk arising from foreign currency
denominated monetary assets in currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate are set out below:

(ii)

SN B ()

AR AINEFHENEEEEIN
HAREBNEERE TR
EHHE - AKEREEH
HESX TIERRR :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Financial assets: SREE
Cash and bank balances — HK$ Be MIBITESR BT 5,548 7,423
Sensitivity analysis BREDN

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had strengthened
by 5% against HK$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year and, retained
profits would have been approximately RMB264,000
lower (2017: RMB353,000 lower), as a result of
foreign exchange gains on translation of foreign
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The same % decrease in the foreign currency
exchange rate on RMB against HK$ would have the
same magnitude on the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year and retained profits as shown above but

RZE—NF+ZA=Z+—
H WMARBIZLBLTLHE
5% MATBHEMEERTE -
BRIV B 18 05 1) K AR B8 s ) 7%
HEINETTENSREE R
BESEE R WM R4
ARB26400T(—F—+
F D AR¥353,0000T) °

WA SE8ERTE AR
BB TEXRMAR KA D
Fo 3 7N 5 [ A A 12 0 ) K AR
B & N B B £ PR ABRIE

of opposite effect, on the basis all variances held IEXEVE P -2
constant.

These are the same method and assumption used Fr{E A5 E MR EFERE
in preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the EE—+ER-_FT—)N\EF

financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. B¥EBREERLAFEFE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (4&)

(iii)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying
amounts of cash and bank balances, trade and loan
receivables, deposits paid and other receivables.

For the operation and management of retail stores
and other related businesses, the Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk. Most of
the sales transactions were settled in cash basis,
by credit card payment or through online payment
platforms. Credit terms are only offered to corporate
customers with whom the Group has an established
and ongoing relationship. Regarding trade receivables
arising from rental income, the Group maintains
a defined credit policy including stringent credit
evaluation on and payment of a rental deposit from
tenants. Receivables are regularly reviewed and
closely monitored to minimise any associated credit
risk.

The Group’s trade receivables, deposits paid and
other receivables are actively monitored to avoid
significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group
is not exposed to any significant credit risk from any
single counterparty or any group of counterparties
having similar characteristics. The Group’s bank
deposits were deposited with major financial
institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC, which
management believes are of high-credit-quality
without significant credit risk.

(iii)

FERERE
FERBRESRTANRZSY
FREARBES BT AGKE
TEEE  SAKEHRUGE
EiENER - AEEEHNR
AERRBRASEE RRITHE
R BRESESRER B
fize R EMEWHIR 2 RE
& o

REERERTEERAME
MEBMS  AEENEER
A EHBEAKFIER
AMABEERZUERE  F
ARNREEBE LN TR
EH - AEBIEREARER
FEHEERZPRHEEEN - R
FHEBRAEENREE S
R AEERE R EBEWMNGE
EBE - BREBRNEEN MG
RmArPKRREERES - &M
S T BB N ) BRI FE UK
B R AERBREE R

A
oo
ZN

[

HFIe T8 BRI A K EH IR
BHER BN REME
WE - LR EERREBES
oo AEE Y ER AR B
BOEAE-HF R EMY
FHRBXIEMNEANEER
B AEENRTREFER
BERTENETESRBEIE
EEEHREZSHEAGSS
EiEE  TEHREXEER

G o
N
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

All of the Group’s trade receivables, deposits paid

and other receivables have no collateral. Details of
the Group’s expected credit loss assessments are as
follows:

(iii)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach in
providing for ECLs as prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which requires the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. The
Group always measures the loss allowance
for trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables
are estimated by reference to past default
experience of the debtor and current market
condition in relation to each debtor’s
exposure. The ECLs also incorporates
forward-looking information with reference
to general macroeconomic conditions that
may affect the ability of the debtors to settle
receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
share credit risk characteristics. No provision
for impairment loss for these trade receivables
was made at 31 December 2018 as the
financial assets were considered to be of low
credit risk and the ECLs of these financial
assets was immaterial.

Deposits paid and other receivables

The Group determines ECLs for deposits paid
and other receivables based on 12-month
ECLs which take into account the historical
default experiences and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, for example,
the Group considers the consistently low
historical default rates of counterparties. It
is concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding deposits paid and other
receivables are insignificant. The Group
has assessed that deposits paid and other
receivables do not have a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and risk
of default is insignificant, therefore the ECLs
for these deposits paid and receivables were
immaterial under the 12-month ECLs method
and no loss allowance were recognised during
the year.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Loan receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from loan receivables from factoring
and supply chain financing businesses.
As at 31 December 2018, the five largest
loan receivables, in aggregate, contributed
approximately RMB47,119,000 or 77% (2017:
RMB34,978,000 or 77%) to the Group’s total
trade and loan receivables.

In respect of loan receivables, the Group’s
policy is that all customers who wish to
obtain loans from the Group are subject
to management review. The Group holds
collaterals directly or indirectly to cover its risks
associated with loan receivables.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 to measure
ECLs which uses a 12-month ECLs for loan
receivables. To measure the ECLs, loan
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The internal
credit risk ratings are based on qualitative
(such as debtors’ operating conditions,
financial positions, external rating of factoring
customers, etc.) and quantitative factors
(mainly includes past due information of the
loan receivables).

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
by referencing the external data adjusted by
macroeconomic factors and forward-looking
information, etc.

Based on the Group’s ECLs assessment, the
ECLs for loan receivables were immaterial
under 12-month ECLs method and therefore
no impairment loss allowance is recognised for
loan receivables.

MEEBEERATETE

FERERE (&)

(c)

EWER
AEEEHMEER
1225@1%@&1,\%%
ERMEBHERENE
o RZE—N\F+=
B=+—H " #£&m*x
REWERAE HhARE
BEEWE ZERRE
RHEIANREEA7 119,000
HT7T%(ZFE—+5F
AR #34,978,0007T 8%
77%) °

ERERME - A%
=1 6 BR %ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ?‘ )
AEEESERNEP
/\%%”efi%}ﬁ_ﬁ'%ﬁ o NE&
B E kA E
YLK = B B E R
BRAMER -

REERAEEVBR
Cl—'—HIJ 9’?):% ’ %““@u&
EXEA+T—EAES
EEEE - RFTEEH
EEBA JEJ%Z&M
AR RS AR R
H# o WEME AR AT
R UATE M (N ES A K
R - BRI -
RIBEFINBRIRSE)
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RE) FKEDHR L K
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B R EIZE IAINEDRL
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EEREMATEEER
FEE o
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. B¥EREERLAFEFE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (#&)
(iii)  Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERRGE)

(c)  Loan receivables (Continued) (c) EWRERGE)
The following table provides an overview of TRYEE MIEHETER
the Group’s credit risk by stage, and the EEEBBEEXRYMT
associated ECLs coverage. The financial REEEHAERR -
assets recorded in each stage have the PSR RS R E B

following characteristics: BB TRE
Stage 1: Unimpaired and without significant FREB - ARERE
increase in credit risk on which A & e 0 A
12-month allowance for ECLs are JEAEM -
recognised. B R
+Z@ AT
MEEEIE

B -

Stage 2: A significant increase in credit risk FREBR -BRAERA
has been experienced since initial EEEER
recognition on which lifetime ECLs N
are recognised. m-E4de
REHTE
EMZEEE -
Stage 3: Objective evidence of impairment, FoRE-ABEER
and are therefore considered to BFE &
be in default or otherwise credit- i % 18 & &
impaired on which lifetime ECLs are HHEAE
recognised BE - EF
EHEREH
BHEEE

B

Gross
12-month or Expected carrying
lifetime ECLs loss rate amount

T-EAHEH

BMEEER  EABRE REAE
RMB’000
ARBTR

Internal credit rating mERE AR

Stage 1 E—FEE 12-month ECLs  0.10%-0.12% 47,212
+-EREHEEEE
Stage 2 BFEER Lifetime ECLs N/A -
2HEHEERE TEA
Stage 3 FER Lifetime ECLs N/A -
2HELEEEE TEHA
Total B 41,212
The credit policies have been followed by the FEEMBREBRREERSF
Group throughout the year and are considered 2FEF—HHAEE L
to be effective. B BERAEBY -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. B¥EBREERLAFEFE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (4&)

(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) FI=REME
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value MzxmEEEEER T AENAF
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate BERBEESRETEHRT IS X
because of changes in market interest rates. FEmEEBMRR °
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly AREFBHENFXRRRETER
arises on cash and bank balances and loan Be MIBITEGRRIBERR
receivables. The Group has not used any derivative TEEA - NEBIWEFB I
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. PTHETEANE HHBEE N
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the KA o ANEFIW S TFEIE
interest rate risk. FIERBR B
Management monitors the related interest exposure EREERYERARMER
closely to ensure the interest rate risks are maintained @ DARERF R E b 4358 A
at an acceptable level. The level of mismatch of BERKFE - BEERY)EEF|
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken is EENETEREL 2K ©
monitored closely.
Management considers the Group’s exposure to fair RS TAENFEEREE - )
value interest rate risk is not significant due to the EEEBRAARNERRENAF
short-term maturities of these instruments. EFNERREIYAEKX -
A reasonable change in interest rate in the next MR AKR+—@EAFELEIEE
twelve months is assessed to result in immaterial BEY  AEFTEHASE
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained BB RRBEMEREKR
profits. Changes in interest rates have no impact on HE) o FMIREEE AREBER
the Group’s other components of equity. The Group ZEHMBRIBOWESLE - K
adopts centralised treasury policies in cash and SEMIIRE MK E B EEAF
financial management and focuses on reducing the REBHE  Z2ERREARASE
Group’s overall interest expense. EEEN S

(v)  Liquidity risk (v) REBEZRMR

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations and also in respect of its cash
flow management.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash
and bank balances and have available funding to
meet its working capital requirements. The Group’s
liquidity is dependent upon the cash received from
its customers. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

MBETRAREBAREEX
BITESRAGEAENER -
AEEBENENESERR
HUYBAREANAERSRE
EEEHARDETER °

AEENBRRERFTERE
NMIRTTHESR - WERS B 2 PARC
BHEEESHE - AKEHH
MEE KA B E TP UEH
BE - ARBRIEFEEMH KK
BASREN A R AR BETTH
B RRRA F5 R o
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 33. B¥EREERLAFEFE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (4&)

(v)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative as at 31 December
2017 and 2018. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included
on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed
to pay.

At 31 December 2018

R-E-N\F+ZA=t-H

(v)

Carrying undiscounted
amount

RMB’000
ARBTT

RBESRE (&)
AEE-HEAABEFREAR
BESHER  URSEHEE
MEBESRR A

INTathBREER -2 —+
FRZB2-NF+ZHAH=+—
HRIENTETEB M HBE LT
B o HERARESN
BEMNKHE BaEERASE
BRI EKERNET AERE
ReoWBaE Y HEE  BI&SD
BAROREAEBAEEN
M&FHME -

Total Repayable
contractual within
one year or
on demand
—E£Rg
REREREE
RMB’000
ARETT

cash flows

BRREE
REE RERELE

RMB’000
AREFT

Trade payables ENBSER 172,003 172,003 172,003
Deposits received, other payables Blike  EtEATER

and accruals FEET &R 110,451 110,451 110,451
Amount due to a director EN—REERIE 59 59 59
Total @t 282,513 282,513 282,513
At 31 December 2017 R=B—tF+=A=t-8
Trade payables ENE SRR 194,499 194,499 194,499
Deposits received, other payables Blizd - AbEAFER

and accruals g 08,281 08,281 98,281
Amount due to a director EN—ZEEZIE 59 59 59
Total @t 292,839 292,839 292,839

The Group considers expected cash flows from
financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity
risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid
assets that readily generate cash. The Group’s
existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.
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34.

35.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Management regards total equity as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital
as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB605,728,000 (2017: RMB599,776,000), in which
management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities.

LITIGATIONS

Guangxi Yulin Store

In July 2011, the Group entered into a lease agreement with
Yulin Hongyuan Real Estate Development Limited (“Yulin
Hongyuan”) pursuant to which the Group would lease from
Yulin Hongyuan a property located at No.8 Baishigiao Road
of Yulin, Guangxi, the PRC for setting up a store (the “Yulin
Store”). The Group also entered into property management
agreements with a related company of Yulin Hongyuan,
Handan Shengyuan Property Service Limited (“Shengyuan”)
for the Yulin Store in July 2011.

In October 2012, the Group has commenced legal
proceedings against Yulin Hongyuan and Shengyuan as
Yulin Hongyuan has breached the lease agreement for failing
to hand over the property to the Group before the deadline
as stipulated in the lease agreement. The Group demanded
repayments of the deposits and prepaid rentals and
management fees of an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB4,173,000 from Yulin Hongyuan and Shengyuan.
The Group further claimed a sum of approximately
RMB1,669,000, being penalty for breaching the agreements
and the costs of the proceedings.

34.

35.

(£

BEZRERDF

EXREHE
AEBMEARTE B ERERAREE
BREXEBNEN  URRREY &R
B2 E B A R RKF A RB R #
RRHE R o

A A S 3 R R A
W+ DVREIR BT £ A M R
B %EEAEEARASEE -
RITRIAFTE AR X RFAGREIRE
g -

REFAFBERGEHE  AEENE
HENTRRZBEEEHE - ARRER
BIRA - TR 3 & B B AR
KER -
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LITIGATIONS (Continued)
Guangxi Yulin Store (Continued)

In December 2012, Yulin Hongyuan and Shengyuan have
filed counterclaims against the Group for the alleged damage
of an aggregate amount of approximately RMB8,466,000
arising from the alleged improper cancellation of the
agreements by the Group and the costs of the proceedings.

In July 2013, the court has announced its judgement that
the Group was required to bear the alleged damage to Yulin
Hongyuan with a total of approximately RMB3,510,000; Yulin
Hongyuan was required to return the prepaid rentals and
deposit to the Group of approximately RMB1,407,000 and
RMB938,000 respectively; the Group was required to bear
partial court processing fee of approximately RMB25,000. In
August 2013, the Group and Yulin Hongyuan have lodged
appeal against the decision by the court separately.

In October 2013, the court has announced its judgement
that the Group was required to bear the alleged damage
to Shengyuan with a total of approximately RMB678,000;
Shengyuan was required to return the prepaid management
fee and deposit to the Group of approximately
RMB1,097,000 and RMB731,000 respectively; the Group
was required to bear the partial court processing fee of
approximately RMB12,000. In December 2013, the Group
has lodged appeal against the decision by the court.

In March 2014, the court has subsequently cancelled its
previous judgements regarding the legal proceedings with
Yulin Hongyuan in July 2013 as stated above and the legal
proceedings will be processed again by the court.

In July 2014, the court has announced its judgement that
the Group was required to bear the alleged damage to
Shengyuan with a total of approximately RMB60,000;
Shengyuan was required to return the prepaid management
fee and deposit to the Group of approximately
RMB1,097,000 and RMB731,000 respectively; the Group
was required to bear the partial court processing fee of
approximately RMB16,000.
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LITIGATIONS (Continued)

Guangxi Yulin Store (Continued)

In August 2014, the court has announced its judgement
that the Group was required to bear the alleged damage
and rental loss compensation to Yulin Hongyuan with a
total of approximately RMB1,754,000 and RMB2,815,000
respectively; Yulin Hongyuan was required to return the
rental deposit to the Group of approximately RMB938,000;
the Group was required to bear partial court processing fee
of approximately RMB38,000. In November 2014, the Group
has lodged appeal against the decision by the court.

In February 2015, the court has announced its judgement
that Yulin Hongyuan was required to return the prepaid rent
and deposit to the Group of approximately RMB1,407,000
and RMB938,000 respectively; Yulin Hongyuan was required
to bear all court processing fee. The Group has lodged
application for compulsory execution of the decision by the
court immediately. In October 2015, Yulin Hongyuan have
lodged appeal against the decision by the court but has been
turned down.

In October 2015, the court has cancelled its previous
judgements regarding the legal proceedings with Shengyuan
in October 2013 and July 2014 as stated above respectively
and the legal proceedings will be processed again by the
court.

In July 2016, Yulin Hongyuan lodged protest to the People’s
Procuratorate Court. In October 2016, the court has
suspended the compulsory execution made by the decision
in February 2015 and ordered the case to be processed
again.

In August 2016, the court has announced that the
judgements made in July 2014 have been sustained.
Shengyuan lodged appeal to the intermediate court
immediately but has been turned down.

In August 2017, Shengyuan has lodged appeal to high
court against the decision by the intermediate court but
has been turned down. The Group has lodged application
for compulsory execution of the decision by the court
immediately and the compulsory execution has been
approved by the count in January 2018.
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LITIGATIONS (Continued)

Guangxi Yulin Store (Continued)

In December 2017, the court has announced its judgements
that the Group was required to bear the counterclaims
of alleged damage to Yulin Hongyuan of approximately
RMB3,159,000; Yulin Hongyuan was required to return the
prepaid rentals and deposit to the Group of approximately
RMB1,407,000 and RMB938,000 respectively; the Group
was required to bear partial court processing fee of
approximately RMB65,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has received the repayments of prepaid rentals and rental
deposit of approximately RMB2,345,000 in aggregate, and
settled the provision of counterclaims of alleged damage
of approximately RMB3,159,000 to Yulin Hongyuan. The
directors of the Company are of the view that, as pursuant
to legal opinion from the Group’s legal advisor, the litigation
against Yulin Hongyuan had been concluded and settled.

The directors of the Company are of the view that, as
pursuant to legal opinion from the Group’s legal advisor,
prepaid management fee and deposit with amounts of
approximately RMB1,828,000 should be refunded to the
Group from Shengyuan. Provision of counterclaims of
alleged damage granted by the court of approximately
RMB60,000 to Shengyuan was made in prior years and
included in other payables as at 31 December 2018. The
directors of the Company considered that the prepaid
management fee and deposit to be credit-impaired,
impairment loss on prepaid management fee and deposits
with amounts totalling RMB1,828,000 was made, which
has been recorded in other operating expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company are
of the view that there is no contingent liabilities regarding the
litigations with Shengyuan.

Furthermore, the directors of the Company are of the view

that adequate provision for legal fees in relation to the
proceedings has been made as at 31 December 2018.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HFEMEESE

RESULTS &

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t+-RALEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—2-mFE  ZE-RfF ZERF ZF—+t§ ZB-N\%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETr AR%¥Tn
(re-presented)
(E71)
Continuing operations HEEEEH
Revenue WA 821,249 839,674 728,903 690,124 710,336
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAK (556,965) (579,767) (468,950) (418,357) (410,424)
264,284 259,907 259,953 271,767 299,912
Other operating income Hi & A 74,949 66,169 69,992 63,135 71,509
Increase in fair value of REME
investment properties AEEM 7,000 3,100 10,600 20,100 500
Selling and distribution costs ~ $4% K2 SRR (213,675) (214,561) (216,943) (218,184) (284,905)
Administrative expenses TBAX (42,222) (43,887) (54,047) (53,507) (49,997
Other operating expenses Hi &R % (10,317) (5,237) (4,911) (7,120) (3,465)
Finance cost BIERR (1,238) (13) - - -
Share of loss of an associate  JEME—fIH& A RIER (2,009) (1,475) (116) = -
Profit before income tax BrETER AR A 76,772 64,003 64,528 76,191 33,554
Income tax expense FEERX (18,116) (18,414) (23,393) (26,665) (9,085)
Profit from continuing operations &K &£ 7
for the year FR & 58,656 45,589 41,135 49,526 24,469
Discontinued operation BT E K
Profit/(loss) from discontinued B HEEE®K Y
operation for the year FREH,/(FB) = = S (16,327) 734
Profit for the year FEREA 58,656 45,569 41,135 33,199 25,203
Profit/(loss) attrioutable to: AT AL (R
(B#E):
- Owners of the Company —ANRERA 58,656 45,600 41,306 33,199 25,203
- Non-controlling interest — IR IR R RS - (11) (171) - -
58,656 45,589 41,135 33,199 25,203
Dividends R E 21,165 13,176 25,004 19,816 19,505
Earnings per share BRAM
- Basic -EX RMBAR®  RMBARE RMBAR®. RMBARY® RMBARY
5.65cents?”  4.40 cents?  3.98 centsm  3.20 cents?m  2.43 centsZ
- Diluted —8% RMBAR®  RMBARY RMBAR¥ RMBARY RMBAR¥

5.65 cents?

4.40 cents?

3.98 cents?

3.20 cents?y

2.43 cents?

FEETEERARAA

2 N\EEH
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Five-Year Financial Summary (Continued)
FEMBEHE(E)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December
R+t=A=t+—-H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

—B-mE  —T-RF ZERF ZEtF CZ®-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETL ARETT ARETT AR%T:R

Total assets BEE 930,596 835,790 875,313 942,416 947,752
Total liabilities BafE (391,398) (271,918) (283,732 (342,640 (342,024)
Net assets BESE 539,198 563,872 591,581 599,776 605,728

Note: MEE -

1. The results for year ended 31 December 2018, and the assets and liabilities 1. HE_Z—\F+-_A=Z+—HLFENE
as at 31 December 2018 have been extracted from the audited consolidated B URRZE-NE+_A=+—HBWHEE
statement of comprehensive income and audited consolidated statement of LBED MBI ERKRECBECIEKETO
financial position as set out on page 68 to 69 and pages 70 to 71 respectively, EVTENKEREAEERER RIEEZEA
of the financial statements. SRR o
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